
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
March 10, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

City Council Chambers 400 East Military, Fremont NE 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

MAYOR COMMENTS: There will be no discussion from the Council or the public regarding 
comments made by the Mayor. Should anyone have questions regarding the comments, please 
contact the Mayor after the meeting 

1. Motion to adopt current agenda for March 10, 2020 Regular Meeting 

BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: 

2. Resolution 2020-053 of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, approving the 
2020 City of Fremont One Year-Six Year Street Improvement Plan  

3. Resolution 2020-040 to accept Itemized Statement of Cost, Complete Cost, Tentative 
Schedule of Assessments and set date of Board of Equalization for Sanitary Sewer District 
No. 704-18  

4. Council Member Yerger item - receipt, discussion, and consideration of, and/or potential 
action on, the Library Board’s recommendation to the Mayor and Council for filling a 
vacant Library Board position with Susan Allen  

AUDIT PRESENTATION: 

5. Mayor Getzschman item: receive Audit Report for year ending September 30, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

6. Resolution 2020-054 to allow a Child Care facility on property located at 749 N William 
Street 

7. Ordinance 5528 for a change of zone from R, Rural to PD, Planned Development for 
property commonly known as Bluestem Commons (first reading) 

8. Ordinance 5529 to change zoning from R, Rural to SR, Suburban Residential on property 
generally located between Ridge Road and Country Club Estates (first reading) 
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9. Resolution 2020-055 to approve the Country Club Estates 6th Addition Final Plat  

10. Resolution 2020-056 to approve application for a Class I liquor license for Crush Pizza 
and Alehouse LLC dba Crush Pizza and Alehouse 102 N. Main St. 

CONSENT AGENDA: All items in the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the City 
Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless a Council Member or a citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the 
consent agenda and considered separately. 

11. Motion to approve February 26, 2020 through March 10, 2020 claims and authorize 
checks to be drawn on the proper accounts  

12. Move to receive Report of the Treasury 

13. Dispense with and approve February 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes, Community 
Development Agency Minutes and Board of Equalization Minutes 

14. Resolution 2020-057 to accept the proposal of Racom and US Digital Designs Phoenix 
G2  for a new fire station alerting system and enter into a service agreement 

15. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Deed of Reconveyance; Frink; 505 E. 2nd Street 

16. Resolution 2020-058 authorizing a contract for the Lon D. Wright Power Plant Rail Track 
Extension 

17. Resolution 2020-059 accepting and awarding the bid to C-R Menn Concrete, LCC. for the 
2020 Pavement Rehab project 

18. Resolution 2020-060 awarding the Contract for Natural Gas Asset Management to BP 
Canada Energy Marketing Corp 

19. Resolution 2020-061 authorizing the Fremont Department of Utilities Staff to purchase 
vehicles and equipment (two trucks and one Mini Skid Steer) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: Requires individual associated action 

20. Ordinance 5518 repealing and replacing Chapter 3, Article 7 Section 3-701 of the Fremont 
Municipal Code titled Municipal Library; operation and funding (second reading) 

21. Ordinance 5527 to annex WholeStone Farms property (second reading)  

NEW BUSINESS: Requires individual associated action 

22. Motion to receive Fire Department Annual Report 

23. Mayor Getzschman item - approve additional expenditure for emergency dike at Rod and 
Gun Club 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Agenda posted at the Municipal Building on March 4, 2020 and online at www.fremontne.gov.  Agenda distributed to the Mayor 
and City Council on March 4, 2020. This meeting is preceded by publicized notice in the Fremont Tribune and the agenda, 
including notice of study session, is displayed in the Municipal Building and is open to the public The official current copy is 
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available at City Hall, 400 East Military, City Clerk’s Office.  The City Council reserves the right to go into Executive Session at 
any time.  A copy of the Open Meeting Law is posted in the City Council Chambers for review by the public.  The City of Fremont 
reserves the right to adjust the order of items on this agenda. 

 
§2-109 Audience / Participant; Rules of Conduct. 

The following rules are established for audience members and participants at a Council meeting: 
1. At the discretion of the presiding officer, any person may address the Council, on any agenda item; however, questions to 

City officials or staff, other speakers, or members of the audience are not permitted and will not be answered. 
2. Any person wishing to address the Council shall first state their name and address 
3. Remarks shall be limited to five minutes unless extended or limited by the Presiding Officer or majority vote of the Council. 
4. No person will be permitted to address the Council more than once during discussion of a particular agenda item. 

Rebuttal comments are not permitted. 

5. Repetitive or cumulative remarks may be limited or excluded by the Presiding Officer or majority vote of the Council. 
6. Profanity or raised voice is not permitted. 
7. Applause, booing, or other indications of support or displeasure with a speaker are not permitted. 
8. Any person violating these rules may be removed from the Council Chambers. 

 

The following additional rules are established and applicable for public participants at an Open Public Comment Period or Study 
Session meeting: 

9. At the direction of the presiding officer, Open Public Comment Period Speaker Topics will be limited to those not covered by a 
published agenda for any Study Session, or any regular City Council meeting. 

10. A priority to speak at Open Public Comment Periods and Study Session shall be given to those speakers who reside within the 
City limits, or within the ETJ (Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction – a two (2) mile radius of the City limits) of Fremont, and then, as time 
allows, to those who do not. 

11. Member of the public wishing to speak at a Study Session will be required to limit their comments to those that are directly 
related to the Publicly Noticed Study Session agenda topic(s). 

12. Written letters addressed to the City Council will be accepted, as will comment cards that will be made available and collected 
from those who attend Open Public Comment Period and Study Session meetings who do not wish to speak publicly, but have 
an issue or concern that they believe the Council should be made aware of. 

  

Page 3



STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Dave Goedeken, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer  
  Mark Vyhlidal, Street Superintendent 
 
DATE:  March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  Each year the City of Fremont Street Superintendent is required 
to draft One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan.  Attached is a copy of the 
Draft 2020 One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan for consideration.  In 
previous years the plan was approved and then sent to the NDOT for their 
consideration and files.  This was a requirement for our receipt of federal gas tax 
dollars.  The filing laws have been changed where the locals no longer submit 
plans to the state, but are still under the obligation to have a plan on file.  The 
City is subject to audit to assure we are meeting our obligation. 
  
This plan was submitted to the Fremont Utilities and Infrastructure Board for their 
review and comments on February 11, 2020.  The plan was approved with no 
additions or changes by a vote of 5:0. 
 
This plan was submitted to the Fremont Planning Commission for their review 
and comments on February 18, 2020.  The plan was approved with one addition 
by a vote of 6:0. Commissioner Landholm suggested we consider adding 16th 
Street from Broad to Bell as an overlay and rehab. project.  The project has been 
added to the One and Six Year Street Improvement Plan in the out years. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The plan does not obligate funds, nor authorize any specific 
project.  The Plan is intended as a transportation planning tool for the upcoming 
years.  Public Projects in the One Year Plan are already in the budget and C.I.P. 
that has been approved. 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation:  1:  Open Public Comments; 2: Receive Comments; 3:  Move 
to close Public Comments; 4:  Approve Resolution 2020-053. 
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1ST YEAR 2020

Luther Road South, Morningside to Samuel $375,000

Bell Street - Linden Avenue to 23rd Street $700,000

Johnson Road South, Jack Sutton Dr. to Morningside $1,200,000

Bell Street Viaduct-Cuming Street to South Base of Viaduct $750,000

Tech. Park, (29th Street and Lincoln Ave) $800,000

Diers Parkway and 23rd Street Traffic Signal $200,000

16th Street - Colson Avenue to Nye Avenue $55,000

Hwy 77, Southeast Beltway $40,000,000

Private Development 

Morningside Crossing Subdivision (Private Subdivision) $500,000

Sunridge Subdivision (Private Subdivision) $1,200,000

Brookes Hollow 2nd Addtion (Private Subdivision) $750,000

Country Club Estates Sixth Addition (Private Subdivision) $1,200,000

Hidden Brook Subdivision $400,000

                     TOTAL 1ST YEAR $48,130,000

2ND THROUGH 6TH YEAR 2021-2025

Rawhide Creek Trail $607,000

Broad Street (Hwy 77), 9th Street to North Viaduct $1,500,000

Garfield Street - 16th to 19th Street $400,000

Mayfair Avenue - 16th to 19th Street $400,000

Railroad Quiet Zone $1,100,000

Pierce Street - Military to Linden Avenue $600,000

32nd Street - Yager to Luther Road $1,300,000

Luther Road - Military to 23rd Street $2,000,000

1st Street - Bell Street to Luther Road $1,600,000

Military Avenue - Luther Road to US Highway 275 $1,510,000

20th Street - Nye Avenue to H Street $250,000

Reynolds Road - Clarkson to 2 Blocks East $250,000

Pierce Street and South Street $850,000

Westside Addition Street Paving $1,365,000

19th Street - Somers to Nye Avenue $110,000

23rd/Bell/Yager Intersection $10,000,000

Northwest Fremont to Hwy 30 Expressway $1,000,000

Clarkson, 6th Street to 23rd Street Overlay $1,200,000

1st Street, Bell Street to Main Street Overlay $1,200,000

Repair and Rehab. Traffic Signals on 23rd St Corridor $1,000,000

16th Street, Bell St. to Broad, Overlay $750,000

Repair Downtown Alleys $5,000,000

                     TOTAL 2ND THROUGH 6TH YEAR $33,992,000

1 & 6 YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (2020)

Page 5

Item No. 2.



PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2019

Pedestrian Signals (Phase II) $250,000

Rawhide Creek Bridge (North Somers Ave) $250,000

East Military Avenue - Grant to Clarmar Avenue $250,000

Broad Street (Hwy 77), Boulavard St to 5th St $750,000

Lincoln Park First Subdivision (Private Subdivision) $250,000

Morningside Pointe Subdivision (Private Subdivision) $1,000,000

                       TOTAL PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2020 $2,750,000
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RESOLUTION NO 2020-053 

 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, approving the 

2020 City of Fremont One Year-Six Year Street Improvement Plan 

 

WHEREAS, Nebraska Statutes requires each municipality to develop a one year plan of 

street improvements and a long range plan for an additional five years; and, 

WHEREAS, public comments were received on the contemplated street improvements 

for the coming year and succeeding five years. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL: That 

the project and plans as submitted by the Public Works Director and Street 

Superintendent and reviewed by Utilities and Infrastructure Board and Fremont 

Planning Commission, be adopted by the Fremont City Council as Fremont’s 2020 One 

Year-Six Year Street Improvement Plan and be kept on file in the City Offices. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF March, 2020 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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SD-704-18 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: David Goedeken, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
DATE: March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Sanitary Sewer District No. SD-704-18 
 
 

Recommendation: Move to Approve Resolution No. 2020-040 

 
 
Background:  
Consider Resolution to accept Itemized Statement of Cost, Complete Cost, tentative 
Schedule of Assessments and the set date of Board of Equalization for Sanitary Sewer 
District No. 704-18 located in the alley from 18th and 19th Street between Broad Street and 
Park Avenue. 
 
This item was approved by the Utilities and Infrastructure Board on February 11, 2020 by a 
5:0 vote. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
The final construction cost of the project is $65,953.69.  The cost of engineering and 
overhead is $7,817.87.  The total assessable cost for the Sanitary Sewer District No. 704-18 
project is $73,771.56. 
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Notice of Equalization 
Sanitary Sewer District No. 704-18 

NOTICE OF EQUALIZATION       PUBLISH DATES: 
SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18     March 11, 2020 
Fremont, Nebraska        March 25, 2020 
 
 
TO THE OWNERS OF ALL LOTS, LANDS, TRACTS AND PARCELS OF LAND ABUTTING 
AND ADJACENT TO:  
 
SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18. 
 

Said District comprises and includes the extension of sanitary sewer to beyond the existing 

system by the construction of sanitary sewer mains.  For the purpose of constructing said sanitary 

sewer mains, within said District, there shall be constructed in an 8-inch diameter sanitary sewer 

together with all necessary appurtenances in the alley in Block 25, Northside Addition, Fremont, 

Dodge County, Nebraska, extending from the centerline of 19th Street to the centerline of 18th 

Street.  The outer boundaries of said Sanitary Sewer District shall include all lots and lands lying 

east line of said alley a depth of 120.00 feet and lying west of the west line of said alley depth of 

varying from 109.75 to 116.41 feet, excepting Lot 1, and Lot 10 including all of Lots 2 through 9 

to the City of Fremont. 

 

Together with a statement and tentative calculation of the amounts chargeable according to 

benefits to each lot, part of lot, and piece of ground benefited in said district or project, and said 

statements and apportionments, being fair and reasonable shall be the proposed plan for the levy 

of special assessment; and that the Mayor and Council sit as a Board of Equalization in the 

Council Chambers in the Municipal Building, 400 East Military Avenue, Tuesday, April 14, 2020 

at the hour of 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and equalizing the proposed levy of special 

taxes and assessments now on file in the office of the City Clerk, correcting any errors therein 

and supplying any omissions in the same; and hearing any complaints that the owners of the 

property so to be assessed may make and for the purpose of making the levy aforesaid, the Mayor 

and Clerk are hereby authorized to give notice of this meeting according to law.   

 
 

Said Special Taxes and Assessments to pay the cost of sanitary sewer and paving in said district 

are hereby duly authorized to be made as follows: 
 

SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18 . . . . . . $73,771.56 
 

 

CITY OF FREMONT 

Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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Notice of Equalization 
Sanitary Sewer District No. 704-18 

NOTICE OF EQUALIZATION       PUBLISH DATES: 
SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18     February 26, 2020 
Fremont, Nebraska        March 11, 2020 
 
TO THE OWNERS OF ALL LOTS, LANDS, TRACTS AND PARCELS OF LAND ABUTTING 
AND ADJACENT TO:  
 
SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18. 
 

Said District comprises and includes the extension of sanitary sewer to beyond the existing 

system by the construction of sanitary sewer mains.  For the purpose of constructing said sanitary 

sewer mains, within said District, there shall be constructed in an 8-inch diameter sanitary sewer 

together with all necessary appurtenances in the alley in Block 25, Northside Addition, Fremont, 

Dodge County, Nebraska, extending from the centerline of 19th Street to the centerline of 18th 

Street.  The outer boundaries of said Sanitary Sewer District shall include all lots and lands lying 

east line of said alley a depth of 120.00 feet and lying west of the west line of said alley depth of 

varying from 109.75 to 116.41 feet, excepting Lot 1, and Lot 10 including all of Lots 2 through 9 

to the City of Fremont. 

 

Together with a statement and tentative calculation of the amounts chargeable according to 

benefits to each lot, part of lot, and piece of ground benefited in said district or project, and said 

statements and apportionments, being fair and reasonable shall be the proposed plan for the levy 

of special assessment; and that the Mayor and Council sit as a Board of Equalization in the 

Council Chambers in the Municipal Building, 400 East Military Avenue, Tuesday, March 24, 2020 

at the hour of 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and equalizing the proposed levy of special 

taxes and assessments now on file in the office of the City Clerk, correcting any errors therein 

and supplying any omissions in the same; and hearing any complaints that the owners of the 

property so to be assessed may make and for the purpose of making the levy aforesaid, the Mayor 

and Clerk are hereby authorized to give notice of this meeting according to law.   

 
 

Said Special Taxes and Assessments to pay the cost of sanitary sewer and paving in said district 

are hereby duly authorized to be made as follows: 
 

SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 704-18 . . . . . . $73,771.56 
 

 

CITY OF FREMONT 

Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-040 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to accept Itemized 

Statement of Cost, Complete Cost, Tentative Schedule of Assessments and set date of 

Board of Equalization for Sanitary Sewer District No. 704-18. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That the City of Fremont receive the statement of cost 

of the Improvements for the following District and Project. 

 

Sanitary Sewer District No. 704-18 

 

Said District comprises and includes the extension of sanitary sewer to beyond the existing 

system by the construction of sanitary sewer mains.  For the purpose of constructing said sanitary 

sewer mains, within said District, there shall be constructed an 8-inch diameter sanitary sewer 

together with all necessary appurtenances in the alley in Block 25, Northside Addition, Fremont, 

Dodge County, Nebraska, extending from the centerline of 19th Street to the centerline of 18th 

Street.  The outer boundaries of said Sanitary Sewer District shall include all lots and lands lying 

east of the east line of said alley a depth of 120.00 feet, and lying west of the west line of said 

alley a depth varying from 109.75 to 116.41 feet, excepting Lot 1 and Lot 10, including all of Lots 

2 through 9 to the City of Fremont. 

 

Together with a statement and tentative calculation of the amounts chargeable according to 

benefits to each lot, part of lot, and piece of ground benefited in said district or project, and said 

statements and apportionments, being fair and reasonable shall be the proposed plan for the levy 

of special assessment; and that the Mayor and Council sit as a Board of Equalization in the 

Council Chambers in the Municipal Building, 400 East Military Avenue, Tuesday, April 14, 2020 

at the hour of 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and equalizing the proposed levy of special 

taxes and assessments now on file in the office of the City Clerk, correcting any errors therein 

and supplying any omissions in the same; and hearing any complaints that the owners of the 

property so to be assessed may make and for the purpose of making the levy aforesaid, the Mayor 

and Clerk are hereby authorized to give notice of this meeting according to law.   

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10TH DAY OF MARCH 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Fremont, Nebraska 
Fremont, Nebraska 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fremont, Nebraska 
(the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fremont, Nebraska as of September 30, 2019, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements.  The non-major governmental funds combining statements 
as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements.  The non-major governmental funds combining statements are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  In our opinion, the non-major governmental funds combining statements are fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated March 6, 2020, 
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Omaha, Nebraska 
March 6, 2020 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

 
As management of the City of Fremont, Nebraska (the “City” or “City of Fremont”) we offer readers of the 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Fremont for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets of the City of Fremont exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year 
by $285,998,189 (net position). Of this amount, $84,177,508 (unrestricted net position) may be 
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Fremont governmental activities reported 
combined ending net position of $105,560,919.  Approximately 23.2 percent of this total amount, 
$24,537,809 is unrestricted net position. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$14,880,887, or 78.1 percent of total General Fund expenditures. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fremont’s basic financial 
statements. The City of Fremont’s basic financial statements comprise three components:   1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report 
also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Fremont’s finances in a manner similar to a private-
sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information about the City of Fremont’s assets, deferred outflow of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position 
of the City of Fremont is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).   
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Fremont that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Fremont include general government, 
public safety, highways and streets, economic development and culture and recreation.    The business-
type activities of the City of Fremont include the Electric, Water, Sewer and Gas activities.  
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report. 
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Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City of Fremont, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City of Fremont can be divided into two categories:  
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers 
may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities.   
 
The City of Fremont maintains 16 individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Street Fund, and the Sales Tax Fund, all of which 
are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 13 governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided 
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.  
 
The City of Fremont adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the General, Street, and Sales Tax Funds to demonstrate 
compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 - 18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  The City of Fremont maintains two different types of proprietary funds.  Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  The City of Fremont uses enterprise funds to account for its Electric, Water, Sewer, 
and Gas Funds.  Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the City of Fremont’s various functions.   
 
The City of Fremont uses internal service funds to account for its employee health insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance, and employee wellness fund.  Because this service predominantly benefits 
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Electric, 
Water, Sewer, and Gas Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of Fremont.   
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 - 22 of this report. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 52 of this report. Page 23
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Other Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Fremont’s budgetary 
comparison schedules.  Required supplementary information can be found on pages 53 - 57 of this report. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining fund statements can 
be found on pages 58 - 62 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of the City of Fremont, assets exceeded liabilities by $286,998,189 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year. 
 

September 30, 2019 September 30, 2018
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and Other Assets 54,582,337$   89,644,686$   144,227,023$ 60,867,062$   43,836,373$   104,703,435$ 
Capital Assets 57,783,344     207,038,095   264,821,439   58,118,923     202,738,011   260,856,934   
Deferred Outflow  of Resources 3,687              125,093          128,780          4,226              143,594          147,820          

112,369,368   296,807,874   409,177,242   118,990,211   246,717,978   365,708,189   

Long-term Liabilities 3,245,961       96,014,446     99,260,407     3,601,223       59,441,417     63,042,640     
Other Liabilities 3,562,488       20,355,574     23,918,062     3,140,997       17,462,832     20,603,829     
Deferred Inflow  of Resources -                584                 584                 -                751                 751                 

6,808,449       116,370,604   123,179,053   6,742,220       76,905,000     83,647,220     

Net Position:  
Net Investment 
in Capital Assets 54,014,482     108,717,155   162,731,637   54,260,234     132,830,554   187,090,788   

Restricted
Expendable 26,883,628     12,080,416     38,964,044     37,270,491     9,181,397       46,451,888     
Nonexpendable 125,000          -                125,000          125,000          -                125,000          

Unrestricted 24,537,809     59,639,699     84,177,508     20,592,266     27,801,027     48,393,293     
Total Net Position 105,560,919$ 180,437,270$ 285,998,189$ 112,247,991$ 169,812,978$ 282,060,969$ 

Total Assets and
   Deferred Outf low s

Total Liabilities and
   Deferred Inflow s

Statement of Net Position

 
 
The largest portion of the City of Fremont’s net position (56.9 percent) reflects its net investment in capital 
assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, vehicles and equipment); less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City of Fremont uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City of 
Fremont’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of the City of Fremont’s net position (13.7 percent) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
($84,177,508) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.   
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Fremont is able to report positive balances in both categories 
of net position, both for the government as a whole and for its separate governmental and business-type 
activities. 
 Page 24
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Governmental Activities.  Net position decreased $6,687,072 in the governmental activities during the 
year ended September 30, 2019, reducing total growth in the City’s net position by 170 percent for the year 
ended September 30, 2019.  Key elements of this change in net position are as follows: 

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Program Program Program Program

Function Revenues Expenses Revenues Expenses

General government 1,473,682$  6,697,509$      1,755,789$  4,816,845$         
Public safety 1,664,030    9,141,801        1,714,721    9,256,898           
Public works 1,829,748    17,808,023      3,306,655    3,207,770           
Environment and leisure 1,338,402    3,420,616        606,024      3,442,184           
Non-departmental -            305,399           -            305,538             
Interest -            70,767             -            92,846               
     Total 6,305,862$  37,444,115$     7,383,189$  21,122,081$       

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2018

 

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Year Ended September 30, 2019 Year Ended September 30, 2018

Charges for services 3,992,809$    12.03     % 3,927,048$     12.38      %
Operating grants and contributions 1,554,034      4.68       1,367,871        4.31        
Capital grants and contributions 759,019          2.29       2,088,270        6.59        
Property taxes 6,864,240      20.68     6,143,230        19.37      
Motor vehicle taxes 592,991          1.79       560,088           1.77        
Sales tax 7,986,402      24.06     7,236,366        22.82      
Payments in lieu of taxes 13,927            0.04       12,921             0.04        
Franchise taxes 296,155          0.89       219,625           0.69        
Other taxes 1,926,030      5.80       1,765,335        5.57        
State allocation 4,087,182      12.31     3,847,928        12.13      
Keno 758,810          2.29       685,501           2.16        
Special assessments 48,196            0.15       248,251           0.78        
Miscellaneous 56,126            0.17       33,783             0.11        
Interest 865,729          2.61       563,787           1.78        
Gain on sale of assets 286,427          0.86       80,537             0.25        
Transfer from other funds 3,111,857      9.35       2,930,844        9.25        
     Total 33,199,934$  100.00  % 31,711,385$   100.00   %

Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities.  Business-type activities increased the City of Fremont’s net position by 
$10,624,292, accounting for total growth of 270 percent of the total growth in the government’s net position 
for the year ended September 30, 2019. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2019 Year Ended September 30, 2018

 Program Program  Program Program

Function Revenues Expenses Revenues Expenses

Electric 45,568,896$     38,260,959$     43,298,219$     34,980,045$     
Water 4,960,493         3,399,779         3,817,532         3,115,748         
Sewer 8,701,918         6,041,006         6,315,110         4,610,751         
Gas 14,964,928       13,651,329       14,195,339       13,026,547       

        Total 74,196,235$     61,353,073$     67,626,200$     55,733,091$     

Expenses and Program Revenues – Business-type Activities

 
 

SOURCES OF REVENUE

Charges for services 70,862,710$   98.45   % 66,828,234$     102.70  %
Operating grants and contributi 29,080           0.04     311,226           0.48      
Capital grants and contributions 3,304,445      4.59     486,740           0.75      
Interest 918,915         1.28     459,625           0.71      
Loss on sale of assets (25,928)          (0.04)    (90,217)            (0.14)     
Transfer to other funds (3,111,857)     (4.32)    (2,930,844)       (4.50)     
     Total 71,977,365$   100.00  % 65,064,764$     100.00  %

Revenues by Source – Business-type Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2019 Year Ended September 30, 2018

 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 

As noted earlier, the City of Fremont uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 

Governmental Funds.  The focus of the City of Fremont’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 
the City of Fremont’s financing requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Fremont’s governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $45,279,962. Approximately 32.3 percent of this total amount ($14,617,501) constitutes 
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.  The remainder 
of fund balance is not available for new spending because it has already been 1) restricted for debt service 
($130,878), 2) restricted for street improvements ($9,746,156), 3) restricted for public safety ($2,264,714), 
4) restricted for infrastructure ($1,273,260), 5) restricted for property tax relief ($958,930), 6) restricted for 
economic development ($7,995,470), 7) restricted for a variety of capital/special projects ($2,453,151), 8) 
restricted for Federal programs ($904,493), 9) restricted for community betterment ($624,497), 10) 
committed for code enforcement/defense ($1,393,950), 11) committed for capital improvement projects 
($2,684,373), 12) assigned for downtown improvement projects ($57,467), 13) endowed as non-spendable 
principal ($125,000), or 14) non-spendable prepaid expense ($50,122). 
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Fremont.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $14,880,887. As a measure of the General Fund’s 
liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unassigned fund 
balance represents 78.1 percent of total General Fund expenditures.   
 
The fund balance of the City of Fremont’s General Fund increased by $2,452,228, during the current fiscal 
year, which was approximately $5,540,670 more than was budgeted.  The increase was predominantly due 
to four main capital projects, using bond proceeds of $6,000,000 and reserves of $3,660,000 not completed 
during the fiscal year.  Other factors include higher than expected interest income by $292,000, and 
expenditure savings that included $520,000 in personal services, offset by deficits of -$184,000 in 
contractual services , -$49,700 in commodities.  These deficits are related to a significant flooding event 
that occurred along the southern portion of the City March 15-18, 2019.  Emergency protective measures 
were performed, but several city facilities were damaged, as well as some equipment.  The City estimates 
$1,200,000 of costs were incurred prior to September 30 and expects that insurance and Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) funds will reimburse 75% of approved costs. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  The City of Fremont’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds at the end of the year were as follows: Electric Fund - 
$39,382,205, Water Fund - $3,523,547, Sewer Fund - $10,407,156, and Gas Fund - $6,326,791.  The 
change in net position for the proprietary funds was as follows:  Electric Fund - $5,256,903, Water Fund - 
$1,487,724, Sewer Fund - $2,851,651, and Gas Fund - $1,028,014.  The increase in the Electric Fund net 
position was attributable to a four percent rate increase in the electric fund, increased off system sales and 
a number of projects that included capitalized costs, and salary savings.  The increase in the Sewer Fund 
was attributable to additional charges to industrial customers based on concentration of waste.  The March 
2019 flooding event previously reported caused $320,000 damage to utility infrastructure and the City 
expects that insurance and FEMA funds will reimburse 75% of approved costs.  Other factors concerning 
the finances of these four funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Fremont’s 
business-type activities. 
 
Budgetary Highlights 
 
There was no difference between the original budget and the final adopted budget for the City of Fremont.   
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets.  The City of Fremont’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2019, amounts to $264,821,439 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This 
investment in capital assets includes land, building and system improvements, machinery and equipment, 
park facilities, roads, highways and bridges.   
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

Significant items placed in service during the current year at their installed values: 
 Air Quality Control System - $53,508,198 
 Electric distribution system improvements - $7,284,079 
 Sewer system improvements - $4,664,026 
 Gas system improvements - $3,111,281 
 Water system improvements - $1,630,434 
 Solar Farm #2 - $1,129,118 
 Pedestrian Signal Replacements - $614,574 Page 27
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 2019 SWX525 Shuttle wagon - $536,021 
 Electric transmission system improvements - $471,843 
 LDW Pole Storage Building - $435,943 
 CAT 972M Wheel Loader - $380,005 
 2019 Braun Super Chief Int’l Ambulance - $311,044 
 Somers Ave Bridge Box Culvert - $283,172 
 2019 Freightliner Bucket Truck - $247,498 
 Fountain Springs 2nd Addition - $232,750 
 Unit 8 Turbine Controls - $220,445 

Significant additions to Construction in Progress for continuing projects, with the current year 
expenditures noted: 
 Wastewater treatment plant upgrades - $17,766,839 
 Honeywell Controls Hardware Refresh – $357,459 
 Gallery 23 new gas main - $336,173 
 Electric SCADA Control System - $323,913 
 City Auditorium Remodel - $271,084 
 Water Production SCADA upgrade - $265,093 
 Johnson Road South Paving - $263,718 
 Airport Aircraft Apron - $224,279 
 Gallery 23 Electric extension - $210,887 
 Wellfield chemical feed building - $209,292 

Year Ended September 30, 2019 Year Ended September 30, 2018

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Land 7,390,582$   5,052,174$       12,442,756$    7,645,108$      5,154,314$       12,799,422$    

Construction in Progress 8,788,104     31,162,714       39,950,818     8,995,063       39,062,238       48,057,301     

Infrastructure 28,787,752   -                 28,787,752     28,324,690      -                 28,324,690     

Buildings and Improvements 7,978,403     -                 7,978,403       8,040,528       -                 8,040,528       

Machinery and Equipment 4,838,503     5,118,059         9,956,562       5,113,534       4,801,858         9,915,392       

Distribution Systems, 

Buildings, and Equipment -             162,727,247      162,727,247    -               151,023,545      151,023,545    

Office Furniture 

and Equipment -             301,119            301,119          -               375,231            375,231          

Vehicles -             2,676,782         2,676,782       -               2,320,825         2,320,825       

Total 57,783,344$  207,038,095$    264,821,439$  58,118,923$    202,738,011$    260,856,934$  

City of Fremont's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)

 
 
Additional information on the City of Fremont’s capital assets can be found in Note C4 on pages 41 - 43 
of this report. 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Fremont had total bonded debt, notes, 
and capital leases payable (excluding TIF bonds payable) outstanding of $103,015,372. 
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      City of Fremont's Outstanding Debt

Year Ended September 30, 2019 Year Ended September 30, 2018

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

General Obligation Bonds 2,185,000$     -$               2,185,000$      2,485,000$    -$            2,485,000$     

Revenue Bonds -                99,900,031       99,900,031      -              60,825,000   60,825,000     

Capital leases payable 930,341          -                 930,341           1,146,453      -              1,146,453       

        Total 3,115,341$     99,900,031$     103,015,372$  3,631,453$    60,825,000$ 64,456,453$   
 

 
The City of Fremont’s total debt increased by $38,558,919 (59.8 percent).  The City issued $40,000,000 in 
bonded indebtedness to finance the City’s portion of a transmission line with Omaha Public Power District 
and certain wastewater treatment plant improvements. 
 
The City of Fremont maintains an AA(-) bond rating.   
 
Additional information on the City of Fremont’s long-term debt can be found in Note C6 on pages 44 - 46 
of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

 The City is in the first year of the two-year budget for 2020 and 2021.  

 Property tax assessment for the year ending September 30, 2020 is $6,417,799, which is the same 
as the assessment for the year ended September 30, 2019.  In prior years, the City Council had 
imposed property taxes in anticipation of the costs related to defending and implementing a citizen-
initiated ordinance.  Litigation has been resolved leaving a balance of unspent funds.   This unspent 
balance has been committed by the City Council for enforcement and capital improvements at the 
Police Station.  The City Council committed $1,393,950 at September 30, 2019 for this purpose.  
In addition, the Council also committed $2,684,373 for capital improvement projects. 

 A large employer and utility customer completed construction of facilities with an estimated value 
of $93,300,000 that will provide 800-1,100 jobs and significantly increase utility volumes beginning 
in late 2019.  The Capital Improvement Plan includes wastewater treatment improvements, 
including anaerobic lagoons.  This is a tax increment financing (TIF) project, so no additional 
property tax receipts are expected for the duration of the TIF period. 

 The City has budgeted and expects to make significant expenditures for the following capital 
projects during the next two fiscal years, (expenditures for smaller capital projects will be dependent 
upon actual revenues remaining within budgeted levels, while larger projects will be financed with 
a combination of long-term debt, cash reserves and private funding): 

 
- Waste water treatment plant improvements - $17,000,000 
- Additional wells - $7,000,000 over two years 
- Coal handling modifications - $2,900,000 
- Joint project with the Nebraska Department of Transportation for a beltway joining 

US Hwy 275 and US Hwy 77 to the southeast of the City.  The City’s final 
contribution of $6,660,000 of the City’s share of $20,000,000 is included in the 
2020 budget. 

- Joint Law Enforcement Center, $11,200,000 over three years. 
- Multi Use Building for Streets and Park - $8,000,000. 
- Various citywide paving and resurfacing projects - $5,521,000 
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- Two separate ballot initiatives passed during 2019 requesting the use 
of GO Bonds of $2,000,000 each to finance: 

 Library expansion - $11,830,000 
 City Auditorium renovation - $3,500,000 

- Airport terminal - $2,000,000 
 

 The City Council approved a three percent increase in rates for the Electric Fund 
effective November 2019, and another three percent increase effective November 2021.  
The City Council also approved an increase in Sewer Fund rates by 8.7 percent in 
effective November 2019 and another 5.1 percent increase effective November 2021 to 
meet debt service requirements on the wastewater treatment plant improvements. 

 
All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Fremont’s budget for the 2020 and 2021 fiscal 
year. 
 
Request for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Fremont’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, City 
of Fremont, 400 E. Military Avenue, Fremont, NE  68025. 
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Primary Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 23,200,669$   20,959,320$   44,159,989$   
Investments 24,485,000     11,525,385     36,010,385     
County treasurer cash 207,437          -              207,437         
Receivables:

Special assessments 392,707          -              392,707         
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 517,837          3,178,577      3,696,414      
Unbilled revenue -               3,860,810      3,860,810      
Interest 308,297          475,868         784,165         
Property tax 207,760          -              207,760         
Business tax 223,797          -              223,797         
Other tax 318,385          -              318,385         

Receivable (payable) to other funds (46,570)          46,570           -              
Due from other governments 1,725,550       455,548         2,181,098      
Inventory -               10,771,652     10,771,652     
Prepaid expenses 50,122           196,409         246,531         

Total current assets 51,590,991     51,470,139     103,061,130   
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents -               6,621,362      6,621,362      
Restricted investments -               12,045,615     12,045,615     
TIF notes receivable 225,398          -              225,398         
Notes receivable, net of allowance 2,765,948       -              2,765,948      
Regulatory assets -               19,507,570     19,507,570     
Capital assets:

Land 7,390,582       5,052,174      12,442,756     
Construction in progress 8,788,104       31,162,714     39,950,818     
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 41,604,658     170,823,207   212,427,865   

Net capital assets 57,783,344     207,038,095   264,821,439   
Total noncurrent assets 60,774,690     245,212,642   305,987,332   
Total assets 112,365,681   296,682,781   409,048,462   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on bond refundings 3,687             125,093         128,780         

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,687             125,093         128,780         
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,247,823       11,714,828     12,962,651     
Claims liability 592,570          9,168             601,738         
Accrued expenses 489,690          2,043,059      2,532,749      
Due to other governments 2,751             -              2,751             
Unearned revenues 6,600             332,587         339,187         
Customer deposits 25,545           686,828         712,373         
Current portion of compensated absences 670,000          714,104         1,384,104      
Current portion of long-term debt 527,509          4,855,000      5,382,509      

Total current liabilities 3,562,488       20,355,574     23,918,062     
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 658,129          814,691         1,472,820      
Fly ash liability/closure costs payable -               154,724         154,724         
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 2,587,832       95,045,031     97,632,863     

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,245,961       96,014,446     99,260,407     
Total liabilities 6,808,449       116,370,020   123,178,469   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred gain on bond refundings -               584               584               

Total deferred inflows of resources -               584               584               
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 54,014,482     108,717,155   162,731,637   
Restricted for:

Debt service 130,878          11,235,140     11,366,018     
Fly ash disposal -               845,276         845,276         
Street improvements 9,782,142       -              9,782,142      
Federal grant programs 902,037          -              902,037         
Other purposes

Expendable 16,068,571     -              16,068,571     
Non expendable 125,000          -              125,000         

Unrestricted 24,537,809     59,639,699     84,177,508     
Total net position 105,560,919$  180,437,270$ 285,998,189$ 

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government 6,697,509$         1,410,170$        63,512$              -$               (5,223,827)$        -$               (5,223,827)$     
Public safety 9,141,801           1,506,836          157,194              -                 (7,477,771)          -                 (7,477,771)       
Public works 17,808,023         593,316            649,448              586,984            (15,978,275)        -                 (15,978,275)     
Environment and leisure 3,420,616           482,487            683,880              172,035            (2,082,214)          -                 (2,082,214)       
Non-departmental 305,399             -                  -                   -                 (305,399)             -                 (305,399)          
Interest on long-term debt 70,767               -                  -                   -                 (70,767)              -                 (70,767)            
Depreciation and amortization 2,442,891           -                  -                   -                 (2,442,891)          -                 (2,442,891)       

Total governmental activities 39,887,006         3,992,809          1,554,034           759,019            (33,581,144)        -                 (33,581,144)     

Business-type activities:
Electric 38,260,959         45,539,816        29,080                -                 -                   7,307,937         7,307,937        
Water 3,399,779           4,142,756          -                   817,737            -                   1,560,714         1,560,714        
Sewer 6,041,006           6,215,210          -                   2,486,708         -                   2,660,912         2,660,912        
Gas 13,651,329         14,964,928        -                   -                 -                   1,313,599         1,313,599        

Total business-type activities 61,353,073         70,862,710        29,080                3,304,445         -                   12,843,162       12,843,162      

Total primary government 101,240,079$     74,855,519$      1,583,114$         4,063,464$       (33,581,144)$      12,843,162$     (20,737,982)$    

General revenues:
  Taxes:
     Property 6,864,240           -                 6,864,240        
     Motor vehicle 592,991              -                 592,991           
     Sales tax 7,986,402           -                 7,986,402        
     Payments in lieu of taxes 13,927               -                 13,927             
     Franchise 296,155              -                 296,155           
     Other taxes 1,926,030           -                 1,926,030        
  State allocation 4,087,182           -                 4,087,182        
  Keno 758,810              -                 758,810           
  Special assessments 48,196               -                 48,196             
  Miscellaneous 56,126               -                 56,126             
  Interest income 865,729              918,915           1,784,644        
  Gain (loss) on sale of assets 286,427              (25,928)            260,499           
  Transfer (to) from other funds 3,111,857           (3,111,857)        -                
        Total general revenues 26,894,072         (2,218,870)        24,675,202      
        Change in net position (6,687,072)          10,624,292       3,937,220        

Net position - September 30, 2018 112,247,991       169,812,978     282,060,969     

Net position - September 30, 2019 105,560,919$      180,437,270$   285,998,189$   

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net PositionProgram Revenues

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Other Total
Sales Governmental Governmental

General Street Tax Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6,674,816$    3,779,400$      7,319,024$        2,249,291$ 20,022,531$  
Investments 11,675,000    4,100,000        3,000,000         2,210,000   20,985,000    
County treasurer cash 149,019         49,049            -                 9,369         207,437        
Receivables:

Special assessments 27,765          26,345            -                 338,597      392,707        
Accounts, net of allowance 

for doubtful accounts 470,980         11,406            -                 35,453        517,839        
Notes receivable, net of allowance

for doubtful accounts -              -                 1,678,196         1,087,752   2,765,948     
Interest 169,840         48,097            20,365              49,095        287,397        
Property tax 182,482         -                 -                 25,278        207,760        
Business tax 198,024         -                 -                 25,773        223,797        
Other tax -              318,385          -                 -           318,385        
TIF notes receivable -              -                -                 225,398      225,398        

Due from other governments 35,265          -                1,460,239         230,046      1,725,550     
Due from other funds 879,051         258,730          126,898            101,829      1,366,508     
Prepaid expenses 50,122          -                -                 -           50,122          

Total assets 20,512,364$  8,591,412$      13,604,722$      6,587,881$ 49,296,379$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 600,223$       370,540$         122$                 88,269$      1,059,154$    
Accrued expenses 404,795         57,919            -                 26,976        489,690        
Due to other governments 2,751            -                -                 -           2,751            
Due to other funds 135,173         4,230              504,972            768,705      1,413,080     
Customer deposits 25,545          -                -                 6,600         32,145          

Total liabilities 1,168,487      432,689          505,094            890,550      2,996,820     
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 129,803         -                -                 21,955        151,758        
Unavailable revenue - other local taxes 27,765          26,345            -                 210,035      264,145        
Unavailable revenue - fees and other 176,977         9,641              -                 417,076      603,694        

Total deferred inflows 334,545         35,986            -                 649,066      1,019,597     
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal -              -                -                 125,000      125,000        
Prepaid expenses 50,122          -                -                 -           50,122          

Restricted for:
Debt service -              -                -                 130,878      130,878        
Street improvements -              8,122,737        1,623,419         -           9,746,156     
Public safety -              -                1,897,536         367,178      2,264,714     
Infrastructure -              -                1,273,260         -           1,273,260     
Property tax relief -              -                958,930            -           958,930        
Economic development 7,346,483         648,987      7,995,470     
Capital/special projects -              -                -                 2,453,151   2,453,151     
Federal programs -              -                -                 904,493      904,493        
Community betterment -              -                -                 624,497      624,497        

Committed for:
Code enforcement/defense 1,393,950      -                -                 -           1,393,950     
Capital improvement projects 2,684,373      -                -                 -           2,684,373     

Assigned for:
Other -              -                -                 57,467        57,467          

Unassigned 14,880,887    -                -                 (263,386)     14,617,501    
Total fund balances 19,009,332    8,122,737        13,099,628        5,048,265   45,279,962    

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources and fund balances 20,512,364$  8,591,412$      13,604,722$      6,587,881$ 49,296,379$  

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Total fund balances - governmental funds 45,279,962$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds.  The cost of the assets is $88,987,362,
and the accumulated depreciation is $31,204,018. 57,783,344        

Deferred amounts on bond refundings are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 3,687                

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the 
costs of certain activities, such as insurance, to individual
funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position. 5,917,799          

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds but are deferred. 1,019,597          

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, 
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported as liabilities in the funds.  Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:

Compensated absences (1,328,129)$    
Bonds and lease payable (3,115,341)      (4,443,470)         

Total net position - governmental activities 105,560,919$    

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET -
 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Page 34

Item No. 5.



 

See notes to financial statements 
17 

Other Total
Sales Governmental Governmental

General Street Tax Funds Funds
REVENUES

Taxes:
Property 6,063,717$   -$              -$           775,573$      6,839,290$   
Motor vehicle -             592,991          -             -             592,991       
Sales tax -             -                7,986,402     -             7,986,402     
Payments in lieu of taxes 12,637         -                -             786              13,423         
Franchise 290,312       -                -             -             290,312       
Occupation 1,809,748     -                -             116,282       1,926,030     

Intergovernmental 1,743,325     3,740,706        -             1,180,633     6,664,664     
Keno -             -                -             758,810       758,810       
Charges for services 3,091,748     37,482            12,237         259,807       3,401,274     
Donations 13,330         -                -             4,075           17,405         
Interest income 416,516       167,399          300,163       117,228       1,001,306     
Other income 366,831       4,107              326,813       1,680           699,431       

Total revenues 13,808,164   4,542,685        8,625,615     3,214,874     30,191,338   

EXPENDITURES
General government 5,620,652     -                1,463,682     842,460       7,926,794     
Public safety 8,806,242     -                142,966       1,007,979     9,957,187     
Public works 462,290       17,620,277      17               68,544         18,151,128   
Environment and leisure 3,599,689     -                -             574,050       4,173,739     
Employee insurance 305,399       -                -             -             305,399       
Principal payments on debt 216,113       -                -             300,000       516,113       
Interest on long-term debt 33,935         -                -             42,715         76,650         

Total expenditures 19,044,320   17,620,277      1,606,665     2,835,748     41,107,010   

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (5,236,156)    (13,077,592)     7,018,950     379,126       (10,915,672)  

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 7,701,783     12,581,966      -             112,937       20,396,686   
Transfers out (13,399)        -                (16,847,467)  (423,963)      (17,284,829)  

Net other sources and uses 7,688,384     12,581,966      (16,847,467)  (311,026)      3,111,857     

Net change in fund balances 2,452,228     (495,626)         (9,828,517)    68,100         (7,803,815)    

Fund balances - September 30, 2018 16,557,104   8,618,363        22,928,145   4,980,165     53,083,777   

Fund balances - September 30, 2019 19,009,332$ 8,122,737$      13,099,628$ 5,048,265$   45,279,962$ 

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (7,803,815)$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.  
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets 
are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded 
capitalized capital outlay in the period. (566,062)           

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving 
capital assets (contributions, disposals, etc.). 230,483            

Deferred outflows of resources relating to loss on refundings of long-
term debt are not current financial resources, and therefore, the
amortization of these deferred outflows are not reported as
expenditures in the funds. (540)                 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.  The net
revenue (expense) of the Internal Service Fund is reported with
governmental activities in the statement of activities. 1,314,506         

The change in noncurrent compensated absences is reported as an
expense in the statement of net assets.  Noncurrent compensated
absences are not reported in the governmental funds. (42,246)            

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.  This
is the change in deferred inflows in the governmental funds.            (335,511)

Repayment of long-term debt, net of debt refunding proceeds and payments,

of long-term debt and related items. 516,113            

Change in net position of governmental activities (6,687,072)$      

is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Enterprise Funds Internal
Electric Water Sewer Gas Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 11,356,468$   2,807,631$     4,081,762$   2,713,459$   20,959,320$   3,178,138$      
Investments 4,052,831      -               5,972,554     1,500,000     11,525,385     3,500,000       
Receivables:

Accounts, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts 2,235,522      353,183          244,308        345,564        3,178,577       -               

Unbilled revenue 2,546,946      294,893          509,890        509,081        3,860,810       -               
Due from other funds 234,147         6,040             3,253           6,994           250,434          -               
Due from other governments 455,548         -               -             -             455,548          -               
Interest 218,993         25,186            201,390        30,299          475,868          20,900            

Inventory 9,186,752      263,482          129,554        1,191,864     10,771,652     -               
Prepaid expenses 106,622         21,691            21,691          46,405          196,409          -               

Total current assets 30,393,829    3,772,106       11,164,402   6,343,666     51,674,003     6,699,038       
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,665,677      34,801            4,920,884     -             6,621,362       -               
Restricted investments 8,775,669      875,000          2,394,946     -             12,045,615     -               
Regulatory assets 18,694,595    -               -             812,975        19,507,570     -               
Capital assets:

Land 2,003,254      1,890,618       1,041,962     116,340        5,052,174       -               
Construction in progress 1,647,800      790,126          28,062,026   662,762        31,162,714     -               
Depreciable capital assets 220,768,945   42,264,088     57,747,870   19,610,467   340,391,370   -               
Less accumulated depreciation (110,254,738)  (19,142,124)    (28,515,660)  (11,655,641)  (169,568,163)  -               

Net capital assets 114,165,261   25,802,708     58,336,198   8,733,928     207,038,095   -               
Total noncurrent assets 143,301,202   26,712,509     65,652,028   9,546,903     245,212,642   -               
Total assets 173,695,031   30,484,615     76,816,430   15,890,569   296,886,645   6,699,038       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on bond refundings 93,040           19,724            12,329          -             125,093          -               

Total deferred outflows of resources 93,040           19,724            12,329          -             125,093          -               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,347,970      205,117          4,592,209     569,532        11,714,828     188,669          
Due to other funds 117,416         40,390            25,861          20,197          203,864          -               
Accrued payroll 411,790         29,026            45,331          44,546          530,693          -               
Compensated absences - short term 534,972         20,352            80,097          78,683          714,104          -               
Sales tax payable 334,375         7,256             -             445              342,076          -               
Accrued interest payable 664,849         27,506            477,935        -             1,170,290       -               
Unearned revenue 332,587         -               -             -             332,587          -               
Customer deposits 685,797         1,031             -             -             686,828          -               
Claims liability 9,168            -               -             -             9,168             592,570          
Current portion of 

long-term obligations 2,907,048      737,412          1,210,540     -             4,855,000       -               
Total current liabilities 12,345,972    1,068,090       6,431,973     713,403        20,559,438     781,239          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Fly ash liability 154,724         -               -             -             154,724          -               
Compensated absences - long term 571,465         8,122             57,598          177,506        814,691          -               
Noncurrent portion of 

long-term obligations 59,390,750    3,760,329       31,893,952   -             95,045,031     -               
Total noncurrent liabilities 60,116,939    3,768,451       31,951,550   177,506        96,014,446     -               
Total liabilities 72,462,911    4,836,541       38,383,523   890,909        116,573,884   781,239          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred gain on bond refundings 227               229                128              -             584                -               

Total deferred inflows of resources 227               229                128              -             584                -               
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 53,167,059    21,234,221     25,643,006   8,672,869     108,717,155   -               
Restricted for:

Debt service 7,930,393      909,801          2,394,946     -             11,235,140     -               
Fly ash disposal 845,276         -               -             -             845,276          -               

Unrestricted 39,382,205    3,523,547       10,407,156   6,326,791     59,639,699     5,917,799       
Total net position 101,324,933$ 25,667,569$    38,445,108$  14,999,660$  180,437,270$  5,917,799$      

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Internal
Electric Water Sewer Gas Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 45,281,260$    4,097,456$   6,168,940$   14,964,928$  70,512,584$    5,500,162$  
Contributions from other funds -               -             -             -             -               1,690,878    
Other revenue 258,556          45,300          46,270          -             350,126          -            

Total operating revenues 45,539,816     4,142,756     6,215,210     14,964,928   70,862,710     7,191,040    

Operating expenses:
Cost of power/gas 5,034,467       -             -             10,414,120   15,448,587     -            
Production 19,761,937     872,705        2,022,429     -             22,657,071     -            
Distribution 3,693,047       753,926        546,398        1,471,626     6,464,997       -            
Customer accounting and collections 1,911,340       636,017        648,186        1,245,474     4,441,017       -            
Administrative and general 4,725             975              809              -             6,509             3,722          
Employee insurance -               -             -             -             -               5,212,126    
Workers' compensation -               -             -             -             -               726,335       
Depreciation 5,582,815       1,015,473     1,645,049     520,109        8,763,446       -            

Total operating expenses 35,988,331     3,279,096     4,862,871     13,651,329   57,781,627     5,942,183    

Operating income 9,551,485       863,660        1,352,339     1,313,599     13,081,083     1,248,857    

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 384,053          29,464          442,492        62,906          918,915          65,649         
Interest expense (2,272,628)      (120,683)       (1,178,135)    -             (3,571,446)      -            
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 5,132             -             -             (31,060)         (25,928)           -            
Grant revenue 29,080            -             15,535          -             44,615            -            

Total nonoperating revenues 
   (expenses) (1,854,363)      (91,219)         (720,108)       31,846          (2,633,844)      65,649         

Income before net contributed
  capital and interfund transfers 7,697,122       772,441        632,231        1,345,445     10,447,239     1,314,506    

Contributed capital (CC) 225,370          883,537        6,403,564     65,800          7,578,271       -            
Cost recovered through CC (225,370)         (65,800)         (3,932,391)    (65,800)         (4,289,361)      -            
Transfer from other funds 13,399            129,347        103,668        -             246,414          -            
Transfer to other funds (2,453,618)      (231,801)       (355,421)       (317,431)       (3,358,271)      -            

Net CC and transfers (2,440,219)      715,283        2,219,420     (317,431)       177,053          -            

Change in net position 5,256,903       1,487,724     2,851,651     1,028,014     10,624,292     1,314,506    

Net position - September 30, 2018 96,068,030     24,179,845   35,593,457   13,971,646   169,812,978    4,603,293    

Net position - September 30, 2019 101,324,933$  25,667,569$  38,445,108$  14,999,660$  180,437,270$  5,917,799$  

Enterprise Funds

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Internal
Electric Water Sewer Gas Service

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 46,157,190$      4,083,685$      6,114,753$       14,948,841$     71,304,469$     5,500,260$    
Receipts from other funds -                 -                -                 -                 -                 1,690,878      
Payments to suppliers (16,199,354)       (1,337,611)       (1,886,488)        (11,972,223)      (31,395,676)      (5,605,780)     
Payments to employees (11,612,714)       (897,435)          (1,336,966)        (1,163,212)        (15,010,327)      -              

Net cash provided by operating activities 18,345,122        1,848,639        2,891,299         1,813,406         24,898,466       1,585,358      

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from other funds 13,399              129,347           103,668           -                 246,414           -              
Transfers to other funds (2,453,618)        (231,801)          (355,421)          (317,431)          (3,358,271)        -              
Interfund loans 1,556,053         (1,557)             (2,726,022)        1,012,719         (158,807)          -              
Regulatory asset acquisition (4,263,728)        -                -                 (812,975)          (5,076,703)        -              

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities (5,147,894)        (104,011)          (2,977,775)        (117,687)          (8,347,367)        -              

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (8,799,144)        (1,103,585)       (16,529,992)      (1,045,070)        (27,477,791)      -              
Proceeds from sale of property and equip. 22,203              -                -                 1,650               23,853             -              
Proceeds from capital grant 600                  -                15,535             -                 16,135             -              
Proceeds from bond issuance (net of underwriters' discount) 9,231,220         -                31,796,424       -                 41,027,644       -              
Principal payments on capital debt (2,604,830)        (700,292)          (349,878)          -                 (3,655,000)        -              
Interest paid on capital debt (2,219,385)        (124,033)          (566,228)          -                 (2,909,646)        -              
Increase (decrease) in fly ash liability (19,781)             -                -                 -                 (19,781)            -              

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
   financing activities (4,389,117)        (1,927,910)       14,365,861       (1,043,420)        7,005,414         -              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net sales (purchases) of investments 1,467,500         -                (5,517,500)        500,000           (3,550,000)        (1,750,000)     
Interest received on investments 332,137            15,870             240,761           50,466             639,234           49,690          

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,799,637         15,870             (5,276,739)        550,466           (2,910,766)        (1,700,310)     
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,607,748        (167,412)          9,002,646         1,202,765         20,645,747       (114,952)        

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 2,414,397         3,009,844        -                 1,510,694         6,934,935         3,293,090      

Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year 13,022,145$      2,842,432$      9,002,646$       2,713,459$       27,580,682$     3,178,138$    

Composition of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 11,356,468$      2,807,631$      4,081,762$       2,713,459$       20,959,320$     3,178,138$    
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,665,677         34,801             4,920,884         -                 6,621,362         -              

Total cash and cash equivalents 13,022,145$      2,842,432$      9,002,646$       2,713,459$       27,580,682$     3,178,138$    

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Enterprise Funds
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Internal
Electric Water Sewer Gas Service

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Operating income 9,551,485$        863,660$         1,352,339$       1,313,599$       13,081,083$     1,248,857$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 6,395,624         1,015,473        1,645,049         520,109           9,576,255         -              
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 449,118            (59,072)            (100,457)          (16,088)            273,501           98                 
Inventories (2,100,523)        16,389             (5,465)              122,146           (1,967,453)        -              
Prepaid expenses 46,158              32                   32                   (127)                 46,095             -              
Accounts payable 3,825,511         3,414              (8,485)              (134,676)          3,685,764         130,080         
Accrued payroll (38,257)             (8,973)             (7,043)              (3,455)              (57,728)            -              
Accrued compensated absences 4,128                10,476             15,329             11,583             41,516             -              
Other accrued expenses 43,622              7,240              -                 315                  51,177             -              
Unearned revenue 126,175            -                -                 -                 126,175           -              
Customer deposits 40,977              -                -                 -                 40,977             -              
Claims liability 1,104                -                -                 -                 1,104               206,323         

Net cash provided by operating activities 18,345,122$      1,848,639$      2,891,299$       1,813,406$       24,898,466$     1,585,358$    

Payables incurred for acquisition
of capital assets 458,894$          125,041$         4,521,785$       61,059$           5,166,779$       -$              

Supplemental Cash Flows Information

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the City of Fremont, Nebraska (the “City”) are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The City’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) pronouncements.  
 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are 
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note.   
 
  1. Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The City of Fremont, Nebraska, was incorporated in 1871.  The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of 
government with an elected Mayor and an elected legislative body, Council, composed of eight members.  The 
Mayor is elected at large for a four-year term, and the eight members of the City Council are elected, two from 
each of four wards, on alternating four-year terms.  The administration of the City government is performed 
under the direction of the Mayor by the City Administrator.  Services provided to residents include public safety; 
highways and streets; planning and zoning; parks; recreation; urban development; electric, water and sanitary 
sewer systems; gas; waste transfer and general administrative services.   
 
These financial statements present the financial statements of the City as the primary government.  In 
determining its reporting entity, the City has considered all potential component units for which it is financially 
accountable, including other organizations which are fiscally dependent on the City, or the significance of their 
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would make the financial statements misleading or incomplete.  
The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability, which was used in 
making this evaluation.  The City has no material component units to include in its reporting entity. 
 
  2. Basis of Presentation 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government 
as a whole.  The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.  The material effect 
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.  Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.   
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function 
or segment. Functional expenses may also include an element of indirect cost, designed to recover 
administrative (overhead) costs. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts.  
Funds are organized into two major categories:  governmental and proprietary.  An emphasis is placed on major 
funds within the governmental and proprietary categories.  Each major fund is displayed in a separate column 
and the remaining funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental or proprietary funds.   
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  2. Basis of Presentation, Continued 
 
The City reports the following fund types:   
 
Governmental Funds 
 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund.  It is used 
to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.   
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.   
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of interest and 
principal on the general long-term debt of the City other than debt service payments made by enterprise funds.  
Ad valorem taxes are used for the payment of principal and interest on the City’s general obligation bonds.   
 
Capital Projects Fund 
 
Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction 
of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
Enterprise Funds 
 
Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.  These activities 
are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income 
measurement similar to the private sector. 
 
Internal Service Funds 
 
The internal service funds account for activities that provide goods and services to other funds, departments or 
agencies of the primary government and its component units on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 

 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  2. Basis of Presentation, Continued 
 
Major and Non-major Funds 
 
The City reports the following major and non-major funds:   
 
 Fund Brief Description 

Major: 
 

Governmental: 
General See above for description.   
 
Street The Street Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that accounts for the 

City’s share of highway allocation from the State of Nebraska. 
 
Sales Tax The Sales Tax Fund is a Special Revenue Fund that accounts for 

local sales tax collected, which is restricted for use under State 
Statute. 

Proprietary: 
Enterprise: 
   Electric, Water, Sewer, and Gas See above for description.   
  
Internal Service: 

Insurance Accounts for the workers’ compensation, and health insurance, 
and other programs for all governmental-fund-type City 
operations.   
 

Non-major: 
Governmental: 
Debt Service See above for description.   

 
Capital Projects See above for description. 

 
Special Revenue: 

Paving and Sidewalk Districts  Accounts for the collection of special assessments on various 
paving and sidewalk districts.   

 
Business Improvement District #1 Accounts for improvements and maintenance of downtown 

business area using special assessments on the properties within 
the district. 

 
Public Use Property Special Projects Accounts for bequests with restricted uses that the City receives. 

Keno Fund  Accounts for the City’s share of the Keno gaming proceeds.   
 
CDBG Fund  Accounts for revolving loans funded by CDBG grants.   

 
Weatherization EDA (HUD)  Accounts for weatherization revolving loans funded by HUD 

grants. 
 
Economic Enhancement Accounts for economic enhancement programs of the City. 

 
Airport Fund Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the municipal 

airport. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  2. Basis of Presentation, Continued 
 
Major and Non-major Funds, Continued 
 
 Fund Brief Description 
Non-major, continued: 

 
Governmental, continued: 

Special Revenue, continued: 
Enhanced and Wireless 911  Accounts for the per-line telephone surcharge and per-line cell 

phone surcharge for the emergency communications system.   
 
Drug Task Force  Accounts for Federal grant proceeds and payments from 

surrounding governmental entities under an interlocal agreement 
to combat drug use in Fremont and surrounding communities.   

 
Community Development Agency Accounts for the resources for payment of principal and interest 

on tax increment financing bonds issued by the  
 Community Development Agency of the City of Fremont.  These 

bonds were issued to provide long-term financing for the several 
development areas.  These bonds are payable only from real 
estate taxes on certain property located within these plan areas 
and do not constitute general obligations of the Agency or the City. 

 
3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis 
of accounting.  Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial 
resources or economic resources.  The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for 
recognition in the financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the total economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measureable 
and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
 
The City considers revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.  
Property taxes, sales taxes, occupation taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the government. 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are 
recorded only when payment is due.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds.  Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, continued 
 
Proprietary Funds activities are accounted for on the flow economic resources measurement focus and use the 
accrual basis of accounting.  The City’s utility accounting records are maintained in accordance with all 
applicable pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and generally follow the 
Uniform System of Accounts for Public Utilities and Licenses prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC).  The City prepares its proprietary financial statements as a business-type activity in in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  Proprietary 
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to 
customers for goods and services.  Operating expenses include the cost of sales and service, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 
Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, “cash and cash equivalents” include all demand accounts, 
savings accounts and an external investment pool.  For the purpose of the proprietary fund Statement of Cash 
Flows, “cash and cash equivalents” include all cash on hand, demand accounts, savings accounts, and equity 
in pooled cash which has an original maturity of three months or less.  The County Treasurer’s cash represents 
revenues collected not yet remitted to the City by the Dodge County Treasurer’s office. 
 
The external investment pool primarily invests in government agency securities, certificates of deposit, demand 
deposits and repurchase agreements which are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value based 
on the short-term nature of investments.  The City carries its interest in the external investment pool and 
certificates of deposit at amortized cost. 
 
Interest of investments and deposits are allocated to the funds based on the fund’s proportionate share of the 
investment balance.  Additional cash and investment disclosures are presented in Notes B2, C1, and D2. 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year end and not yet received.  Allowances for uncollectible 
accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.  Major 
receivable balances for the governmental activities include special assessments and property taxes.  Business-
type activities report utility billings as their major receivables.   
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, 

Continued 
 
Notes Receivable 
Notes receivable include long-term loans made to local businesses and citizens using revolving loan funds from 
Community Development Block Grants through the State of Nebraska, as well as other economic development 
based loans of LB840 revolving loan funds or Economic Enhancement funds of the City to qualifying businesses.  
Some loans are forgivable when certain performance-based conditions are met.  Loans are shown net of an 
allowance for uncollectible amounts. Tax Increment Financing (“TIF”) notes receivable are recorded at the lesser 
of the present value of the anticipated revenue stream or the actual TIF bond payable amount. 
 
Due from Other Governments 
The total due from other governments includes the following amounts: 
 

 Fund Amount Service 
 
General $ 35,265 Interlocal reimbursement/ 
  CDBG grant reimbursement/ 
  Library commission payments 
Sales tax 1,460,239 Sales Tax 
CDBG fund 3,180 Grant reimbursement 
Airport fund 172,035 Project reimbursement from State 
Enhanced 911    54,831 Interlocal reimbursement 
 

Governmental Total $1,725,550 
 

Electric $   455,548 Grant reimbursement 
 
Inventory 
All inventories are valued at average cost, except natural gas, which is valued at cost using the first-in/first-out 
(“FIFO”) method. 
 
Inventories consist of the following at September 30, 2019: 
 

Electric Water Sewer Gas Total
Coal 3,624,655$ -$       -$       -$         3,624,655$     
Natural Gas -           -        -         597,909      597,909         
Production Supplies 3,095,829   263,482   129,554    110,533      3,599,398      
Distribution Supplies 2,090,232   -        -         483,422      2,573,654      
Other 376,036      -        -         -           376,036         

9,186,752$ 263,482$ 129,554$  1,191,864$ 10,771,652$   
 

 
Restricted Assets 
 
Restricted assets include cash and investments that are legally restricted as to their use.  The primary restricted 
assets are related to debt service and proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for certain purposes.  In addition, restricted investments are held to cover fly ash closure costs. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 

 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, 

Continued 
 
Regulatory Assets 
 
Certain income and expense items of the City’s enterprise funds which would be recognized during the current 
period are deferred and not included in the determination of the change in net position until such costs are 
expected to be recovered through rates, in accordance with the regulated operations provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 62. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets 
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Statements 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are capitalized and reported on the Statement of 
Net Position.  Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years.  All capital assets are valued at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation.  The City has elected the depreciation approach for reporting 
infrastructure.   
 
Depreciation of governmental capital assets is separately stated and depreciation of all proprietary capital assets 
is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in 
the Statement of Net Position.  Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method of depreciation.  The ranges of estimated useful lives by type of asset are as follows: 

Buildings 20-50 years 
Improvements and infrastructure 10-50 years 
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years 
Utility system 25-50 years 

The cost of normal maintenance, preservation, and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend the assets’ lives are not capitalized.   
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital 
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.  Capital assets used in proprietary fund 
operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This represents a consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) 
and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (as either an expense or expenditure) until that period.  
The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, the deferred charge on refunding reported in 
the government-wide statement of net position.  A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the 
shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, 

Continued 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, continued 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources.  This represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) 
and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that period.  The City has three items that 
qualify for reporting in this category:  (1) Unavailable revenue received after the availability period.  This includes 
property taxes plus other local taxes and fees received after 60 days.  They are reported as deferred inflows on 
the governmental funds balance sheet and will be recognized as revenue next year.  (2) Unavailable revenue 
relating to loans.  (3)  Deferred gain on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  A 
deferred gain on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition 
price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
City employees earn sick leave at the rate of 3.70 to 8.31 hours per biweekly pay period, depending on their hire 
date.  Half-time and three-quarter time employees receive applicable percentages of these same 
rates.  Vacation and sick leave hours are accumulated on a biweekly basis and are fully vested when 
earned.  Limitations on accumulated sick leave vary based on labor agreements, but in no case will accumulated 
sick leave payout exceed 50% of the accumulated balance, up to 1,116 hours.  Accumulated vacation limitations 
vary from 240 to 304 hours depending on the applicable labor agreement.  All accumulated vacation and sick 
leave, subject to limitations noted, is paid at separation. 
 
All vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. In the governmental funds, only compensated absences that have matured as of year-end, for 
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, are recorded as a fund liability. Accruals are 
based on current salary rates plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as Social 
Security and Medicare taxes and pension amounts using rates in effect at that date. 
 
Long-term Debt, Deferred Debt Expense, and Bond Discounts/Premiums 
 
The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund 
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial 
statements. 

 
Government-wide Statements 
 
In government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as a liability. Bond 
discounts or premiums are capitalized and amortized over the life of the respective bonds. The long-term debt 
consists primarily of bonds payable and a fly ash liability. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The governmental fund financial statements recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance 
costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as an other financing source. 
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are reported as expenditures, as well as payment of principal. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, 

Continued 
 
Recovery of Plant Costs 
 
Capital contributions are received from customers and other third parties primarily to offset the costs associated 
with expansion of the City’s utility systems.  The City follows FERC guidelines for recording capital contributions.  
These guidelines direct the reduction of utility plant by the amount of these contributions.  In order to comply 
with GASB codification Section N50, Nonexchange Transactions, while continuing to follow FERC guidelines, 
capital contributions are recorded as income and offset by an expense in the same amount representing the 
recovery of plant costs.  
 
Net Position Flow Assumption 
 
Government-wide Statements  
 
Net position is classified and displayed in three components: 
 

a. Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings, net of 
issuance premiums or discounts, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets.  The portion of debt attributable to unspent debt proceeds is not 
included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 

 
b. Restricted net position – Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) 

external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c. Unrestricted net position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net 

investment in capital assets.” 
 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources.  In 
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 
resources are considered to be applied.  It is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted 
resources as they are needed. 
 
Fund Balance Flow Assumption 
 
Fund balances are divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to 
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds.  The classifications are 
as follows: 
 
 Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form or 

because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
 Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by external resource 

providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be changed or lifted only with 
the consent of resource providers. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance, 

Continued 
 
Fund Balance Flow Assumption, Continued 
 
 Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by the 

City Council through an ordinance or resolution.  Commitments may be changed or lifted only by passage 
of an ordinance or issuance of a resolution by the City Council. 

 
 Assigned – Amounts that are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes as determined by 

management. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the 
amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, 
at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. 

 
 Unassigned – All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 
 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the 
total of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance).  In order to calculate the amounts to report for each 
category of fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about 
the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund 
balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance.  Further, when 
the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 
 
  5. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 
 
Sales and Use Tax 
 
The City presently levies a one-and-one-half-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City.  The sales tax is to 
be used for the following purposes:  1/2% – 60 percent for infrastructure and 40 percent for public safety, 1/2% 
– for property tax relief, and 1/2% – divided in equal thirds for economic development, street improvements, and 
public safety   
 

The sales tax is collected by the Nebraska Department of Revenue and remitted to the City in the month following 
receipt.  The Nebraska Department of Revenue receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection 
by vendors. Sales taxes collected by the State in September and October (which represents sales for August 
and September) and received by the City in October and November have been accrued and are included under 
the caption “Due from other governments.” 
 
Property Taxes 
 

The City has the power to levy taxes each year sufficient to pay any judgment existing against the City, the 
interest on bonded debt, and the principal on bonded debt maturing during the fiscal year or within six months 
thereafter, as well as taxes authorized by state law.  
 
The tax levies for all political subdivisions in Dodge County are certified by the County Board on or before 
October 15.  Real estate taxes are due on December 31 and attach as an enforceable lien and become 
delinquent in two equal installments on May 1 and September 1.  Personal property taxes are due in the same 
manner as real estate taxes.  Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent interest.  Property taxes levied for 2018-2019 
are recorded as revenue when expected to be collected within 60 days after September 30, 2019. Prior-year 
levies were recorded using these same principles, and remaining receivables are re-evaluated annually.  
Property taxes expected to be collected after 60 days are recorded as unavailable revenue on the fund balance 
sheets. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED 
 
  5. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses, Continued 

Property Taxes, Continued 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include all amounts 
due the City regardless of when cash is received. Historically, substantially all property taxes have been 
collected. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods and/or services.  It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital 
and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. 
 
Expenditures/Expenses 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and 
business-type activities.  In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:  
 Governmental funds – by character and function   
 Proprietary fund – by operating and non-operating 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources.  Proprietary 
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 
 
Interfund Transfers 
 
Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as transfers.  For the 
purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have been 
eliminated.  
 
NOTE B – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

By its nature as a local government unit, the City is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and 
contractual regulations.  An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and regulations and 
demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows: 
 
  1. Fund Accounting Requirements 
 
The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of separate funds. The legally 
required funds used by the City include:  General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 
 
  2. Deposit Laws and Regulations 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned 
to it.  The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of state law.   
 
Section 16-714 and 16-715 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska 1943 require collateralization of all deposits 
with federal depository insurance or with U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency securities having an aggregate value 
at least equal to the amount of the deposits.  The City’s cash deposits, including certificates of deposit, are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000 per participating financial 
institution. Any cash deposits or certificates of deposit in excess of the FDIC limits are insured by collateral held 
by the pledging institution in the City’s name.   
 
Cash at the County Treasurer of $207,437 was covered by collateral held by the County. 
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NOTE B – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY, CONTINUED 
 
  3. Revenue Restrictions 
 
The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements.  The 
primary restricted revenue sources are described in Note A2 for the various funds. 
 
  4. Debt Restrictions and Covenants 
 
Bonds Payable 
 
The various bond ordinances relating to the bonds payable contain some restrictions or covenants that are 
financial-related.  These include covenants such as debt service coverage requirements and required reserve 
account balances.  The City is in compliance with the bond restrictions and covenants.   
 
  5. Budgetary Data 
 
The City is required by state laws to adopt annual budgets for all fund types.  Each budget is presented on the 
cash basis of accounting, which is consistent with the requirements of the state budget act. 
 
The Nebraska Budget Act provides the prescribed budget practices and procedures that governing bodies are 
required to follow.  The amounts that may be budgeted for certain specific funds are subject to various 
expenditure and/or tax levy limitations. 
 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 

a. On or before August 1, the City prepares a budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1.  The 
budget includes proposed expenditures and resources available. 
 

b. The budget is published with subsequent public hearings to obtain taxpayer comments. 
 

c. Prior to September 20, the City Council adopts the budget, which is then filed with the appropriate state 
and county officials. 

 
d. Total expenditures may not legally exceed total appropriations.  Budget adjustments within a fund can 

be made with City Administrator approval. However, the City Council must approve any supplemental 
appropriations. 
 

e. The County Clerk certifies a preliminary property tax levy for each fund of the City which levied property 
taxes in the county the previous year based on the combined valuation and amount required for the City 
the prior year. The preliminary levy becomes the final levy unless the governing board passes, by a 
majority vote, a resolution setting the levy at a different amount. 

 
f. The property tax requirements resulting from the budget process are utilized by the County Assessor to 

establish the tax levy. Taxes are levied annually on or before October 15.Real property taxes and 
personal property taxes are due December 31 with the first half delinquent May 1 and the second half 
delinquent September 1. 
 

g. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except for capital improvement appropriations and 
certain encumbrances against operating budgets. 
 

h. The City of Fremont adopts a budget by ordinance for all fund types. 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 
 
The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic financial statements 
for the City’s various assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, net position/fund balances, 
revenues and expenditures/expenses.   
 

  1. Cash and Investments 
 

The City’s policies regarding deposits of cash are discussed in Note A4 and the City’s policies regarding 
risk management over deposits and investments are discussed in Note D2. The City’s cash deposits 
and investments are with institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and 
other collateral.  At September 30, 2019, the bank balance of the City’s deposits and investments were 
fully-insured or collateralized.  

 

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Position: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents –  
 Unrestricted    $ 44,159,989 
 Restricted    6,621,362 
Investments –  
 Unrestricted    36,010,385 
 Restricted       12,045,615 
  Total    $98,837,351 
 
Investments and cash equivalents consist of the following: 
 
 Certificates of deposit    $48,056,000 
 Deposit accounts and cash on hand   46,523,762 
 External investment pool       4,257,589 
  Total   $98,837,351 

 
 
  2. Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of utilities receivables.  Accounts receivable of the 
governmental activities consist of ambulance (58.8 percent), waste transfer station (12.1 percent), cable 
franchise tax (11.0 percent), fees assessed (10.6 percent), keno proceeds (4.3 percent) and other (3.2 percent) 
receivables.  Receivables detailed at September 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Accounts receivable 714,583$      3,550,420$    4,265,003$ 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (196,746)      (371,843)       (568,589)     

Net accounts receivable 517,837$      3,178,577$    3,696,414$ 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  3. Notes Receivable 
 
Notes receivable at September 30, 2019, consist of the following: 

Company
Loan 

Amount
Date 

Issued Interest Type Balance

Sales Tax Fund (LB840):
Sycamore Leaf Solutions 100,000$      6/19/2015 0% Performance Based 100,000$      
Structural Component Systems 200,000       5/13/2015 0% Repayable 46,667          
Structural Component Systems 400,000       5/13/2015 0% Performance Based 80,000          
Fremont Beef Company 300,000       5/13/2014 0% Performance Based 60,000          
Heartland Area Accessories 150,000       10/17/2016 0% Performance Based 90,000          
Pearl Academy 35,560         9/6/2018 2% Repayable 28,080          
Pearl Academy 35,561         9/6/2018 0% Performance Based 28,449          
Legacy Post & Beam 60,000         6/12/2018 0% Performance Based 45,000          
.042 Sports & Entertainment 250,000       1/2/2019 0% Performance Based 200,000        
Costco 1,000,000     7/22/2019 0% Performance Based 1,000,000     
     Total Sales Tax Fund 1,678,196     

Weatherization EDA (HUD) Fund:
Interest bearing notes 190,999$      Various 1-5% Repayable 136,347        
Non-interest bearing notes 1,186,698     Various 0% Forgivable 511,297        

647,644        

Downtown Revitalization Loans (included in Weatherization Fund):
Non-interest bearing notes 620,978       Various 0% Forgivable 205,108        

     Total Weatherization Fund 852,752        

Economic Enhancement Fund:
Fremont Beef 300,000$      5/13/2014 0% Performance Based 60,000          
Costco 175,000       7/22/2019 0% Performance Based 175,000        

     Total Economic Enhancement Fund 235,000        

Total Notes Receivable 2,765,948$   
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 

 
  4. Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was a follows: 

Balance at Balance at

October 1, September 30,

2018 Additions Disposals Transfers 2019

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 7,645,108$     18,111$       (272,637)$ -$          7,390,582$    
Construction in progress 8,995,063       722,300       (66,119)      (863,140)    8,788,104       

Total capital assets 
   not being depreciated 16,640,171     740,411       (338,756)   (863,140)    16,178,686    

Other capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 41,255,623     801,858       -              766,767     42,824,248    
Buildings and improvements 16,818,122     353,499       (225,480)   96,373        17,042,514    
Machinery and equipment 12,475,889     634,165       (168,140)   -            12,941,914    

Total other capital assets at
   historical cost 70,549,634     1,789,522    (393,620)   863,140     72,808,676    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (12,930,933)    (1,105,563)  -           -            (14,036,496)   
Buildings and improvements (8,777,594)      (428,132)      141,615     -            (9,064,111)     
Machinery and equipment (7,362,355)      (909,196)      168,140     -            (8,103,411)     

Total accumulated depreciation (29,070,882)    (2,442,891)  * 309,755     -            (31,204,018)   

Other capital assets, net 41,478,752     (653,369)      (83,865)      -            41,604,658    

Governmental activities capital
   assets, net 58,118,923$   87,042$       (422,621)$ -$          57,783,344$  

 
 
*  Depreciation expense was incurred by the following governmental activities: 

 
General Fund 

 
General government $ 107,737 
 
Public safety:  

Police  223,259 
Fire  234,019 
E911  88,381 
Civil Service   740 

Total public safety  546,399 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Capital Assets, Continued  

 
General Fund, Continued 
 
Public works:  

Civil Engineering $ 122,895 
Streets  1,029,513 

Total public works  1,152,408 
 
Environment and leisure: 

Culture and recreation  471,490 
Airport  164,857 

Total environment and leisure  636,347 
 
 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 2,442,891 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
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September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Capital Assets, Continued 

Balance at Balance at

October 1, September 30,

2018 Additions Disposals Transfers 2019

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5,154,314$     -$           (102,140)$    -$          5,052,174$     
Construction in progress 39,062,238     -             -            (7,899,524)   31,162,714     

Total capital assets 
   not being depreciated 44,216,552     -             (102,140)      (7,899,524)   36,214,888     

Other capital assets being depreciated:
Distribution systems, buildings, 

and equipment 293,640,493   11,352,790   (92,072)        7,899,524    312,800,735   
Machinery and equipment 17,744,100     1,208,060     (369,141)      -            18,583,019     
Office furniture and equipment 2,605,598       43,218         -            -            2,648,816      
Vehicles 5,889,275       697,379       (227,853)      -            6,358,801      

Total other capital assets at
   historical cost 319,879,466   13,301,447   (689,066)      7,899,524    340,391,371   

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Distribution systems, buildings, 

and equipment (142,616,948)  (7,528,212)    71,672         -            (150,073,488)  
Machinery and equipment (12,942,242)    (776,482)      253,764       -            (13,464,960)    
Office furniture and equipment (2,230,367)      (117,330)      -            -            (2,347,697)     
Vehicles (3,568,450)      (341,422)      227,853       -            (3,682,019)     

Total accumulated depreciation (161,358,007)  (8,763,446)    * 553,289       -            (169,568,164)  

Other capital assets, net 158,521,459   4,538,001     (135,777)      -            170,823,207   

Business-type activities capital
   assets, net 202,738,011$ 4,538,001$   (237,917)$    -$          207,038,095$ 

 
 
* Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 
Electric $ 5,582,815 
Water  1,015,473 
Sewer  1,645,049 
Gas  520,109 

 Business-type activities depreciation expense $ 8,763,446 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  5. Accounts Payable 
 
Payables in the general, capital projects, other governmental and proprietary funds are primarily composed of 
payables to vendors.   
 
  6. Long-term Debt and Liabilities 
 
The reporting entity’s long-term debt and liabilities are segregated between the amounts to be repaid from 
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities. 
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt and liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2019: 

Balance at Balance at Amounts Due

October 1, September 30, Within

2018 Additions Deductions 2019 One Year

Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences 1,285,883$     1,128,004$   (1,085,758)$   1,328,129$    670,000$    

2,485,000      -             (300,000)       2,185,000      305,000      

borrowing 1,146,453      -             (216,112)       930,341         222,509      

4,917,336$     1,128,004$   (1,601,870)$   4,443,470$    1,197,509$ 

Business-type Activities:
Bonds payable 60,825,000$   40,000,000$  (3,655,000)$   97,170,000$   4,855,000$ 
Unamortized bond premium 1,704,668      1,255,582     (192,481)       2,767,769      -           
Unamortized bond discount (40,533)          -             2,795            (37,738)          -           

62,489,135     41,255,582   (3,844,686)     99,900,031    4,855,000   

Compensated absences 1,501,541      1,186,955     (1,159,701)     1,528,795      714,104      
Fly ash liability 174,505         -             (19,781)         154,724         -           

64,165,181$   42,442,537$  (5,024,168)$   101,583,550$ 5,569,104$ 

Total

Total

Lease payable - direct
Bonds payable

Total bonds payable

 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt as of September 
30, 2019 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities
Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 305,000$    39,115$    4,855,000$   3,753,600$   
2021 320,000      35,150      4,745,000     3,639,120     
2022 330,000      30,510      4,845,000     3,453,848     
2023 340,000      25,230      4,925,000     3,292,288     
2024 335,000      19,110      4,885,000     3,119,420     

2025-2029 555,000      17,010      25,320,000   12,770,220   
2030-2034 -           -         28,195,000   7,439,251     
2035-2039 -           -         19,400,000   1,980,000     

2,185,000$  166,125$  97,170,000$  39,447,747$ 

Business-type Activities
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  6. Long-term Debt, Continued 
 
Lease Purchase Contract Payable 
 
The City is leasing a radio system and radios under a noncancelable lease-purchase agreement expiring in 
2023, at which time title will be conveyed to the City.  The net book value of the leased assets is approximately 
$1,448,774.  The lease-purchase agreement is secured with the related leased equipment.  The following 
schedule reflects future minimum lease payments under the lease-purchase agreement together with the 
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2019: 
  

 Year ending September 30,  
Governmental 

Activities       
 2020  $         250,047   
 2021             250,048   
 2022             250,048   
 2023             250,048   

 Total minimum lease payments          1,000,191   
        Less amount representing interest              69,850  

 
Total principal obligation under capital lease 
(rate of interest 2.96%)  $      930,341   

     
 
As of September 30, 2019, the City’s long-term debt consisted of the following individual issues: 
 
 Date 

Issued 
Date of 
Maturity 

Date 
Callable 

Interest 
Rates 

 
Balance 

      
Governmental Activities: 
General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds for swimming pool 

08/01/2017 08/01/2026 08/01/2022 3.375 – 5.0% $  2,185,000 

Capital lease obligation 11/01/2016 11/01/2023 N/A 2.9%        930,341 

Total Governmental Activities     $  3,115,341 
      

Business-type Activities: 
Combined Utilities revenue 
refunding bonds Series 2018 

12/11/2018 11/15/2038 09/01/2023 0.85 – 1.80% $40,000,000 

Combined Utilities revenue 
refunding bonds Series 2016 

09/01/2016 09/01/2024 09/01/2021 0.85 – 1.80%  1,480,000 

Combined Utilities revenue 
bonds Series 2015 

05/15/2015 8/15/2023 05/05/2020 0.25 – 2.15%  1,775,000 

Combined Utilities revenue 
refunding bonds Series 2014A 

06/03/2014 09/01/2028 06/03/2019 0.03 – 3.40%  1,605,000 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  6. Long-term Debt, Continued 
 
 

Date 
Issued 

Date of 
Maturity 

Date 
Callable 

Interest 
Rates Balance 

      
Business-type Activities, 
continued: 
Combined Utilities revenue 
bonds Series 2014B 

07/29/2014 07/15/2034 07/29/2021 2.00 – 5.00% $ 30,590,000 

Combined Utilities revenue 
bonds Series 2013 08/30/2013 07/25/2033 08/30/2018 0.30 – 4.50%  6,970,000 

Combined Utilities revenue 
refunding bonds Series 2012 03/06/2012 10/15/2026 03/06/2022 0.35 – 4.00%  14,750,000 

Total Business-type Activities     $ 97,170,000 

 
 
  7. Fly Ash Closure Costs 
 
The City currently has a fly ash disposal area.  State and Federal laws require the City to close, monitor, and 
maintain the disposal area once capacity is reached.  The estimated costs of closure and post closure care as 
determined by the City are subject to changes due to the effects of inflation, revision of laws, changes in 
technology and other variables.  As of September 30, 2019, the City had incurred a liability of $154,724 for 
closure and post closure costs for the disposal area.   
 
  8. Tax Increment Financing Notes and Bonds 
 
The City provides tax abatements under the Tax Increment Financing Program (TIF).  Tax increment financing 
allows cities to create special districts and to make public/private improvements within those districts that will 
generate public/private-sector development.  For a period of 15 years, the tax base is frozen at the 
predevelopment level, and taxes generated from the incremental increases in assessed value are remitted as 
payment on the notes and bonds.  The developer funds the improvements or obtains financing for the 
improvements, and the development agreements between the City and developer expressly limit the City’s 
commitment for debt repayment to the incremental tax collected during the 15-year period.  At the end of the 15-
year period, the tax jurisdiction collects on the increased property values.  The related tax increment districts are 
not component units of the City; therefore, the City is not liable for the outstanding debt.  The City’s responsibility 
for this liability is limited only to remittances of paid taxes.  
 
Eligibility for the approval requires the property to have no loss of pre-existing tax revenues and the developer 
demonstrates the project is not feasible without TIF.  Abatements are obtained through application by the 
property owner and are reviewed and approved by a TIF council prior to commencing the improvements.  Taxes 
abated under this program for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 were $398,174. 

 
The City purchased the bonds related to the South Broad Street, LLC project.  The outstanding bonds are 
recorded as a TIF bond receivable in the Community Development Agency fund financial statements (Other 
Governmental) and a related Due to the General Fund.  The General Fund financial statements likewise report 
a Due from Other Funds. 
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  9. Interfund Transactions and Balances 
 
At September 30, 2019 were the following due from/to other funds: 
Purpose Receivable Fund Payable Fund  Amount 

City's share of communication center operations E911 General 101,829$    
Payment for service provided Electric General 27,563       
Payment for service provided Water General 3,837         
Payment for service provided Sewer General 1,260         
Payment for service provided Gas General 684            
Capital expenditures General Sales Tax 102,563      
Capital expenditures Street Sales Tax 256,200      
Sale of Lot Electric Sales Tax 146,209      
Reimburse shared expenses and payment for service provided Electric Street 4,100         
Payment for service provided Water Street 81              
Payment for service provided Sewer Street 9               
Payment for service provided Gas Street 41              
South Broad Street TIF General Community Development Agency 391,782      
Service cash flow needs General Airport 20,000       
South Hangar complex reimbursement Sales Tax Airport 126,898      
Payment for service provided Electric Airport 1,018         
Payment for service provided Gas Airport 7               
Service cash flow needs General CBDG 29,000       
Service cash flow needs General E911 200,000      
Reimburse Shared Services General Electric 100,982      
Reimburse Shared Services General Water 8,641         
Reimburse Shared Services General Sewer 8,641         
Reimburse Shared Services General Gas 17,442       
Reimburse payment for service provided Street Water 1,688         
Reimburse payment for service provided Street Sewer 413            
Reimburse payment for service provided Street Gas 429            
Payment for service provided Electric Electric 6,065         
Payment for service provided Electric Water 30,060       
Payment for service provided Electric Sewer 16,807       
Payment for service provided Electric Gas 2,325         
Payment for service provided Water Electric 2,122         
Payment for service provided Sewer Electric 1,985         
Payment for service provided Gas Electric 6,262          
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NOTE C – DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS, CONTINUED 
 
  9. Interfund Transactions and Balances, Continued 
 
Operating transfers: 

Purpose Transfers In Transfers Out

General fund:

Sales tax Property tax relief; operating transfers; capital 
projects 4,019,549$        -$                 

Keno Property tax relief 420,000            -                  
Public use 
property special 
projects

Library books
1,616                -                  

Drug task force City’s share of multi-jurisdictional task force 2,347                -                  

Electric Utility transfer in; expense reimbursement for IT 
purchases 2,403,618         (13,399)              

Water Utility transfer in 231,801            -                  
Sewer Utility transfer in 355,421            -                  
Gas Utility transfer in 267,431            -                  
     Total General fund 7,701,783         (13,399)              

Street fund:

Sales tax Various street improvement projects; drainage 
improvements: reimburse property insurance 12,581,966        -                  

     Total Street fund 12,581,966        -                  

Sales tax fund:

General Property tax relief; operating transfers; capital 
projects -                 (4,019,549)         

Street Various street improvement projects; drainage 
improvements: reimburse property insurance -                 (12,581,966)        

Special projects Trail improvements -                 (12,937)              
Water Infrastructure debt service contribution -                 (129,347)            
Sewer Infrastructure debt service contribution     -                 (103,668)            
     Total Sales tax fund -                 (16,847,467)        

Non-major funds Economic development – electric and gas to 
economic enhancement 100,000            -                  
Others - see above 12,937              (423,963)            

Enterprise funds - see above 246,414            (3,358,271)         

20,643,100$      (20,643,100)$           Total operating transfers

 
 
  10. Deficit Fund Balance 
 
At September 30, 2019 the CDBG Fund had a deficit balance of $2,456, the Airport Fund had a $754 deficit 
balance and Community Development Agency Fund had a deficit balance of $260,176. Some of the deficits will 
be offset by unavailable revenue as it is collected and recognized in future years. The Community Development 
Agency also has the right to levy taxes to eliminate a deficit; however, no decision to levy taxes has been made. 
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
 
NOTE D – OTHER NOTES 
 
  1. Employee Pension and Other Benefit Plans 
 
The City participates in four contributory defined contribution plans (qualilfied 414(h) plans), and a non-qualified 
deferred compensation plan as follows: 
 

 Name of Plan Type of Plan 
Retirement Income Plan for City Government 
    Employees of the City of Fremont Defined Contribution Plan 
Police Officers’ Retirement Plan Defined Contribution Plan 
Firefighters’ Retirement Plan Defined Contribution Plan 
Deferred Compensation Plan Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan 

 
Retirement Income Plan for City Government Employees 
 
The City of Fremont has a contributory defined contribution employees’ pension plan in which the general 
employees of the City and Department of Utilities participate.  Regular full-time employees with less than seven 
consecutive years of service will contribute five percent of their gross payroll and the City will match the five 
percent.  For those regular full-time employees with seven or more consecutive years of service, the City will 
contribute 6.5 percent.  Employees are eligible to participate after six months of continuous service.  All 
employees are fully-vested in their own contributions and become vested in the City’s contribution ratably after 
seven years’ participation in the plan.  The employees and the City contributed $744,534 and $880,399, 
respectively, as required by the plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  Forfeitures used to reduce 
employer contributions as allowed under the Plan were $14,714.  The Plan is administered by a trustee 
independent of the City and is, therefore, not included in these financial statements. 
 
The City of Fremont, Nebraska Police Officer’s Retirement Plan 
 
The City of Fremont, Nebraska Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (Police Plan) is a contributory defined 
contribution employees’ pension plan in which all regular full-time sworn officers of the City participate.  
Employees and the City will each contribute 7 percent of applicable payroll.  Employees are immediately eligible 
to participate in the Police Plan.  All employees are fully-vested in their own contributions and vest 40 percent 
after two years of service, 60 percent after four years of service, 80 percent after six years of service and 100 
percent after seven years, in the City’s contributions to the Plan.  The employees and the City contributed 
$192,348 and $192,348, respectively, as required by the Plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  
Forfeitures used to reduce employer contributions as allowed under the Plan were $13,747.  The Plan is 
administered by a trustee independent of the City and is, therefore, not included in these financial statements. 
 
The City of Fremont, Nebraska Firefighters’ Retirement Plan 
 
The City of Fremont, Nebraska Firefighters’ Retirement Plan (Firefighters Plan) is a defined contribution plan in 
which all firefighters of the City participate.  The Fire employees are eligible on the first day of employment.  The 
employees contribute 6.5 percent and the City contributes 13 percent of applicable payroll as defined in state 
statute.  An employee is 100 percent vested in his or her contributions, 6.5 percent of monthly compensation, 
and vests 40 percent after four years of service plus 20 percent for each year thereafter, up to 100 percent, in 
the City’s contributions to the Plan.  The employees and the City contributed $112,674 and $225,347, 
respectively, as required by the Plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  Forfeitures used to reduce 
employer contributions as allowed under the Plan were $34,514.  The Plan is administered by a trustee 
independent of the City and is, therefore, not included in these financial statements 
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September 30, 2019 
 

 
 

NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, CONTINUED 
 
1. Employee Pension and Other Benefit Plans, continued 

 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The City has a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  
The plan is available to all City employees.  The plan permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future 
years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, 
unforeseeable emergency or permanent disability. 
 
As of January 1, 1997, these funds were placed in trust, in accordance with IRS Code Section 457(g)(1).  IRS 
Code Section 457(g)(1), applicable for plan year beginning January 1, 1997 states that “a plan maintained by 
an eligible employer shall not be treated as an eligible deferred compensation plan unless all assets and income 
of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.”  The deferred 
compensation plan as placed in trust is not subject to any creditors of the City. 
 
The employees contributed $328,288 and the City contributed $0 under the plan for the year ended September 
30, 2019.   
 
2. Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors 
or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God.  The City purchases commercial insurance and administers 
funds for certain self-insured programs.  The City has self-insured itself for health benefits and workers’ 
compensation claims.  The City maintains a workers’ compensation fund and a self-insured loss fund.  The City 
provides first-dollar coverage for all workers’ compensation exposure, with insurance acting as an umbrella or 
excess coverage.  The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims up to $600,000 per occurrence.  
The City is also self-insured for health insurance claims up to $225,000 of individual claims.  The City currently 
has 246 employees being covered under the health benefit plan.  The self-insurance programs are administered 
within the Internal Service Fund.  The City maintains outside insurance coverage through various insurance 
policies covering buildings and their contents, equipment and property, and risk of loss due to employee 
dishonesty.   
 
Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the commercial coverages.  The City has estimated 
incurred but not reported claims on health benefits, to be $516,495. This amount represents subsequent 
payments on prior year claim activity.  The City has also estimated the incurred but not reported claims on 
workers’ compensation, based on the claims for the two months subsequent to year end, to be $76,075.  This 
has been included as a current year expenditure.  For all of the self-insured funds, an unrestricted net position 
balance of $5,917,799 was in the Internal Service Fund at September 30, 2019. 

 
      
 Claim Liability at 9/30/2018    $     386,247  
 Claims Incurred during current year        5,135,099   
 Claims Paid during current year      (4,928,776)  
      
 Claim Liability at 9/30/2019    $     592,570   
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 
NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, Continued 
 
  2. Risk Management, continued 
 
Deposits and Investments 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk.  The City’s deposits and investment policy places no limit on the amount that 
may be invested in any one issuer.  At September 30, 2019, the City’s investments consisted of certificates of 
deposit at the following institutions:   

Financial Institution Amount

Pinnacle Bank, Fremont 13,406,000$        *
First National Bank, Fremont 13,025,000          *
Nebraska Land National Bank 2,000,000            
First State Bank 2,000,000            
Cornerstone Bank, Columbus 13,800,000          *
Nebraska Public Agency Investment Trust 3,825,000            *
     Totals 48,056,000$        

* represents more than 5% of total investments  
 
Foreign Currency Risk.  This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment from changes in 
exchange rates.  The City’s investments had no exposure to foreign currency risk and the City held no 
investments denominated in foreign currency at September 30, 2019.   
 
Custodial Credit Risk.  For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of a bank or other counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its deposits or investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  All of the underlying securities for the City’s 
investments at September 30, 2019 are held by the counterparties, not in the name of the City.  The underlying 
securities consist of cash, certificates of deposit, and insured money market funds.   
 
Interest Rate Risk.  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 
City’s deposits and investment policy requires that market conditions and investment securities be analyzed to 
determine the maximum yield to be obtained and to minimize the impact of rising interest rates.  The investment 
maturities are as follows:   
Maturities by Month Amount
October 2019 1,500,000$        
December 2019 10,250,000        
January 2020 200,000            
March 2020 16,550,000        
April 2020 100,000            
May 2020 2,100,000          
June 2020 750,000            
August 2020 2,725,000          
September 2020 4,235,000          
Due in more than 12 months 9,646,000          

48,056,000$      
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Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2019 
 

 
NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, Continued 
 
  2. Risk Management, Continued 
 
Deposits and Investments, Continued 
 
Credit Risk.  Credit risk is the risk that the bank or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligations.  The City’s 
cash equivalents and investments consist of certificates of deposit and money market funds, minimizing credit 
risk associated with the City’s investment portfolio.   
 
  3. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Construction 
 
The City is a party to numerous contracts relating to construction and other capital addition projects. The City 
intends to fund the construction through operations or long-term financing. 

Contract Paid Through Obligation   Expected

Project Amount 9/30/2019 Pending Completion

Governmental:
Pierce St Recons, Linden-Military 23,590$         2,700$            20,890$            September 30, 2022
Luther Road Widening, Military-23rd 95,900           76,161            19,739               September 30, 2025
1st Street, Bell-Luther 78,500           72,630            5,870                 September 30, 2025
32nd St Paving Improvements 82,330           76,910            5,420                 September 30, 2022
Rawhide Creek Trail 228,241         48,606            179,635            September 30, 2021
Records Management CAD System 378,855         303,084          75,771               April 30, 2020
Johnson Road South Paving 1,644,634      206,828          1,437,807         September 30, 2020
Airport Aircraft Apron 2,432,581      195,455          2,237,126         September 30, 2020
City Auditorium Remodel 2,883,500      250,206          2,633,294         October 31, 2020
77 & Cloverly Intersection 259,459         45,000            214,459            September 30, 2020
911 Address Point Layer 32,068           25,850            6,218                 May 31, 2020
Southeast Beltway 20,000,000   13,340,000    6,660,000         September 30, 2022

Enterprise Funds:
69kV Joint Transmission Line 19,507,091   15,243,363    4,263,728         September 30, 2020
WWTP Upgrade 45,062,587   30,625,872    14,436,715       November 30, 2020
SCADA control system 2,253,883      562,631          1,691,252         June 30, 2021
Roadway Subdivision Water Main 29,000           14,473            14,527               July 31, 2020
North Gas Main Extension Project 170,518         74,744            95,774               September 30, 2020
Gallery 23 Gas Main 66,157           61,064            5,093                 November 30, 2019
202 Freightliner Dump Truck 104,537         -                104,537            March 31, 2020
Municipal Buidling Elevator ADA 53,610           35,600            18,011               September 30, 2021
Honeywell Controls Hardware 484,020         338,814          145,206            April 30, 2020
Coal Handling Rail Extension 62,400           8,736              53,664               June 30, 2020

95,933,461$ 61,608,727$  34,324,736$    
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2019 

 
 
NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, CONTINUED 
 
  3. Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 
 
Claims and Litigation 
 
The City is involved in various litigation in the normal course of its operations and services. In the opinion of City 
management, although the outcome of any legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, the ultimate 
liability of the City in connection with its legal proceedings will not have a material effect on the City’s financial 
position, but could be material to the results of operations in future accounting periods. 
 
Government Grants 
 
The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, which are subject to financial and 
compliance audits. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, is 
not determinable at this time; however, City officials do not believe that such amounts, if any, would be 
significant. 
 
Regulatory Compliance 
 
The City of Fremont is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to finance 
fly ash closure and postclosure care.  The City is in compliance with these requirements, and at September 30, 
2019 investments of $1,000,000 are held for these purposes.  These investments are held in certificates of 
deposit and are presented on the City’s balance sheet as restricted investments.  Details of the restricted cash 
and investments are in Note C1.  It is anticipated that future inflation costs will be financed in part from earnings 
on investments.  The remaining portion of anticipated future inflation costs (including inadequate earnings on 
investments, if any) and additional costs that might arise from changes in postclosure requirements (due to 
changes in technology or more rigorous environmental regulations, for example) may need to be covered by 
charges to future electricity customers, taxpayers, or both.   
 
The Department’s operations are subject to stringent federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to 
improving and maintaining environmental quality. Current studies have determined that a substantial capital 
investment will be required to bring the Department into compliance with environmental regulations including 
mercury emissions. Environmental expenditures related to current operations are factored into the strategic 
planning process of the Department and are considered when determining future energy rates. Financing of 
these expenditures is expected to be through available cash reserves and bonded debt. 
 
Electric Department 
 
On November 13, 2018, the Electric Department entered into an agreement with Cloud Peak Energy Resources, 
LLC., effective January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.  Under the terms of the agreement, the City must 
purchase 225,000 tons of coal at an agreed-upon base price per ton, which will be adjusted each month for any 
variation in the Base Btu.  As of September 30, 2019, the City had purchased 207,907 of the tons required under 
this contract. 
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September 30, 2019 
 

 
NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, CONTINUED 
 
  3. Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 
 
Electric Department, continued, 
 
The Electric Department entered into a rail transportation agreement with Union Pacific Railroad Company for 
coal shipping.  The contract term is January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2018.  Under the terms of the 
agreement, the City must use Union Pacific to ship a minimum of 300,000 tons and a maximum volume of 
400,000 tons for each twelve-month period during the contract term.  The agreed-upon base rate per net ton is 
adjusted quarterly, based on the percentage change in the rail cost adjustment factor, as well as a mileage-
based fuel surcharge. 
 
On September 11, 2018, the Electric Department entered into a rail transportation agreement with Union Pacific 
Railroad Company for coal shipping.  The contract term is January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2024.  Under 
the terms of the agreement, the shipping rate will increase 2.02 percent from the shipping rate effective July 1, 
2018.  The price will be adjusted based on the percentage change in the rail cost adjustment factor, as well as 
a mileage-based fuel surcharge adjusted monthly.  The City must use Union Pacific to ship a minimum of 
270,000 tons and a maximum volume of 400,000 tons for each twelve month(s) period, beginning January 1, 
2019 through December 31, 2019, and each twelve month(s) period thereafter. 
 
In 2016, the Electric Department entered into a power purchase agreement with Cottonwood Wind Project, LLC 
for power from a single wind energy facility of approximately 40 MW effective December 5, 2016 through 
December 5, 2041.  During the 15th contact year, the City may exercise its option to purchase the facility property 
within 180 days after the end of the term. 
 
Gas Department 
 
The Gas Department entered into an agreement to purchase natural gas from the Central Plains Energy Project 
#3 (CPEP3) in April 2012.  The agreement requires the City to purchase fixed monthly quantities of gas through 
2042 at a discounted price that accounts for approximately 17 percent of the City’s current requirements. 
 
The Gas Department entered into an agreement to purchase natural gas from BP Canada Energy Marketing 
Corp. on September 18, 2012.  The agreement was extended in June 2016 and is effective through October 31, 
2020.  The agreement stipulates the volume of maximum daily quantity purchases which varies depending on 
the month of the purchase.  The price is based on the monthly index published inside the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) Gas Market Report. 
 
In September 2018, the Gas Department entered into a contract to purchase natural gas from The Public .Energy 
Authority of Kentucky (PEAK).  The contract term is April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2049.  Under the agreement, the 
City will purchase an average daily quantity of natural gas at a minimum discounted rate.  At the end of each 
gas delivery resent period, the City has the right to elect not to purchase gas if the price of gas is above the 
minimum discount specified in the contract.  The volume represents approximately 24 percent of the city’s 
current requirements. 
 
The Gas Department entered into an agreement to purchase natural gas from the Central Plains Energy Project 
#4 (CPEP4) in November 2018.  The agreement requires the City to purchase fixed monthly quantities of gas 
through 2042 at a discounted price that accounts for approximately 14 percent of the City’s current requirements. 
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NOTE D – OTHER NOTES, CONTINUED 
 
  4. Major Customers 
 
The City has one customer that was billed $3,655,602 for electricity, $2,145,289 for gas, $2,168,926 for sewer 
and $480,484 for water for the year ended September 30, 2019.  This represents 9.6 percent of total electric 
billing, 14.5 percent of total gas billing, 43.8 percent of total sewer billing, and 12.5 percent of total water 
billing, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2019.  (The billings represent 14.2 percent of total City 
utility billings.)  This customer maintains a current status on monthly billings. 
 
5. Union Contracts 

 
The City is subject to the following union contracts: 
 

 International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1536 Unit 5 – effective October 1, 2017 – 
September 30, 2021. 

 
 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL/CIO Local 251 – effective October 

1, 2017 – September 30, 2021. 
 
 International Association of Fire Fighters Local 1015 – effective October 1, 2017 – September 30, 2021. 
 
 Fraternal Order of Police, Local No. 37 – effective October 1, 2019 – September 30, 2021. 

 
 
  6. Subsequent Events 
 
On January 28, 2020, the Electric Department entered into an agreement with Navajo Transitional Energy 
Company, effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021.  Under the terms of the agreement, the City 
must purchase 225,000 tons of coal at an agreed-upon base price per ton each year, which will be adjusted 
each month for any variation in the Base Btu. 
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Variances -
Budget Actual Over 

(Original and (Under) Final
Final) Actual Budget

RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Taxes:

Property 5,981,702$    5,989,693$     7,991$          
Payments in lieu of taxes 9,000            12,133           3,133            
Franchise 250,000        284,469         34,469          
Business 1,610,000     1,797,928       187,928        

Intergovernmental 2,019,776     1,702,626       (317,150)       
Charges for services 2,765,000     3,080,230       315,230        
Donations 565,000        13,330           (551,670)       
Interest income 25,000          176,250         151,250        
Other 6,002,000     366,831         (5,635,169)     

Total resources 19,227,478    13,423,490     (5,803,988)     

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
General government 5,336,620     5,623,288       286,668        
Public safety 9,770,531     9,060,418       (710,113)       
Public works 493,940        462,507         (31,433)         
Environment and leisure 12,567,519    3,601,376       (8,966,143)     
Employee insurance 352,000        305,542         (46,458)         

Total charges to appropriations 28,520,610    19,053,131     (9,467,479)     

Resources over (under) charges
   to appropriations (9,293,132)    (5,629,641)      3,663,491      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,811,440     7,662,311       (149,129)       
Transfers out (1,606,750)    (13,399)          1,593,351      

Net transfers 6,204,690     7,648,912       1,444,222      

RESOURCES AND OTHER FINANCING
   SOURCES (USES) OVER (UNDER)
   CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (3,088,442)$   2,019,271$     5,107,713$    

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Variances -
Budget Actual Over 

(Original and (Under) Final
Final) Actual Budget

RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Motor vehicle tax 575,000$      588,746$        13,746$        
Intergovernmental 3,510,109     3,715,470       205,361        
Charges for services 30,000          1,629             (28,371)         
Interest income 30,000          155,043         125,043        
Other income 4,000,000     4,107             (3,995,893)     

Total resources 8,145,109     4,464,995       (3,680,114)     

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Public works 20,088,684    17,390,355     (2,698,329)     

Resources over (under) charges to
   appropriations (11,943,575)   (12,925,360)    (981,785)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 6,279,114     12,587,992     6,308,878      

RESOURCES AND OTHER FINANCING
   SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
   CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (5,664,461)$   (337,368)$       5,327,093$    

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
STREET FUND
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Variances -
Budget Actual Over 

(Original and (Under) Final
Final) Actual Budget

RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Sales tax 6,834,000$    7,858,620$     1,024,620$    
Charges for services -             12,237           12,237          
Interest income 43,150          256,141         212,991        
Other income -             326,813         326,813        
Loan repayment proceeds -             303,623         303,623        

Total resources 6,877,150     8,757,434       1,880,284      

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 
(OUTFLOWS)
General government 2,019,000     2,871,987       852,987        

Resources over (under) charges to
   appropriations 4,858,150     5,885,447       1,027,297      

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (10,451,506)   (16,922,498)    (6,470,992)     

RESOURCES OVER (UNDER)
   CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 
   AND OTHER FINANCING USES (5,593,356)$   (11,037,051)$  (5,443,695)$   

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
SALES TAX FUND
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Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
Modified Accrual Revenue and Expenditures

General Street Sales Tax
Fund Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts of resources (budgetary basis) from 

the budgetary comparison schedules 13,423,490$  4,464,995$     8,757,434$    
Differences - budget to modified accrual:

Cash to accrual adjustments 384,674        77,690           (131,819)       
Total revenues as reported on the statement of 

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances - governmental funds 13,808,164$  4,542,685$     8,625,615$    

Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges 

to appropriations" from the budgetary 
comparison schedules 19,053,131$  17,390,355$   2,871,987$    

Differences - budget to modified accrual:
Cash to accrual adjustments (8,811)           229,922         (1,265,322)     

Total expenditures as reported on the statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances - governmental funds 19,044,320$  17,620,277$   1,606,665$    

Other financing sources (uses):
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "net transfers"

from the budgetary comparison schedules 7,648,912$    12,587,992$   (16,922,498)$ 
Differences - budget to modified accrual:

Cash to accrual adjustments 39,472          (6,026)            75,031          
Net transfers as reported on the statement 

of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances - governmental funds 7,688,384$    12,581,966$   (16,847,467)$ 

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES -
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

The City prepares its budgets on the cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recognized 
when cash is received by the City and expenditures are recognized when cash is disbursed.  This basis 
is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Under this method of accounting, all unexpended appropriations lapse at the 
end of the budget year.

Amounts presented on the cash basis of accounting differ from those presented in accordance with the 
modified accrual basis of accounting due to the treatment of afforded accruals. A reconciliation for the 
year ended September 30, 2019, which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary 
to convert the modified accrual data to the budgetary basis, is presented below:
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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Paving & Business Public Use
Debt Sidewalk Improvement Property Special Keno CDBG Weatherization

Service Districts District #1 Projects Fund Fund EDA (HUD)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 118,186$    306,880$             58,053$    19,605$          336,728$    24,504$        52,203$      
Investments -           1,500,000            -         160,000          300,000     -             -           
County treasurer cash 9,369          -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Receivables:

Special assessments -           203,264               6,771       -               -           -             -           
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts -           -                    -         -               24,159       -             8,285         
Notes, net of allowance for doubtful accounts -           -                    -         -               -           -             852,752      
Interest -           42,781                 -         1,030             1,248         -             -           
Property tax 25,278        -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Business tax -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           
TIF notes receivable -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           

Due from other governments -           -                    -         -               -           3,180            -           
Due from other funds -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           

Total assets 152,833$    2,052,925$           64,824$    180,635$        662,135$    27,684$        913,240$    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$          -$                   586$        -$             37,638$     1,140$          462$          
Due to other funds -           -                    -         -               -           29,000          -           
Accrued expenses -           201                     -         -               -           -             -           
Customer deposits -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           

Total liabilities -           201                     586          -               37,638       30,140          462            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 21,955        -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Unavailable revenue - other local taxes -           203,264               6,771       -               -           -             -           
Unavailable revenue - fees and other -           -                    -         -               -           -             8,285         

Total deferred inflows of resources 21,955        203,264               6,771       -               -           -             8,285         

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable:

Permanent fund principal -           -                    -         125,000          -           -             -           
Restricted for:

Debt service 130,878      -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Public safety -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Economic development -           -                    -         -               -           -             -           
Capital/special projects -           1,849,460            -         55,635            -           -             -           
Federal programs -           -                    -         -               -           -             904,493      
Community betterment -           -                    -         -               624,497     -             -           

Assigned for:
Downtown improvements/parking -           -                    57,467      -               -           -             -           

Unassigned -           -                    -         -               -           (2,456)           -           
Total fund balances (deficit) 130,878      1,849,460            57,467      180,635          624,497     (2,456)           904,493      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources and fund balances 152,833$    2,052,925$           64,824$    180,635$        662,135$    27,684$        913,240$    

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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Capital Projects
Enhanced & Community Total Non-major

Economic Airport Wireless Drug Task Development Special Governmental
Enhancement Fund 911 Force Agency Projects Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 413,987$        14,669$      194,584$    30,230$      131,606$      548,056$      2,249,291$     
Investments -               -           250,000      -           -             -             2,210,000       
County treasurer cash -               -           -           -           -             -             9,369             
Receivables:

Special assessments -               128,562      -           -           -             -             338,597         
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts -               3,009         -           -           -             -             35,453           
Notes, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 235,000          -           -           -           -             -             1,087,752       
Interest -               -           4,036         -           -             -             49,095           
Property tax -               -           -           -           -             -             25,278           
Business tax -               -           25,773       -           -             -             25,773           
TIF notes receivable -               -           -           -           225,398        -             225,398         

Due from other governments -               172,035      54,831       -           -             -             230,046         
Due from other funds -               -           101,829      -           -             -             101,829         

Total assets 648,987$        318,275$    631,053$    30,230$      357,004$      548,056$      6,587,881$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$             35,114$      13,329$      -$         -$            -$            88,269$         
Due to other funds -               147,923      200,000      -           391,782        -             768,705         
Accrued expenses -               830            25,945       -           -             -             26,976           
Customer deposits -               6,600         -           -           -             -             6,600             

Total liabilities -               190,467      239,274      -           391,782        -             890,550         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes -               -           -           -           -             -             21,955           
Unavailable revenue - other local taxes -               -           -           -           -             -             210,035         
Unavailable revenue - fees and other -               128,562      54,831       -           225,398        -             417,076         

Total deferred inflows of resources -               128,562      54,831       -           225,398        -             649,066         

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable:

Permanent fund principal -               -           -           -           -             -             125,000         
Restricted for:

Debt service -               -           -           -           -             -             130,878         
Public safety -               -           336,948      30,230       -             -             367,178         
Economic development 648,987          -           -           -           -             -             648,987         
Capital/special projects -           -           -           -             548,056        2,453,151       
Federal programs -               -           -           -           -             -             904,493         
Community betterment -               -           -           -           -             -             624,497         

Assigned for:
Downtown improvements/parking -               -           -           -           -             -             57,467           

Unreserved -               (754)           -           -           (260,176)       -             (263,386)        
Total fund balances (deficit) 648,987          (754)           336,948      30,230       (260,176)       548,056        5,048,265       
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
  of resources and fund balances 648,987$        318,275$    631,053$    30,230$      357,004$      548,056$      6,587,881$     

Special Revenue Funds

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

Paving & Business Public Use
Debt Sidewalk Improvement Property Special Keno CDBG Weatherization

Service Districts District #1 Projects Fund Fund EDA (HUD)

REVENUES
Property tax 377,399$      -$             -$          -$                 -$            -$                 -$            
Occupation taxes -               -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Payments in lieu of taxes 786                -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Intergovernmental -               -               -            -                    -              26,485               29,522          
Keno -               -               -            -                    758,810        -                   -               
Charges for services -               72,757           44,993        -                    -              -                   -               
Donations -               -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Interest income 303                89,963           125             6,082                  9,679            -                   1,023             
Other income -               -               -            -                    1,680            -                   -               

Total revenues 378,488        162,720        45,118        6,082                  770,169        26,485               30,545          

EXPENDITURES
General government 844                -               27,774        -                    -              27,355               291,741        
Public safety -               -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Public works -               68,544           -            -                    -              -                   -               
Environment and leisure -               -               -            -                    189,520        -                   -               
Principal payments on debt 300,000        -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Interest on long-term debt 42,715           -               -            -                    -              -                   -               

Total expenditures 343,559        68,544           27,774        -                    189,520        27,355               291,741        

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 34,929           94,176           17,344        6,082                  580,649        (870)                   (261,196)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -               -               -            -                    -              -                   -               
Transfers out -               -               -            (1,615)                (420,000)      -                   -               

Total other financing sources (uses) -               -               -            (1,615)                (420,000)      -                   -               

Net change in fund balances 34,929           94,176           17,344        4,467                  160,649        (870)                   (261,196)       

Fund balances - September 30, 2018 95,949           1,755,284     40,123        176,168             463,848        (1,586)                1,165,689     

Fund balances - September 30, 2019 130,878$      1,849,460$   57,467$     180,635$           624,497$     (2,456)$              904,493$      

Special Revenue Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
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CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA

Capital Projects
Enhanced & Community Total Non-major

Economic Airport Wireless Drug Task Development Special Governmental
Enhancement Fund 911 Force Agency Projects Funds

REVENUES
Property tax -$            -$               -$               -$                398,174$         -$                775,573$             
Occupation taxes -               -                 116,282           -                  -                  -                  116,282                
Payment in lieu of taxes -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  786                        
Intergovernmental -               172,035           946,248           6,343                -                  -                  1,180,633            
Keno -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  758,810                
Charges for services -               142,057           -                  -                  -                  -                  259,807                
Donations -               -                 4,075                -                  -                  -                  4,075                    
Interest income 1,185             400                   7,088                -                  65                      1,315                117,228                
Other income -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  1,680                    

Total revenues 1,185             314,492           1,073,693        6,343                398,239           1,315                3,214,874            

EXPENDITURES
General government 60,000          -                 -                  -                  434,746           -                  842,460                
Public safety -               -                 1,007,979        -                  -                  -                  1,007,979            
Public works -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  68,544                  
Environment and leisure -               371,593           -                  -                  -                  12,937              574,050                
Principal payments on debt -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  300,000                
Interest on long-term debt -               -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  42,715                  

Total expenditures 60,000          371,593           1,007,979        -                  434,746           12,937              2,835,748            

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (58,815)         (57,101)            65,714             6,343                (36,507)            (11,622)            379,126                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 100,000        -                 -                  -                  -                  12,937              112,937                
Transfers out -                 -                 -                  (2,348)               -                  -                  (423,963)              

Total other financing sources (uses) 100,000        -                 -                  (2,348)               -                  12,937              (311,026)              

Net change in fund balances 41,185          (57,101)            65,714             3,995                (36,507)            1,315                68,100                  

Fund balances - September 30, 2018 607,802        56,347             271,234           26,235              (223,669)          546,741           4,980,165            

Fund balances - September 30, 2019 648,987$      (754)$               336,948$         30,230$           (260,176)$        548,056$         5,048,265$          

Special Revenue Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Page 80

Item No. 5.



 

 

 
 
 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and  
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed  

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Fremont, Nebraska 
Fremont, Nebraska 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Fremont, Nebraska (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 6, 2020. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Omaha, Nebraska 
March 6, 2020 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Fremont 
Fremont, Nebraska 
 
 
As part of our audit of the financial statements of the City of Fremont, Nebraska as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2019, we wish to communicate the following to you. 
 
 
AUDIT SCOPE AND RESULTS 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States 
of America and the Standards Applicable to Financial Audits Contained in Government 
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 
 
An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States is designed to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about the financial statements.  In performing auditing procedures, 
we establish scopes of audit tests in relation to the opinion unit being audited.  Our engagement 
does not include a detailed audit of every transaction.  Our engagement letter more specifically 
describes our responsibilities. 
 
These standards require communication of significant matters related to the financial statement 
audit that are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the 
financial reporting process.  Such matters are communicated in the remainder of this letter or have 
previously been communicated during other phases of the audit.  The standards do not require the 
auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be communicated with 
those charged with governance. 
 
An audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 
governance of their responsibilities.  Our engagement letter more specifically describes your 
responsibilities. 
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Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The City’s significant accounting policies are described in Note A of the audited financial 
statements. 
 
Alternative Accounting Treatments 
 
We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for policies and practices 
for material items, including recognition, measurement and disclosure considerations related to the 
accounting for specific transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows: 
 

 Proper accounting treatment in accordance with the regulated operations provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 62. 

 
Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based 
on its judgments.  The following areas involve significant areas of such estimates for which we 
are prepared to discuss management’s estimation process and our procedures for testing the 
reasonableness of those estimates: 
 

 Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 
 Unbilled revenue – utility accounts 
 Self-insured health and worker’s compensation claims  

 
Financial Statement Disclosures 
 
The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are 
prepared to discuss the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those 
disclosures: 
  

 Revenue recognition  
 Risk management 
 Commitments and contingencies 

 
Audit Adjustments 
 
During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement 
amounts.  Management evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments which, in its 
judgment, are required to prevent the financial statements from being materially misstated.  A 
misstatement is a difference between the amount, classification, presentation or disclosure of a 
reported financial statement item and that which is required for the item to be presented fairly in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 
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Proposed Audit Adjustments Recorded: 
 

 Accounts payable 
 Compensated absences 

  
Auditor’s Judgments About the Quality of the City’s Accounting Principles 
 
No matters are reportable. 
 
Other Material Communications 
 
Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit: 
 

 Management representation letter (attached) 
 We orally communicated to management other deficiencies in internal control 

identified during our audit that are not considered material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies 

 
OTHER MATTERS 
 
We observed the following matters and offer these comments and suggestions with respect to 
matters which came to our attention during the course of the audit of the financial statements.  Our 
audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements 
and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies and procedures that may exist.  
However, these matters are offered as constructive suggestions for the consideration of 
management as part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving financial and 
administrative practices and procedures.  We can discuss these matters further at your convenience 
and may provide implementation assistance for changes or improvements. 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
(GASB 84).  GASB 84 establishes criteria for identifying and reporting fiduciary activities.  It 
presents separate criteria for evaluating component units, pension and other postemployment 
benefit arrangements, and other fiduciary activities.  The focus is on a government controlling the 
assets of the fiduciary activity and identification of the beneficiaries of those assets.  Fiduciary 
activities are reported in one of four types of funds: pension (and other employee benefit) trust 
funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, or custodial funds.  Custodial funds are 
used to report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust.  The agency fund designation will no 
longer be used.  GASB 84 also provides guidance on fiduciary fund statements and timing of 
recognition of a liability to beneficiaries. 
 
This statement will be effective for the City’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2020. 
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87).  
GASB 87 establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.  Under this statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is 
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the 
relevance and consistency of information about the governments’ leasing activities.   
 
This statement will be effective for the City’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
 

*     *     *     *     * 
 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, city council 
members and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
March 6, 2020 
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STAFF REPORT  
 
 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Jennifer Dam, Planning Director 

DATE: March 10, 2020  

SUBJECT:     Conditional Use Permit for Child Care Facility 
 

 
Recommendation:  Approval of Resolution #2020-054 
 

Background:  
 
This is a request for a Conditional Use Permit for a child care center at 749 N. William. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 18 and voted to 
recommend approval by a vote of 7-0. 
 
The property was previously used as a church. 
 
The property is zoned UR, Urban Residential. 
 
The property to the north is zoned SR, Suburban Residential and is developed with a 
child care facility. The property to the east is zoned AR, Auto-urban Residential and is 
developed with residential uses. The property to the south is zoned UR, Urban 
Residential and is developed with multi-family dwellings. The area to the west is zoned 
UR, Urban Residential and is developed with townhouse residential units.  The area 
further west and southwest is zoned SC, Suburban Commercial and is developed with 
commercial uses. 
 
The child care center will be an annex of the Little Peas child care center in the 
adjacent strip mall. 
 
There will be a total of 10 staff and 50 children between the two facilities. 
 
It is not clear how parents will circulate between the two facilities. Staff will park at the 
property owned by the applicant down the street.  A draft agreement between the 
owner of the property and the operator of the daycare is attached. To ensure that 
there are not parking or circulation issues, staff recommends an annual review of this 
conditional use permit by the Planning Commission. 
 
Section 11-504.02.D states: 
 
“Child Care Centers are conditionally permitted provided that:  
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1. Child Care Centers in the R, SR, AR or UR districts may only be permitted in 
places of public assembly that provide adequate area for off-street circulation, 
drop-off and parking. 
 

The applicant has stated that the operator of the facility will have a contract with 
him to have the 10 staff park at his property at 8th and Clarmar.  This will be a 
condition of approval. 

 
2. In all instances the site is 300 feet from a MH, LI, GI, AV or PO district as 

measured from the boundary lines nearest each other, unless separated from 
such district by a type B bufferyard or a collector or arterial roadway;  
 

The property is more than 300 feet from a MH, LI, GI, AV or PO district. 
 
3. Primary access to the site is from a collector or arterial roadway. 

 
William acts as a collector street at this site.  The staff parking lot is adjacent to a 
minor arterial. 
 
4. Adequate precautions have been taken on behalf of the operator so as not to 

create an undue burden on neighboring properties via traffic, parking and noise; 
 

The property is adjacent to apartment buildings and across the street from another 
child care facility. The staff will park down the street.  The applicant is providing three 
parking stalls for drop-off and pick-up. 

 
5. The application shall be accompanied by the following information  
 a. The number of children and number of staff members on the largest shift; 
 b. A physical description of the facility and a site plan drawn to scale that 
includes, but is not limited to, property boundaries, structures on the site, the location 
and arrangement of parking spaces, the traffic circulations pattern, loading and 
unloading areas, fencing, landscaping, play area, and entrances/exits to such facility.” 
 
There will be 50 children and 10 staff between the two facilities on the largest shift.  A 
site plan is attached. 
 
Staff recommends that the conditional use permit be reviewed annually by the 
Planning Commission to ensure that parking and circulation flow smoothly.  
Additionally, staff recommends that the conditional use permit be granted for the 
proposed operator.  A change in ownership of the property or management of the 
daycare center will require that a new conditional use permit be granted. 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A  
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-054 
 
 
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to allow a 
Child Care facility on property legally described as the East 100 feet of the 
North 125 feet of Johnson’s Addition, located at 749 N William Street, 
Fremont, Nebraska. 
 
WHEREAS, Sam Heineman has requested a Conditional Use Permit for a Child 

Care facility at 749 N. William Street for the current operator of Little 
Peas Academy; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The property is zoned UR, Urban Residential which requires a 

Conditional Use Permit for a Child Care facility ; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 18, 2020 

and subsequently recommended conditional approval 7-0 with 
Borisow, Landholm, Sawyer, Nielson, Sookram and Gifford voting aye; 
and,  

 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that the Conditional Use 
Permit be reviewed annually by the Planning Commission to ensure 
that parking and circulation flow smoothly; and, 

WHEREAS,  The Planning Commission recommended that the draft parking agreement 
be executed as a condition of approval; and, 

 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that any change in ownership of 
the property or change in management of the daycare center will require 
review and approval of a new Conditional Use Permit. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Fremont 
approves a Conditional Use Permit for a Child Care center to Sam Heineman for 
the Little Peas Academy managed by Breanna Klinzing with the condition that the 
permit receive annual review by the Planning Commission and will expire upon the 
change in ownership of the property or management of the Child Care. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH 2020. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
 
 

Page 108

Item No. 6.



ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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STAFF REPORT 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Jennifer L. Dam, AICP, Planning Director 

DATE: March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT: Revised Bluestem Commons Planned Development 

 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval to City Council. 

 

 
Background: 
The developer submitted revisions to the Bluestem Commons Planned Development. 
The revised site plan, narrative and landscape plan are addressed below. The revised 
proposal moves the apartment buildings to the north and west portion of the property, 
removes the commercial lots at the intersection of County Road T and Luther Road, 
and revises the street and lot layout. The clubhouse site is proposed to be a mixed use 
by incorporating neighborhood commercial uses into the clubhouse. 
 
An agreement for the Planned Development will be required as a part of this approval. 

 
History: 
Initially, the Planning Commission held public hearings on November 18, 2019 and 
again on December 16, 2019. The Planning Commission did not act on the request in 
November and voted to recommend denial of the Planned Development with a 5-4 vote 
in December. The Planning Commissioners expressed concern about the design of the 
attached units and the density of the proposed project. 

 
In response to the concerns expressed at the November 18, 2019 Planning Commission 
meeting, the proposed development was been revised to move the apartment buildings that 
were along Luther Rd an additional 20’ to the west to provide an additional area for a 
landscape berm, landscape screen, and buffering along N. Luther Rd. In addition, the 
developer reduced the maximum number of multi-family apartment units from 288 to 272.  
The entire site plan, number of units and landscaping have been redesigned in the new 
plan. 
 
At the February 18th Planning Commission meeting, the commission voted 5-1 to approve 
the revised planned development. 

 
Review of Revised Proposal: 

 
This is a request for a change of zone from R, Rural to PD, Planned 
Development. On property generally described as: 
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THE NORTH 1406.00 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, 
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, 
NEBRASKA, LYING EAST OF THE ABANDONED CHICAGO AND 
NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY. 

 
The property is zoned R, Rural. The property to the north, west and south are zoned R, Rural. 
The Ritz Lake subdivision is to the east which is zoned PD, Planned Development. 

 
The revised planned development is proposed to contain 63 row houses; 69 duplex/triplex 
units, and; 8 apartment buildings each containing between 30 and 34 units (maximum of 
272 units). 

 

The duplex, triplex and row house lots meet or exceed the minimum lot sizes in the UR, 
Urban Residential District. 

 

The housing consists of multi-family, two-family, three family and row-house housing with 
four or more units.  Additionally, the narrative associated with the Planned Development 
indicates that there will be more than four elevations for the units. This meets the 
requirements of 11-602.03. 

 
The commercial area at the corner of County Road T and Luther Road has been removed. 
Instead, an interior lot is provided that is proposed to contain a mix of commercial uses, a 
clubhouse and green space area to serve the development. These uses will be contained 
in one building. 

 
The commercial/clubhouse building will have a maximum floor area ratio of .17 for a one story 
building or .34 for a two story building. The maximum gross building area would be 15,000 
square feet for a one story building or 30,000 square feet for a two story building. 

 
The narrative states that the commercial uses would be restricted to the 

following: Permitted uses shall include but are not limited to: 
• Convenience Store/neighborhood market 
• Restaurant/Coffee Shop (NO drive-thru window/automobile queueing lanes) 
• Laundromat/dry cleaning 
• Child Care Center 
• Mail Services 
• Office (Medical/Urgent Care, Insurance Agent, Lawyer, Accounting, Real Estate) 
• Retail Service Establishment (Boutique Commercial, Salon/Spa) 

 
Conditional uses shall include but are not limited to: 

 

• General Merchandise Retail Sales Establishment 
• Mixed Use 
• Farmers’ Market 
• Financial services/Check Cashing 
• Bar/Tavern 
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Prohibited uses shall include but are not limited to: 
• Adult establishments 
• Auto Sales and Service Establishments 
• Automotive Repair Services/Car Wash 
• Small Animal Veterinary Services 
• Animal Grooming Facilities 
• Financial Institutions (with drive-thru window/auto queueing lanes) 
• Restaurant / Fast food (with drive-thru window/auto queueing lanes) 
• Funeral Establishment/Funeral Home 
• Small Animal Boarding Facilities 
• Service Station 

 
The Planning Commission will need to review and the City Council will need to 
approve an amendment to the PD if conditional uses are proposed. 

 
An outlot with a storm water retention cell and a trail is located in the southwest corner 
of the property.  The retention cell will be oversized to accommodate a “100 year” storm 
event. 

 
The overall design of the proposed Planned Development provides alternative housing types 
with amenities to appeal to a broad section of the Fremont market. 

 
A homeowner’s association will be established to maintain the outlots, detention cell and trail. 

 

The Public Works Director had no comments on the revised plan. 

 
The developer has provided easements as requested by the Utilities Department. Bicycle 
parking is shown on the site plan. 
 

The Public Works Director previously noted that the sidewalks along outlots and common 
areas should be part of the public improvements and addressed in the subdivision 
agreement. 

 
The police chief has no objections. 

 
The proposal is consistent with the land use designation in the Comprehensive Plan and is 
consistent with neighboring uses.  
 
The Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan shows the area as future 
residential use.  
 
While the Comprehensive Plan does not designate mixed use districts, it does make 
reference to “Suburban Village” type development. A Suburban Village development is 
described as follows: 

“Outside of Downtown Fremont and along the major corridors, commercial uses 
should be designed at a neighborhood scale in clustered nodes. Rather than linear 
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strips, these village centers will have much smaller building footprints than 
businesses found on 23rd Street, and they typically cater to neighborhood 
conveniences such as drug stores, professional services, and boutique retail 
uses…. Proposed locations include smaller commercial centers surrounded by 
neighborhoods. 

Development types 
 Mixed use (on single sites and within individual structures) 
 Attached residential dwellings 
 Live/work units 
 Commercial retail 
 Office 
 Public/institutional 
 Entertainment 
 Parking structures 
 Parks, plazas and civic spaces.” (page 2.10) 

 
The future land use section of the plan (page 2.24) describes policies for “Smaller 
neighborhood commercial and mixed use villages.” The policies include: 

 “Smaller, neighborhood commercial and mixed use suburban villages should be 
sited in locations throughout the community. This type of development contrasts 
with the concentration of strip shopping malls along 23rd street, which have large 
building footprints and proportionately large parking lots, and thus, visual impacts. 

 Sites for the suburban villages should be located at the intersections of collector or 
arterial streets and at the edge of neighborhood areas. Some villages may be 
integrated within neighborhoods where suitable sites exist and conditions are 
appropriate to balance compatibility with convenience… 

 Village centers should have liberal open space and landscaping to enhance the 
neighborhood feel and to buffer between commercial and residential uses. 

 Each village should be pedestrian focused and connected to the neighborhood 
sidewalk and trail system.” 

 
The proposed development adheres to the Comprehensive Plan principle that there should 
be “Diverse housing types and price points to accommodate a broad demographic and 
socioeconomic composition.” 

 
A recommended action in the Comprehensive Plan was to “pre-zone areas to the north 

and to the east (U.S. 30 bypass plus the U.S. 30 and 23rd Street interchange) to 
encourage multiple housing types offering higher-density housing options, more efficient 
land use, and preservation of open space.” 

 
The proposal is consistent with the policies in the Comprehensive Plan regarding 
affordable housing.  Specifically, it adheres to the following policies: 

 
•Regulatory and procedural impediments to affordable housing development 
should be evaluated and mitigated, when appropriate, to encourage 
developments of this nature. 
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•New multi-family housing developments should integrate affordable housing 
units so that their design complements the surrounding context. 

 
The proposal is consistent with the policies related to compact, contiguous community 
form in the Comprehensive Plan.  Those policies include: 

 
•”The City will grow contiguously to manage the efficiency of public services 
and municipal infrastructure provision, to maintain a compact and well defined 
community form, and to oblige its fiscal responsibility.” 

The proposed subdivision adheres to the goal of placing development in 
areas where adequate public services and utility capacity are in place. 
Additionally, the proposed subdivision extends existing infrastructure and is 
designed to accommodate future growth to the north. 

 
•”The street, sidewalk, and trail network should be continuous and citywide, 
connecting eastern neighborhoods and amenities to western ones, and northern 
neighborhoods and amenities to southern ones.” 

The proposed development will install sidewalks along Luther and County 
Road A system of sidewalks and trails is proposed in the interior of the 
development. 

 
•”The development pattern should promote walking and bicycling within 
neighborhoods and to neighborhood commercial centers and corridors.” 

The proposed development includes sidewalks and trails, including 
sidewalk connections to the proposed commercial areas. 

 
The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies regarding the 
character preservation of street, block and school patterns. Those policies include: 

 
•”The future land use plan and necessary zoning changes will guide future 
development character, which addresses the design and intensity of 
development, the arrangement of buildings and parking areas, and the 
preservation of open space. “ 

The proposed development is consistent with the future land use plan. 
The layout complies with zoning regulations. A substantial amount of open 
space is preserved. 

 
•”The character of existing areas will be protected by requiring development 
of a compatible character or adequately transitioning and buffering areas of 
different character.” 

The proposed development is separated from adjacent residential 
development by Luther Road, a collector street. Additionally, the proposal 
includes a 30 foot landscaped buffer strip adjacent to the apartment units 
that abut Luther Road. This is also consistent with the Land Use Planning 
Framework goal for streetscape and intersection improvements in this 
corridor. 
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•”New streets must provide direct connections to already developed areas by 
way of continuing collector streets and providing access to and through the 
development.” 

The proposed development provides street connections as required. 
 
This proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies regarding land use 
compatibility and buffering.  Those policies include: 

•”New development will be compatible with existing and well-established 
neighborhoods through appropriate use, site design, and patterns of development.” 

The proposed development places the more dense apartments approximately 
340 feet north of the south property line and then to the northwest. The densest 
portion of the development will be screened from Luther Road with a 30 foot 
wide landscaped buffer area with berms. Additionally, the most intense portion 
of the development is located across from the bermed area of existing 
development, providing additional screening. 

 
•”Development patterns should provide for transitions and buffering between various 
development types (e.g. residential and industrial). Where land uses of incompatible 
character abut, there should be adequate bufferyards to separate them. Pocket parks 
and linear greenways function as an effective screening and buffering tool between 
differing land use character types. Less intense nonresidential development may be 
appropriate next to residential development with suburban character standards used 
to mitigate adverse impacts.” 

The proposed development is consistent with this policy. 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: None at this time. 
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Area of Application 
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February 12, 2020 

 
 

Ms. Jennifer Dam, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Fremont Planning & Development Department 
400 East Military Avenue 
Fremont, NE 68026 
 
 
REFERENCE:   Bluestem Commons  
   Planned Development – Project Narrative 
   Job No. 0119078.01-002 
 
Dear Ms. Dam: 
 
Submitted herewith is the Bluestem Commons Project Narrative for the Planned Development Rezoning 
Application, as required by the City of Fremont PD Response Letter and Unified Development Code Section 
11.405.07. 
 

PROJECT NARRATIVE – as required by City of Fremont UDC – Section 11.405.07 

The Fremont Community Housing project is a proposed PD – Planned Development located on the northeast 
side of the City of Fremont, consisting of approximately 34 acres at the southwest corner of County Road T and 
Luther Road.  The existing zoning is R – Rural with adjacent zoning, consisting of R – Rural to the north, west, 
south, and the Ritz Lake subdivision to the east, which is zoned PD. 

The overall concept of the proposed PD is to create a multi-product residential housing community consisting 
of multi-family buildings, townhomes (duplex and triplex units), and rowhomes (4 – 5 attached units), 
complemented with a centrally located multi-use clubhouse building and amenity space.  The multi-family 
buildings will include a minimum of 30 units and maximum of 34 units for each building.  The development is 
proposed to be constructed in two (2) phases and provide a mix of residential product types supporting a range 
of incomes.  These housing types are focused on maintaining price points accessible to employees of 
expanding Fremont businesses, either by renting or through ownership. 

The residential housing types listed above are the only permitted uses within the residential lots located 
throughout the development.   
 
Proposed commercial uses are to be implemented only as additional leasable space within the centrally located 
clubhouse/leasing office building and are focused on supporting the residential community.   
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 2 of 10 
 

 
Commercial uses within the clubhouse building shall be as follows:   
 
Permitted uses shall include but are not limited to:  

• Restaurant/Coffee Shop (NO drive-thru window/automobile queueing lanes) 

• Laundromat / Dry Cleaning 

• Child Care Center 

• Mail Services 

• Retail Service Establishment (Boutique Commercial, Salon/Spa) 

• Convenience Store/Neighborhood Market 

• Office (Medical/Urgent Care, Insurance Agent, Lawyer, Accounting, Real Estate) 

 

Conditional uses shall include but are not limited to: 

• General Merchandise Retail Sales Establishment 

• Mixed Use 

• Farmers’ Market  

• Bar/Tavern 

• Financial Services/Check Cashing 

 

Prohibited uses shall include but are not limited to: 

• Adult establishments 

• Auto Sales and Service Establishments 

• Automotive Repair Services/Car Wash 

• Small Animal Veterinary Services 

• Animal Grooming Facilities 

• Financial Institutions (with drive-thru window/auto queueing lanes) 

• Restaurant / Fast food (with drive-thru window/auto queueing lanes) 

• Funeral Establishment/Funeral Home 

• Small Animal Boarding Facilities 

• Service Station 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 3 of 10 
 

Intensity of Development - Residential 

Residential density for the Bluestem Commons development is summarized in the table below. 

Notes 
*Total area includes all internal street right-of-way, Clubhouse/Amenity lot, and Outlots A and B. 
 
Overall residential density of the project is within the maximum allowed per UDC Table 11-602.01. 
 
Intensity of Development – Non-Residential 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) for the non-residential uses within the clubhouse/leasing office building 
(Block 5, Lot 5) are 0.17 for one-story buildings and 0.34 for two-story buildings.  Additional non-residential use 
regulators are noted on the PD Site Plan. 
  

Category 
Area 
(ac.) 

No. of 
Units 

Density, 
Units Per 

Acre 

Max. Density, Units Per 
Acre – Urban Residential 

(Table 11-602.01)  

Max. Density, units per acre 
(Table 11-602.01) + 10% 

Affordable Housing Bonus 
Multi-
Family 13.43 276 20.55 24 26.40 

Single-
Family 14.27 132 9.25 

16.14 (Duplex) 
20.07 (Townhouse) 

18.75 (Duplex) 
22.08 (Townhouse) 

Total 33.43 408 12.20 12.21 13.43 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 

Mix of Housing Types 

The mix of housing types for the Bluestem Commons development is summarized in the table below. 

Housing Type No. of Buildings % of Total 
Multi-Family - Apartments 8 14% 
Row House 15 27% 
Duplex/Triplex Total 33 59% 
    Duplex A (1-Story, Exterior Garage) 1-10 2% - 18% 
    Duplex B (1-Story, Interior Garage) 1-10 2% - 18% 
    Duplex C (2-Story, Interior Garage) 1-10 2% - 18% 
    Triplex 1 (1-Story, variation of Duplexes A or B) 1-3 2% - 5% 
    Triplex 2 (2-Story, variation of Duplex C) 1-3 2% - 5% 
Total   
 56  100% 

*NOTE: The Duplex and Triplex style homes have multiple façade designs and material finishes with a varying 
number of stories (1-story and 2-story) as well as garage placement (interior versus exterior). The exact design 
used on a lot is typically determined by demand, and it is estimated the 33 Duplex and Triplex Buildings will 
represent a minimum of four (4) different design types.  

 

According to Table 11-602.03 of the Fremont Municipal Code, planned developments having greater than 150 
units must include a minimum of four (4) housing types with a minimum of 10% for each housing type and a 
maximum of 50% for any one (1) housing type.   
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 5 of 10 
 

 

Multi-Family Residential – Apartments 

The multi-family apartments are a mix of studios, 1, 2, and 3-bedroom units.  The buildings are proposed slab 
on grade and there are 15 garages with six (6) dwelling units on the ground floor and 12 dwelling units on 
both the 2nd and 3rd floors.  Based on building materials and design at the time of construction, the 
elevations shown in Figure 1 below are representational and subject to change as necessary.   

 

 

Figure 1. 

Front Elevation 

 

 

Left Elevation       Right Elevation 

      

Rear Elevation 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 6 of 10 
 

Single Family Residential – Duplexes / Triplexes 

The duplexes and triplexes are proposed to be a mix of both 1 and 2-story homes, as well as a mix of slab on 
grade and basements, all approximately 31’ x 61’.  Based on building materials and design at the time of 
construction, the elevations shown below in Figure 2 are representational and subject to change as necessary.   

Figure 2. 

Duplex A: 1-Story, Exterior Garage 

 

Duplex B: 1-Story, Interior Garage 

 

Duplex C: 2-Story, Interior Garage 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 7 of 10 
 

Single Family Residential – Row Homes 

The row homes consist of a mix between 3, 4, and 5 attached units available.  All row house options are 
proposed to be 2-story homes, slab on grade, approximately 24’ x 42’.  Based on building materials and design 
at the time of construction, the elevations shown below in Figure 3 are representational and subject to change 
as necessary.   

Figure 3. 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 8 of 10 
 

Clubhouse/ Leasing Office and Commercial Use Building 

A clubhouse/office building with commercial space is the only other proposed and permitted building within 
the residential lot area throughout the development.  The proposed building is currently shown as a single story, 
slab on grade building with its own parking lot, centrally located with various amenities connected or within 
proximity to it.  Based on building materials and design at the time of construction, the plan view and elevation 
shown below in Figure 4 are representational and subject to change as necessary.   

The clubhouse is meant to help support the community, with a programmatic management style to support 
residents and foster engagement/interaction (e.g. specified times for food truck events, trivia and movie nights, 
etc.).  The clubhouse may also serve as a specific transit station/hub location for various city employers wishing 
to provide a means of transportation for larger groups of their employees.  

Commercial space will be available for leasing opportunities and consist of approximately 50% of the building 
square footage.  Permitted, conditional, and prohibited commercial uses are listed on page 1 and 2 of this 
narrative, however, certain neighborhood oriented commercial uses will be allowed with an administrative site 
plan approval as necessary. 

Noncommercial uses within the clubhouse building shall include but are not limited to: 

• General offices 
• Fitness center 
• Multi-purpose room 
• Conference center and work space rooms 
• Common lounge 

 
Figure 4. 
Plan View
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 9 of 10 
 

Front Elevation 

 

 
Amenity spaces to be accessible to all residents are intended to be centrally located adjacent to the clubhouse 
building and shall include but not be limited to the following: 
 
Phase 1 and/or 2 

• Sundeck 
• BBQ, picnic area, and play structures 
• Dog park / dog run 
• Walking trail and outdoor trails around the lake 

 
Additional amenities being considered 

• Sports courts/fields 
• Playground equipment 
• Workplace transportation 
• Swimming pool  

 

Dedications & Easements 

Land along both County Road T and Luther Road is being dedicated to the City of Fremont for public right-of-
way purposes, which will update Luther Road to a 120’ wide R.O.W. and County Road T to an 80’ wide R.O.W.  
Easements have been created for private storm and sanitary sewer lines as well as a sanitary lift station.  Please 
reference the plat documents for all dedications and easements. 

 

Sanitary Improvement District  

A Sanitary & Improvement District (SID) will be formed for the construction of public infrastructure.  The SID 
will be responsible for maintenance of public sewers, water mains, streets, Outlots A and B, and for the private 
park in Outlot A (to be shown on the preliminary plat).  A neighborhood association will be formed through 
covenants and be responsible for maintenance of the areas around the clubhouse and amenity space, as well 
as the main entrance monument signs. 
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Bluestem Commons  
Planned Development – Project Narrative 
Job No. 0119078.01-002 
February 12, 2020 
Page 10 of 10 
 

 

Monument and Neighborhood Signage 

A neighborhood sign with complementary landscaping is proposed within Outlot B at the corner of County Road 
T and Luther Road and will be maintained by the SID as noted above.  This sign will be located to comply with 
sight triangle requirements and shall meet all other UDC signage requirements.     

Two (2) monument signs are proposed for the development, each to be located within the roadway medians at 
both main entrances to the development.  Phase 1 would include a sign within the median at the intersection 
of 40th Street and Luther Road, while Phase 2 would add the other sign in the median at Big Bluestem Road and 
County Road T.  Conceptually, the signs are 6’ high by 14’ long.  Based on building materials and design at the 
time of construction, the elevations shown below in Figure 5 are representational and subject to change as 
necessary.   

The owners acknowledge signs are not currently allowed within street ROW’s per the UDC and anticipate 
requesting permission from the City Council to locate them within the medians as noted above and as shown 
on the PD Site Plan.  This request is being made to take advantage of the fill required to elevate Big Bluestem 
Road and 40th Street.  Locating the signs within the medians would help elevate them high enough to minimize 
flooding potential and would be the most visually advantageous to help clearly identify the development for 
vehicles travelling in both directions.  Locating the signs within the medians with proposed landscaping and 
concrete curbing will also help protect them. All maintenance required will be the neighborhood association’s 
responsibility.  The signs will be located to comply with sight triangle requirements and shall meet all other UDC 
signage requirements. 

 

Figure 5. 
Front/Rear Elevation 

 

Left Elevation      Right Elevation 
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ORDINANCE NO. 5528 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 5427 AS IT PERTAINS TO THE ZONING MAP, TO REZONE THE 
PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED HEREIN AS GENERALLY LOCATED AT 
COUNTY ROAD T AND N. LUTHER ROAD, FREMONT, NEBRASKA, FROM R RURAL TO 
PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Fremont, Nebraska, seeks to promote the 
health, safety, morals, and the general welfare of the community; and 

 
WHEREAS, a request for Zoning Change was filed with the offices of the Department of 
Planning, City of Fremont (City); and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner desires zoning district designation of PD Planned Development; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed Zoning Change was held by the Planning 
Commission on February 18, 2020, and subsequently by the City Council on March 10, 
2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that such proceedings were in compliance with 
Neb. Rev. Stat. §19-904 pertaining to zoning regulations and restrictions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FREMONT, NEBRASKA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION I. ZONING. That paragraph “b” of Article 406 of Ordinance No. 5427 
as it pertains to the Official Zoning Map is changed to rezone the following 
described real estate, from R Rural to PD Planned Development:  
 
THE NORTH 1406.00 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE 6TH 
P.M., DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA, LYING EAST OF THE 
ABANDONED CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY 
RIGHT OF WAY. 

 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. That part of the official zoning map referred to in Paragraph 

“b” of Article 406 of Ordinance No. 5427 or any other section of said ordinance in 

conflict with this ordinance is hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, 

or portion of this Ordinance, or application hereof, is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by any Court, such portion or application shall be deemed a 

Page 129

Item No. 7.



separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions or application hereof. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th DAY OF APRIL, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

  Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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Staff Report 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Jennifer L. Dam, AICP, Planning Director 

DATE:  March 10, 2020  

SUBJECT: Change of Zone from R, Rural to SR, Suburban Residential 

 

Recommendation:  Hold first reading of Ordinance #5529 

 

Background:   

This request is for a change of zone from R, Rural to SR, Suburban Residential. The property is 

located at the extension of Jones Dr. and Armour Dr. in the NW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 10, 

Township 17 North, Range 8 East, Dodge County Nebraska. 

The property consists of approximately 6.19 acres currently contiguous to the City Limits.  

It is associated with the Country Club Estates 6th Addition Final Plat and is consistent with the 

previously approved Country Club Estates 6th Addition Preliminary Plat. 

The zoning to the north, east and south is SR, Suburban Residential.  The zoning to the 

northwest and west is R, Rural.  

The Future Land Use map shows the area for residential development. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on February 18, 2020 and voted to 
recommend approval with a 6-0 vote. 
 
Recommendation:  Approval of Ordiance 
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ORDINANCE NO. 5529 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NO. 5427 AS IT PERTAINS TO THE ZONING MAP, TO REZONE THE 

PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED HEREIN AS GENERALLY LOCATED AT 

ABERDEEN STREET AND PETERSON AVENUE, FREMONT, NEBRASKA, FROM R 

RURAL TO SR SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL, PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Fremont, Nebraska, seeks to promote the 
health, safety, morals, and the general welfare of the community; and 

WHEREAS, a request for Zoning Change was filed with the offices of the Department of 
Planning, City of Fremont (City); and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the subject property is zoned R Rural; and 

WHEREAS, the owner desires zoning district designation of SR Suburban Residential; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed Zoning Change was held by the Planning 
Commission on February 18, 2020, and subsequently by the City Council on March 10, 
2020, and; 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that such proceedings were in compliance with Neb. 
Rev. Stat. §19-904 pertaining to zoning regulations and restrictions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FREMONT, NEBRASKA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION I. ZONING. That paragraph “b” of Article 406 of Ordinance No. 5427 as it 
pertains to the Official Zoning Map is changed to rezone the following described 
real estate, from R Rural to SR Suburban Residential:   

 
A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE 
COUNTY, NEBRASKA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES FIFTH 
ADDITION; THENCE S89°45'19"E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID COUNTRY CLUB 
ESTATES FIFTH ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 337.76 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF WASHINGTON HEIGHTS THIRD ADDITION; THENCE S00°03'19"W 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID WASHINGTON HEIGHTS THIRD ADDITION A 
DISTANCE OF 340.01 FEET; THENCE N89°46'06"W A DISTANCE OF 122.50 FEET;  
THENCE S00°03'19"W A DISTANCE OF 35.50 FEET; THENCE N89°46'06"W A 
DISTANCE OF 170.50 FEET; THENCE S00°03'19"W A DISTANCE OF 105.47 FEET;  
THENCE N89°47'06"W A DISTANCE OF 370.24 FEET; THENCE N00°13'54"E A 
DISTANCE OF 187.58 FEET; THENCE S89°46'06"E A DISTANCE OF 44.50 FEET;  
THENCE N00°13'54"E A DISTANCE OF 116.00 FEET; THENCE N06°27'27"E A 
DISTANCE OF 55.33 FEET; THENCE N00°13'54"E A DISTANCE OF 122.64 FEET TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10; THENCE 
S89°45'18"E ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 273.50 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 6.19 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
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SECTION 2. REPEALER. That part of the official zoning map referred to in 

Paragraph “b” of Article 406 of Ordinance No. 5427 or any other section of said 

ordinance in conflict with this ordinance is hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, or application hereof, is for any reason held 

invalid or unconstitutional by any Court, such portion or application shall be 

deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions or application hereof. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force 
from and after its passage, approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th DAY OF APRIL, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

  Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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Staff Report 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Jennifer L. Dam, AICP, Planning Director 

DATE:  March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT: Country Club Estates 6th Addition Final Plat 

 

Recommendation:  Continue until the third reading of Ordinance ____ 

 

Background:   

This request for the Country Club Estates 6th Addition final plat is associated with a request for a 

change of zone from R, Rural to SR, Suburban Residential.  

A subdivision agreement will be required at the time of approval by the City Council.  The 

subdivision agreement will address the timing of the annexation of the property. 

The Country Club Estates 6th Addition preliminary plat was approved in November, 2018. 

The proposed final plat is consistent with the approved preliminary plat. 

The property is located in a flood plain zone A-02 meaning that the area is subject to two feet of 

sheet flow flooding.  The base elevation of each lot needs to be shown on the plat. 

The Future Land Use map shows the area for residential development. 

The Public Works Director’s comments are as follows: 

• My recommendation is to annex the final plat.  

• The entire preliminary plat is located in the AO-2 Flood Zone.  A floodplain 

development permit, and compliance with all federal and/or floodplain laws will be 

required prior to physical development of the site.  

• Plans and specifications for this phase of the development have been submitted and 

they conform to the general layout and design of those submitted at Preliminary Plat 

Phase.  Drainage calculations were submitted at the preliminary plat phase and are on 

file.  A traffic study was not required for this development, as the traffic generated would 

not have a significant impact on the adjourning roadway system.  

• A traffic study was not required for this development, as the traffic generated would not 

have a significant impact on the adjourning roadway system.  

• Drainage calculations were submitted at the preliminary plat phase and are on file.   

• Due to the proximity of this sight to the Fremont Airport certain height restrictions may 

apply.  (Example no cell towers)  Normal heights required for building of single family 

residences are not likely to trigger any restrictions.  By City Code all construction within 

2000 feet of the runway require that height restrictions be verified.  
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Final Comments:  

• The submittals received comply with the requirements of the UDC.  The subdivision 

has been laid out by a Licensed Engineer and reviewed by City Staff in numerous 

departments.  The submittal package meets the requirements of the UDC in content as 

related to that which is required for a preliminary plat. 

The Developer’s Engineer has provided the requested easements.  

Recommendation:  Approval with the conditions that the base elevation of each lot is shown on 

the plat; approval of  Notice of Intent and development of a SWPPP is received from the 

Nebraska Department of Environment & Energy prior to grading. 
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Memo 
 

To:   Jennifer Dam 
 Director of Planning 
From: David Goedeken, P.E. 
 Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
Topic: Engineering Review 
 Country Club Estates 6th, Final Plat 
Dated: February 13, 2020 
 
I have reviewed the submittals for Final Plat on this Addition.  The comments submitted via 
Memo dated November 19, 2018 (see attached) are still valid. 
 
Final Plat Review 
 

• My recommendation is to annex the final plat. 

• The entire preliminary plat is located in the AO-2 Flood Zone.  A floodplain development 
permit, and compliance with all federal and/or floodplain laws will be required prior to 
physical development of the site.  

• Plans and specifications for this phase of the development have been submitted and 
they conform to the general layout and design of those submitted at Preliminary Plat 
Phase.  Drainage calculations were submitted at the preliminary plat phase and are on 
file.  A traffic study was not required for this development, as the traffic generated 
would not have a significant impact on the adjourning roadway system. 

• A traffic study was not required for this development, as the traffic generated would not 
have a significant impact on the adjourning roadway system. 

• Drainage calculations were submitted at the preliminary plat phase and are on file.   

• Due to the proximity of this sight to the Fremont Airport certain height restrictions may 
apply.  (Example no cell towers)  Normal heights required for building of single family 
residences are not likely to trigger any restrictions.  By City Code all construction within 
2000 feet of the runway require that height restrictions be verified. 

 
Final Comments: 
 

• The submittals received comply with the requirements of the UDC.  The subdivision has 
been laid out by a Licensed Engineer and reviewed by City Staff in numerous 
departments.  The submittal package meets the requirements of the UDC in content as 
related to that which is required for a preliminary plat. 
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Memo 
 

To:   Jennifer Dam 
 Director of Planning 
From: David Goedeken, P.E. 
 Director of Public Works 
Topic: Engineering Review 
 Country Club Estates 6th, Preliminary Plat 
Dated: November 19, 2018 
 
I have reviewed the submittals for Preliminary on this Addition.  The preliminary plat is for the 
tract of land bordered by Ridge Road on the West, Washington Heights and Country Club 
Estates on the East and South.  The Plans submitted were the Preliminary Plat Documents, 
Grading Plans, Utility and Public Improvement Layouts, and Drainage Plans and Calculations.   
Plans were distributed from the Public Works Department to the Utilities Department for their 
review and comment.  It is my understanding that Mr. Dodd has been in contact with the 
various DU departments for comments and input. 
 
Preliminary Plat Review 
 

• The plat is entirely outside, but contiguous to city limits.  It is my understanding this 
subdivision will be final platted in phases.  My recommendation is to annex the final 
plats as they are submitted. 

• The entire preliminary plat is located in the AO-2 Flood Zone.  A floodplain development 
permit, and compliance with all federal and/or floodplain laws will be required prior to 
physical development of the site.  

• The interior streets in the development will be required to be paved in accordance of 
the UDC.  The recommended width of streets will be 28 feet for the streets other than 
Jones Street and the connector streets to the adjacent subdivision, as shown on the 
public improvement plans.  The streets in the abutting neighborhoods are paved at 32 
feet in width, as required by previous Subdivision Code.  The adjacent exterior street is 
Ridge Road.  The UDC does not specifically address exterior roadways adjacent to a 
subdivision, other than in general transportation terms and needs.  As stated earlier the 
subdivision will be developed in phases, and my understanding is the first phase will be 
interior to, and not connected to Ridge Road.  As the development moves closer to 
Ridge Road decisions will need to be made on the future status of this road.  Presently, 
Ridge Road is gravel adjacent to, and beyond the limits of this subdivision. 

• At this time I am not recommending the need for a traffic study as the subdivision does 
not front onto a major roadway and I do not anticipate traffic issues significant enough 
to warrant a need for a study. 

• Storm sewer and drainage plans have been submitted and reviewed.  Preliminary review 
indicates the proposed layout to be satisfactory to city policy and good engineering 
practice.  A significant portion of this site has been rerouted to drain into the 
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drainageway adjacent to Ridge Road and then East into the existing drainage way north 
of and adjacent to Washington Heights.  This portion of the site ultimately flows into the 
Rawhide Creek.  The Southern portion of the sight drains in the existing drainageway in 
Washington Height and flows easterly generally parallel to Dakota Street.  This 
drainageway also drains into the Rawhide Creek. 

• Water and Sanitary Sewer layout plans have been submitted and reviewed by the DU.  
Comments have been received by Mr. Dodd from the DU. 

• Plans were also routed to the Electric and Gas departments for their review.  Comments 
were submitted directly to Mr. Dodd from these departments. 

• Due to the proximity of this sight to the Fremont Airport certain height restrictions may 
apply.  (Example no cell towers)  Normal heights required for building of single family 
residences are not likely to trigger any restrictions.  By City Code all construction within 
2000 feet of the runway require that height restrictions be verified. 

 
Final Comments: 
 

• The submittals received comply with the requirements of the UDC.  The subdivision has 
been laid out by a Licensed Engineer and reviewed by City Staff in numerous 
departments.  The submittal package exceeds the requirements of the UDC in content 
as related to that which is required for a preliminary plat.  Information such as public 
improvements, grading and drainage layouts and design are not required until Final Plat.  
The applicant has provided the information at this time, which significantly helps in the 
review process by City Staff. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-055 
 
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to approve 
the Country Club Estates 6th Addition Final Plat on property legally described 
as: 
A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, 

NEBRASKA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES FIFTH ADDITION;  

THENCE S89°45'19"E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES FIFTH 

ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 337.76 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF WASHINGTON 

HEIGHTS THIRD ADDITION; THENCE S00°03'19"W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 

WASHINGTON HEIGHTS THIRD ADDITION A DISTANCE OF 340.01 FEET;  THENCE 

N89°46'06"W A DISTANCE OF 122.50 FEET; THENCE S00°03'19"W A DISTANCE OF 35.50 FEET; 

THENCE N89°46'06"W A DISTANCE OF 170.50 FEET; THENCE S00°03'19"W A DISTANCE OF 

105.47 FEET; THENCE N89°47'06"W A DISTANCE OF 370.24 FEET; THENCE N00°13'54"E A 

DISTANCE OF 187.58 FEET; THENCE S89°46'06"E A DISTANCE OF 44.50 FEET; THENCE 

N00°13'54"E A DISTANCE OF 116.00 FEET; THENCE N06°27'27"E A DISTANCE OF 55.33 FEET; 

THENCE N00°13'54"E A DISTANCE OF 122.64 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10; THENCE S89°45'18"E ALONG SAID NORTH 

LINE A DISTANCE OF 273.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 6.19 ACRES, 

MORE OR LESS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Country Club Estates Addition Final Plat is consistent with the 

approved Preliminary Plat; and,  

WHEREAS, applications for a Change of Zone from R, Rural to SR, Suburban 
Residential accompany this request; and, 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed Final Plat was held by the Planning 
Commission on February 18, 2020, and subsequently by the City Council 
on November April 14, 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended conditional approval 6-0 with 
1 abstention, with the conditions that the Change of Zone and 
Subdivision Agreement be approved; and, 

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Agreement requires that the property be voluntarily 
annexed prior to the installation of improvements or within 4 years or 
the Final Plat will become null and void. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Fremont 
approves the Country Club Estates 6th Addition Final Plat with the conditions that the 
Subdivision Agreement is approved; that the developer voluntarily annexes the property 
prior to the installation of improvements or within 4 years of approval of the Final Plat or 
it will become null and void; and, approval of  Notice of Intent and development of a 
SWPPP is received from the Nebraska Department of Environment & Energy prior to 
grading. 
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PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th DAY OF APRIL 2020.  
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 FROM:  Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 

 DATE:  March 10, 2020 

 
 SUBJECT: Class I Liquor License Crush Pizza and Alehouse LLC dba Crush Pizza and 

Alehouse 
 

Recommendation: 1) Conduct public hearing, 2) Move to approve Resolution, recommending 
approval of Class I liquor license application of Crush Pizza and Alehouse LLC dba Crush Pizza 
and Alehouse , 102 N. Main St., Fremont, NE 68025.  

 

Background: After holding a public hearing, Council will need to make a recommendation to 

the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission regarding the application. 

 

The Resolution presented to Council requires a choice to be made. Council can recommend 

approval, no recommendation, no recommendation with stipulations or denial. The Resolution 

has been drafted for approval. If a motion is made to make no recommendation, no 

recommendation with stipulations or denial, then an amendment to the resolution will be 

necessary. 
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 Fremont Police Department 
Liquor License Application Investigative Report 

 

 
 

Name of Business:  Crush Pizza and Alehouse  
Business Address:   102 N. Main Street Fremont, NE  68025 
Business Phone #: (402) 719-1531 
Business Owner (s): Jordan Paden         
 
Business Owner’s Address (s):  3319 Cherrywood Drive Fremont, NE 68025 
Owner’s Daytime Phone Number:  
 
1. Type of Investigation: _X Purchase of Business  
     __ Upgrade of Existing License (From __ to __ ) 
     __ Expansion of Present Business 
     __ Renewal - Long Form 
     __ New and additional License 
     __Transfer of Location 
     __ Manager / Employees  
 

2. Type of License:              Class -   I 
 

3. Type of Business:   __ Hotel / Motel 
      __ Liquor / On / Off Sale only 
      _X Restaurant / Food Service 
       __Entertainment 
     __  Other  ___________________________         
      
4. Type of Ownership: _X_Corporation (LLC) 
     __ Partnership 
     __ Individual 
     __ Limited Liability Company (LLC)  
 
5. Financial Information :     Previous Years Gross Sales 
 (Estimation)   $ UNK     Estimated Annual Payroll 
     $  UNK    Estimated Gross Income 
                    UNK      % Food      UNK   % Liquor 
        
6. Premise Information:  X    Commercial         ___ Industrial       ___ Residential 
 
  Estimated Seating Capacity:         Estimated # of Customers per day - UNK 
 
Premise days of operation:         DAYS/WEEK – Monday,Tuesday,Wednesday,Thursday,         
             Friday, Saturday, Sunday 

Premise hours of operation: 11am-10pm     
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7. Type of Food Service:   ____Microwave           Grill   _X__ Kitchen 
  
 

8. Employees: up to 10 future employees.  Unknown what status #     Full Time                     
#      Part Time 
 
Are any of the employees under 21 years of age?     
Unknown at this time 
 
Have any of the employees ever been arrested and/or convicted of any criminal offense?   
Unknown  
 
 
 
9. Manager Information:      Name: Jordan Paden 
              Address:   

          Phone # (  
              Driver’s License #                     State NE 
               

Length of time as owner: N/A     
   
Is anyone other than the manager responsible for the daily operation of the business?  
    No 
 
10. Number of Licenses within competitive distance:    3 
  
11. Does the establishment have gaming?  No 
        
12. Does the establishment sell tobacco products?  No 
     
13.  Has this establishment's owners or any employee of this establishment     
ever been  before the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission in a disciplinary 
hearing? NO 
      
 
 

14. Please give the approximate number of police service calls to this 
establishment during the last year.  N/A 

 
 
15. Is anyone other than those individuals previously listed, drawing a 
percentage of the profits of this establishment?   No 
 
 
 

16. Please enclose copy of lease agreement.   
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3 

 
Date received by Fremont Police Department   February 28, 2020 
 
Date of Completed Investigation       March 3, 2020 
 
Signature of Investigating Officer       _______________________ 
 
Date of Hearing by Governing Body       _______________________ 
 
Governing Body Recommendation:  
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature of Applicant _______________________________________ Date _____________ 
 
 
 
Printed Name of Applicant ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Notary ____________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Falsification of any part of this application may result in criminal and civil penalties. 

Page 154

Item No. 10.



Page 155

Item No. 10.



Page 156

Item No. 10.



Page 157

Item No. 10.



Page 158

Item No. 10.



Page 159

Item No. 10.



Page 160

Item No. 10.



Page 161

Item No. 10.



Page 162

Item No. 10.



Page 163

Item No. 10.



Page 164

Item No. 10.



Page 165

Item No. 10.



Page 166

Item No. 10.



Page 167

Item No. 10.



Page 168

Item No. 10.



Page 169

Item No. 10.



Page 170

Item No. 10.



Page 171

Item No. 10.



Page 172

Item No. 10.



Page 173

Item No. 10.



Page 174

Item No. 10.



Page 175

Item No. 10.



Page 176

Item No. 10.



Page 177

Item No. 10.



Page 178

Item No. 10.



Page 179

Item No. 10.



Page 180

Item No. 10.



Page 181

Item No. 10.



Page 182

Item No. 10.



Page 183

Item No. 10.



Page 184

Item No. 10.



Page 185

Item No. 10.



Page 186

Item No. 10.



Page 187

Item No. 10.



Page 188

Item No. 10.



Page 189

Item No. 10.



Page 190

Item No. 10.



Page 191

Item No. 10.



Page 192

Item No. 10.



Page 193

Item No. 10.



Page 194

Item No. 10.



Page 195

Item No. 10.



Page 196

Item No. 10.



Page 197

Item No. 10.



Page 198

Item No. 10.



Page 199

Item No. 10.



Page 200

Item No. 10.



Page 201

Item No. 10.



Page 202

Item No. 10.



Page 203

Item No. 10.



Page 204

Item No. 10.



Page 205

Item No. 10.



Page 206

Item No. 10.



Page 207

Item No. 10.



Page 208

Item No. 10.



Page 209

Item No. 10.



LIQUOR APPLICATION REPORT 

PLANNING REPORT 

DATE  March 3, 2020   DUE DATE:   March 3, 2020 

IS (X) IS NOT (   ) WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE MUNICIPALITY 

IF NOT, DO NOT PROCEED – NOTIFY THE MUNICIPAL CLERK’S OFFICE 

AND RETURN THIS FORM 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

APPLICANT Jordan Paden dba Crush Pizza and Alehouse  

LOCATION 102 N. Main Street  

REQUESTED LICENSE OR ACTION:    Class I beer, wine and spirits on- sale only  

EXISTING ZONING:    DC, Downtown Commercial  

EXISTING LAND USE:    vacant commercial building  

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING: 

NORTH:    DC, Downtown Commerical   

SOUTH:   DC zoning with commercial uses   

EAST:  DC zoning with commercial uses  

WEST:  DC zoning with commercial uses    

GENERAL NEIGHBORHOOD / AREA LAND USES:    The subject property is located in the downtown commercial 

district and is surrounded by commercial and light industrial uses.  

ANALYSIS OF NEIGHBORHOOD EFFECTS:    The proposed use is consistent with the uses in surrounding area.  

 

SIGNED:      

Jennifer L. Dam, AICP; Director of Planning 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-056 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA CONSIDERING 
AN APPLICATION FOR A CLASS I LIQUOR LICENSE FOR CRUSH PIZZA AND ALEHOUSE LLC DBA 
CRUSH PIZZA AND ALEHOUSE 102 N. MAIN ST., FREMONT, NE 68025.   
 
WHEREAS, an application was filed by Crush Pizza and Alehouse LLC dba Crush Pizza and Alehouse, 
for property located at 102 N. Main St., Fremont, NE 68025 for a class I liquor license; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Fremont Tribune as required by state law on 
February 29, 2020; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on March 10, 2020 for the purpose of discussing such liquor 
license application,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FREMONT, NEBRASKA, that:  
 

The City of Fremont hereby recommends approval of the above identified liquor license 
application. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10TH DAY OF MARCH 2020. 
 
     
                     
                                                                                                       _____________________________ 
               Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk  
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STAFF REPORT 

  

TO:    Honorable Mayor and City Council  
  

FROM:  Jody Sanders, CPA, Director of Finance  
  

DATE: March 10, 2020 
  

SUBJECT:  Claims  

 

Recommendation:   Move to approve February 26 through March 10, 2020 claims, as 
well as subsequent claims due and payable before the next meeting of the City Council, 
and authorize checks to be drawn on the proper accounts.

Background:  Council will review claims via email March 6, 2020.  In addition, Staff is 
requesting approval by the Council to pay claims that will become due and payable (by 
virtue of contractual agreements or regulatory requirements) before the next City 
Council meeting.    
The amount due is not known as of this staff report, but the related vendors are listed 
below.  These approved claims will still be presented as claims at the next City Council 
meeting and included in the total requested by Council for approval.  

• Direct deposit of employee payroll on March 19, 2020, and related withholdings 

remitted to pension plans, federal and state tax withholdings, and garnishments.  

• Nebraska Department of Revenue – sales & lodging tax collected by the City at 

various facilities. 

• Health and dental claims paid by the City’s third-party administrator Blue Cross 

and Blue Shield, as well as Health care reinsurance premiums payable.  

• Life and Disability (ST & LT) premiums payable to Lincoln National Life Insurance 

Co. monthly  

• Workers compensation claims paid by the City’s third-party administrator Tri-Star. 

• Transmission and energy purchases payable to Southwest Power Pool.  

• Transmission and energy purchases payable to Omaha Public Power District.  

• Natural gas purchases from Northern Natural Gas/US Energy, BP, Cargill, Central 

Plains Energy Project (CPEP) and Public Energy Authority of Kentucky (PEAK). 

• Coal purchases from Cloud Peak Energy Resources, Peabody coal, and freight 

charges to Union Pacific.  

• Progress payments to Emerson Process Management under the contract for the 

SCADA project. 

• UPS weekly invoice for shipping costs, due within ten days or late fees are 

incurred. 

There are a limited number of agencies that debit the City’s bank account for credit 

card processing fees, kiosk fees, bank analysis fees and occasionally NSF fees 

from our Ambulance Billing contractor.  These are based on a fee schedule.  
   

Fiscal Impact:  City/Governmental funds claims total  $  1,191,626.72 

  Utility funds claims total   $  3,650,116.13 

  Total of all claims  $  4,841,742.85 
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PREPARED 02/24/2020 15:05:13 EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 02242020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  02/24/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/05
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  02/25/2020
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PREPARED 02/24/2020,15:05:13                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 02/24/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 02/25/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0004597    00   BP CANADA ENERGY MARKETING *WIRE*
21051261 JAN'20 00 02/24/2020   057-8205-807.50-02 318,973.58

VENDOR TOTAL * 318,973.58
0003109    00   UPS
5E9752080 00 02/24/2020   051-5001-940.60-79  02/22/20 Serv Chrg Share 7.75
5E9752080 00 02/24/2020   051-5001-940.60-79  02/22/20 Serv Chrg Share 7.75
5E9752080 00 02/24/2020   053-6105-502.50-23  Water Samples 89.24
5E9752080 00 02/24/2020   055-7105-502.60-79  Radwell Intl 14.98

VENDOR TOTAL * 119.72
TOTAL EXPENDITURES **** 319,093.30

GRAND TOTAL ******************** 319,093.30

Natural gas purchase
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PREPARED 03/02/2020 13:17:43 EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 03022020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  03/02/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/06
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  03/02/2020
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PREPARED 03/02/2020,13:17:43                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/02/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/02/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0003109    00   UPS
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   051-5001-940.60-79  02/29/20 Serv Chrg Share 7.75
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   051-5001-940.60-79  02/29/20 Serv Chrg Share 7.75
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  Honeywell 13.43
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  Babcock & Wilcox 34.00
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  Skarshaug Testing Lab Adj 13.52
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   053-6105-502.50-23  Water Samples 80.70
5E9752090 00 03/02/2020   053-6205-583.60-79  Flagshooter 45.73

VENDOR TOTAL * 202.88
TOTAL EXPENDITURES **** 202.88

GRAND TOTAL ******************** 202.88
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AJ WITHDRAWAL WITHDRAWAL

GROUP NO VENDOR NAME DATE ACCOUNT NO ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

6207 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 051-5001-903-60-77 CREDIT CARD FEES 2,032.62

6207 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 051-5001-903-60-77 CREDIT CARD FEES 9,862.12

6227 VANTIV 03/04/20 051-5001-903-60-77 KIOSK CREDIT CARD FEES 21.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,915.74

DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES

ELECTRONIC WITHDRAWAL LIST

FOR UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD MEETING: 3/10/20

M:\Accounts Payable\DU\DU Electronic Withdrawals\3-10-20
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PREPARED 03/05/2020  8:57:47 EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 03052020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  03/05/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/06
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  03/05/2020
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PREPARED 03/05/2020, 8:57:47                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/05/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/05/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0000584    00   CEI
20200305 PR0305 00 03/05/2020   051-0000-241.00-00  PAYROLL SUMMARY EFT: 124,372.94

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 124,372.94
0002999    00   LAUGHLIN TRUSTEE, KATHLEEN A
20200305 PR0305        00 03/05/2020   051-0000-241.00-00  PAYROLL SUMMARY 35.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 35.00
0004192    00   PAYROLL EFT DEDUCTIONS
20200305 PR0305 00 03/05/2020   051-0000-241.00-00  PAYROLL SUMMARY 181,186.25

VENDOR TOTAL * 181,186.25
EFT/EPAY TOTAL *** 124,372.94

TOTAL EXPENDITURES **** 181,221.25 124,372.94
GRAND TOTAL ******************** 305,594.19
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PREPARED 03/05/2020 13:15:19 EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 03052020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . . Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/06
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0000957    00   AAA GARAGE DOOR INC
8274781 PI2550 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053211 231.00
8274781 PI2551 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-59  PO NUM 053211 411.15

VENDOR TOTAL * 642.15
0004276    00   AIRGAS USA LLC
9098158093 PI2519 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053079 EFT: 558.75
9098188935 PI2523 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053138 EFT: 778.00

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 1,336.75
0000965    00   ALL SYSTEMS LLC
82920 PI2614 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.60-61  PO NUM 053242 227.50

VENDOR TOTAL * 227.50
0002612    00   ALTEC INDUSTRIES INC
50541260 PI2534 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-59  PO NUM 052528 372.00
11346767 PI2535 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 052695 215.48
11346767 PI2536 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  PO NUM 052695 9.59
11346595 PI2540 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-48  PO NUM 053156 187.57
11346595 PI2541 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  PO NUM 053156 26.07
50542073 PI2543 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-48  PO NUM 053199 1,324.39
50542073 PI2544 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-59  PO NUM 053199 3,348.00
50542073 PI2545 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  PO NUM 053199 263.00
11350445 PI2546 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 053203 881.51
11350445 PI2547 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  PO NUM 053203 45.92
11354059 PI2668 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 052695 731.38

VENDOR TOTAL * 7,404.91
0003973    00   AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC
1CVQ9X7LGWVT   PI2609 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-42  PO NUM 053188 EFT: 201.12
17FPHCX3Y3LG   PI2736 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-42  PO NUM 053255 EFT: 114.98
 11DNV7DYMN79  PI2612 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053193 EFT: 155.54

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 471.64
0004585    00   AMERICAN BROADBAND INTERNET
51262 0320 PI2695        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052211 439.40

VENDOR TOTAL * 439.40
0001830    00   AMERICAN FENCE COMPANY LLC
13190 PI2631        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052229 716.90
13190 PI2632        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.60-61  PO NUM 052229 717.56

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,434.46
0002869    00   AQUA-CHEM INC
00192905 PI2727 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052239 2,125.50

VENDOR TOTAL * 2,125.50
0002637    00   BABCOCK & WILCOX CO (DIAMOND POWER)
555649 PI2525        00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053220 256.98

VENDOR TOTAL * 256.98
0002531    00   BABCOCK & WILCOX COMPANY Page 223
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     2
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0002531    00   BABCOCK & WILCOX COMPANY
BA60373481 PI2595 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  PO NUM 052868 EFT: 1,107.45

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 1,107.45
0005261    00   BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP
50724203 PI2548 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-919.60-56  PO NUM 053205 5,000.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 5,000.00
0000994    00   BIG B'S COPIES
70228 PI2749 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-61  PO NUM 053073 38.52

VENDOR TOTAL * 38.52
0005008    00   BKD LLP
BK01165952 PI2748 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-920.60-56  PO NUM 052504 4,500.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 4,500.00
0003545    00   BOMGAARS SUPPLY INC
16505242 PI2526 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052068 59.88
16506810 PI2621 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052068 42.29
16506810 PI2622 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 052068 80.24
16505437 PI2619 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052068 44.38
16506413 PI2620 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.50-35  PO NUM 052068 17.11

VENDOR TOTAL * 243.90
0002902    00   BORDER STATES / KRIZ-DAVIS
919493008 PI2521 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053119 EFT: 681.06
919493010 PI2524 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053166 EFT: 164.89
919518217 PI2615 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053061 EFT: 8,991.21
919526866 PI2616 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053061 EFT: 10,634.46
919543280 PI2654 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053247 EFT: 389.54
919493007 PI2685 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053085 EFT: 99.39
919518220 PI2686 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053166 EFT: 41.44
919518218 PI2599 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053096 EFT: 946.82
919479259 PI2528 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 052078 EFT: 52.41
919460591 PI2538 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 053139 EFT: 512.16
919493011 PI2529 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052078 EFT: 166.68

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 22,680.06
0001574    00   BUNCH CO INC, W S
13191 PI2732 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052891 9,601.12

VENDOR TOTAL * 9,601.12
0004518    00   CAPPEL AUTO SUPPLY INC
2634-00-013643 PI2743 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052100 68.37
2634-00-013649 PI2744 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-48  PO NUM 052100 253.35
2634-00-013611 PI2742 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-48  PO NUM 052100 214.47
2634-00-013310 PI2741 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052100 99.33

VENDOR TOTAL * 635.52
0000251    00   CB&I LLC
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     3
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0000251    00   CB&I LLC
374221336 #11  PI2690 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-58  PO NUM 049974 EFT: 227,380.50

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 227,380.50
0003512    00   CDW GOVERNMENT INC
WWL9505 PI2702 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053172 EFT: 42.00
WWL9505 PI2703 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  PO NUM 053172 EFT: 10.00

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 52.00
0000584    00   CEI
MAR 20 WC 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-919.20-29  Mar 2020 Workers Comp EFT: 31,250.00

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 31,250.00
0004615    00   CENTRAL PLAINS ENERGY PROJECT*WIRE*
022018A885 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-807.50-02  Feb'20 CPEP4 45,965.00
022012A197 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-807.50-02  Feb'20 CPEP3 143,985.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 189,950.00
0002675    00   CENTURYLINK
4027272600 0220PI2531 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052104 142.64
4027272606 0220PI2532 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052104 409.20
4027272654 0220PI2533 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052104 55.83

VENDOR TOTAL * 607.67
0005031    00   CENTURYLINK - BUSINESS SERVICES
1486072341 PI2630        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052212 195.14

VENDOR TOTAL * 195.14
0003615    00   COLE PAPERS INC
9639631 PI2617 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053167 EFT: 174.62

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 174.62
0003592    00   COMMERCIAL AIR MANAGEMENT INC
35787 PI2697        00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053075 680.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 680.00
0001643    00   CULLIGAN OF OMAHA
144105 0220    PI2745 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-95  PO NUM 052423 55.00
144105 0220    PI2746 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-76  PO NUM 052423 26.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 81.00
0005024    00   CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE
J3-69547 PI2542 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-59  PO NUM 053171 556.41

VENDOR TOTAL * 556.41
9999999    00   DELA CRUZ GOMEZ, JUAN
000066009 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 112.58

VENDOR TOTAL * 112.58
0003185    00   DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Egg-shaped digester project at WWTP

Natural gas purchase
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     4
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0003185    00   DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
BFPB002860220 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-555.50-00  Feb 2020 EFT: 51,388.08

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 51,388.08
0002897    00   DIERS INC
5016602 PI2638 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-48  PO NUM 053230 EFT: 272.86
5016311 PI2740 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.50-48  PO NUM 052071 EFT: 8.72

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 281.58
9999999    00   DUNCAN, ETHAN D
000078599 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 125.31

VENDOR TOTAL * 125.31
0003091    00   DUTTON-LAINSON CO
S12436-1 PI2649 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 052841 EFT: 526.44
S13301-1 PI2706 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053127 EFT: 1,526.36
S13422-1 PI2707 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053168 EFT: 301.74
816019-1 PI2714 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053254 EFT: 259.69
815443-1 PI2539 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 053153 EFT: 55.43

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 2,669.66
0003087    00   EAKES OFFICE SOLUTIONS
7963636-1 PI2522 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053128 14.86
7963636-2 PI2576 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053128 14.86
7973387-0 PI2688 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053253 440.07

VENDOR TOTAL * 469.79
0002959    00   EGAN SUPPLY CO
314573 PI2679 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053192 142.74

VENDOR TOTAL * 142.74
0004551    00   ELEMETAL FABRICATION LLC
16138 PI2629 00 03/11/2020   055-7205-583.50-48  PO NUM 052087 138.36

VENDOR TOTAL * 138.36
0005040    00   EMERSON PROCESS MANAGEMENT POWER &
9080852 PI2584        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 049403 EFT: 113,200.74
9080852 PI2585        00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.60-58  PO NUM 049403 EFT: 45,465.24

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 158,665.98
0003496    00   FARWEST LINE SPECIALTIES LLC
300614 PI2735        00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 053248 279.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 279.00
0002050    00   FASTENAL CO
NEFRE173669    PI2687 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053251 EFT: 182.30
NEFRE173145    PI2537 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053086 EFT: 146.38
NEFRE173484    PI2623 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052073 EFT: 178.20
NEFRE173146    PI2691 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052073 EFT: 39.80

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 546.68
0001729    00   FCX PERFORMANCE INC

Hydro power under PPA (WAPPA)

SCADA Project progress payment
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0001729    00   FCX PERFORMANCE INC
4526121 PI2520 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053098 1,075.96

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,075.96
0002884    00   FREMONT AREA CHAMBER
24855 PI2549 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-919.60-65  PO NUM 053206 300.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 300.00
0004833    00   FREMONT AREA UNITED WAY
FEB'20 CARESHAR 00 03/11/2020   055-0000-242.02-00  Feb 2020 Care & Share EFT: 241.50

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 241.50
0001131    00   FREMONT TRIBUNE
897211 PI2530 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-78  PO NUM 052097 124.24

VENDOR TOTAL * 124.24
0001132    00   FREMONT WINNELSON CO
342834 01 PI2527 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052074 158.68

VENDOR TOTAL * 158.68
0005211    00   GE STEAM POWER INC
95201654 PI2554 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 052866 EFT: 1,510.84
95201655 PI2555 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053088 EFT: 2,634.34
95202367 PI2650 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053088 EFT: 276.06

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 4,421.24
0004381    00   GENERATORTECH INC
220033 PI2715 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 050983 2,500.00
220033 PI2716 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-76  PO NUM 050983 500.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 3,000.00
0001139    00   GERHOLD CONCRETE CO INC
124262 PI2556 00 03/11/2020   055-7205-583.50-35  PO NUM 052075 462.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 462.00
0000247    00   GEXPRO
S127113761-001 PI2709 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-155.00-00  PO NUM 053181 EFT: 2,311.20

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 2,311.20
0001445    00   GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC
9314715315 PI2610 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-40  PO NUM 053190 649.15

VENDOR TOTAL * 649.15
0004707    00   GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS INC
9927040235 0220PI2562 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  PO NUM 052213 152.18
9927040235 0220PI2563 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-65  PO NUM 052213 1,000.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,152.18
0004419    00   HANSEN TIRE LLC
27444 PI2642 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-48  PO NUM 053256 214.21
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0004419    00   HANSEN TIRE LLC
27444 PI2643 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.60-59  PO NUM 053256 40.00
27444 PI2644 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.60-61  PO NUM 053256 7.00
27199 PI2557 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-48  PO NUM 052076 60.00
27477 PI2624 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-48  PO NUM 052076 3.17
27477 PI2625 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-59  PO NUM 052076 30.00
27471 PI2639 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-48  PO NUM 053252 457.87
27471 PI2640 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-59  PO NUM 053252 80.00
27471 PI2641 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 053252 24.00
27353 PI2568 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.50-48  PO NUM 053175 268.73
27353 PI2569 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.60-59  PO NUM 053175 40.00
27353 PI2570 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.60-61  PO NUM 053175 12.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,236.98
9999999    00   HARRIS, PATRICK A
000078217 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 47.83

VENDOR TOTAL * 47.83
0002794    00   HDR ENGINEERING INC
1200247598 PI2618 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-61  PO NUM 044217 EFT: 77,807.88

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 77,807.88
9999999    00   HINOJOSA, CESAR O
000046229 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 96.97

VENDOR TOTAL * 96.97
0003359    00   HONEYWELL INDUSTRY SOLUTIONS
5250882449 PI2566        00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-65  PO NUM 053116 EFT: 71,786.89

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 71,786.89
0001646    00   HTM SALES INC
20-38793-1 PI2699 00 03/11/2020   055-7205-583.50-35  PO NUM 053150 EFT: 19.60
20-38793-2 PI2700 00 03/11/2020   055-7205-583.50-35  PO NUM 053150 EFT: 1,407.66
20-38793-2 PI2701 00 03/11/2020   055-7205-583.60-79  PO NUM 053150 EFT: 20.00

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 1,447.26
0003878    00   HUPP ELECTRIC MOTORS INC
798331 PI2564 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-59  PO NUM 052976 27,373.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 27,373.00
0001922    00   HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC
68202S PI2645        00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-48  PO NUM 053257 677.23
68202S PI2646        00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-59  PO NUM 053257 1,686.40

VENDOR TOTAL * 2,363.63
0003074    00   JACKSON SERVICES INC
20200206 PR0206 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-241.00-00  PAYROLL SUMMARY EFT: 164.14
20200220 PR0220 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-241.00-00  PAYROLL SUMMARY EFT: 164.14
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-46  Feb Mats EFT: 63.16
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.20-29  Feb Uniforms/Whse EFT: 86.04

Engineering for WWTP improvements

SESP Support flex (renewal)

Repairs for U7 BFP 
Motor
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0003074    00   JACKSON SERVICES INC
1110 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.50-46  Feb Mats/Towels EFT: 188.74
1110 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-46  Feb Mats/Mops/Towels EFT: 524.60
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-46  Feb Mops/Mats EFT: 98.46
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.20-29  Feb Uniforms EFT: 911.04
1110 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-46  Feb Mats EFT: 440.76
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.20-29  Feb Uniforms/Elect Distr EFT: 1,355.92
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.20-29  Feb Uniforms/Engineers EFT: 57.52
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.20-29  Feb Uniforms EFT: 307.08
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.20-29  Feb Uniforms EFT: 219.88
1110 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-46  Feb Mats/Mops EFT: 64.62
567 - 022920 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.20-29  Feb Uniforms EFT: 744.08

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 5,390.18
0004205    00   JCI INDUSTRIES INC
8191646 PI2711 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053204 404.48

VENDOR TOTAL * 404.48
0003085    00   KELLY SUPPLY CO
S11128073-0    PI2651 00 03/11/2020   055-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053209 EFT: 85.45

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 85.45
0004708    00   KIMBALL MIDWEST
7731791 PI2565 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053110 97.24

VENDOR TOTAL * 97.24
0005047    00   KISTLER CRANE & HOIST
0051096-IN PI2729 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052886 2,023.62
0051096-IN PI2730 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052886 5,959.90

VENDOR TOTAL * 7,983.52
0002945    00   LYMAN RICHEY
124225 PI2558 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052081 241.95
124227 PI2559 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052081 122.33

VENDOR TOTAL * 364.28
0000480    00   MALLOY ELECTRIC
6286108 PI2710 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053198 3,259.43

VENDOR TOTAL * 3,259.43
0002052    00   MATHESON LINWELD
51594310 PI2718 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.60-76  PO NUM 052080 EFT: 78.20
21267134 PI2696 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052499 EFT: 263.59
21243132 PI2747 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052499 EFT: 669.12
51594310 PI2719 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-76  PO NUM 052080 EFT: 114.81
51594310 PI2720 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.60-76  PO NUM 052080 EFT: 57.41

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 1,183.13
0000667    00   MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO
34968947 PI2571 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053180 59.79
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0000667    00   MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO
34974034 PI2572 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053180 264.48
34974034 PI2573 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  PO NUM 053180 38.69
35616646 PI2636 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053219 589.17

VENDOR TOTAL * 952.13
0004500    00   MECHANICAL DYNAMICS & ANALYSIS LLC
635931 PI2553        00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 052846 EFT: 11,785.38

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 11,785.38
0001229    00   MENARDS - FREMONT
87958 PI2552 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 052410 6.39
87959 PI2561 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052083 44.80
88045 PI2626 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052083 29.92
88205 PI2627 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052083 109.04
87952 PI2560 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 052083 148.68
88376 PI2692 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052083 56.56
88362 PI2628 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.50-35  PO NUM 052083 14.97

VENDOR TOTAL * 410.36
0002960    00   MIDLAND SCIENTIFIC INC
6049100 PI2574 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 053182 35.98
6049373 PI2575 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 053182 46.23

VENDOR TOTAL * 82.21
0004883    00   MISSISSIPPI LIME COMPANY
1477888 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-158.02-00  2/19/20  26.03 TN EFT: 5,329.30
1479113 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-158.02-00  2/26/20  26.57 TN EFT: 5,439.86

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 10,769.16
0004892    00   MIXER SYSTEMS INC
097063 PI2583 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053218 767.79

VENDOR TOTAL * 767.79
9999999    00   MORNINGSIDE STORAGE
000075711 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 464.19

VENDOR TOTAL * 464.19
0001486    00   MOTION INDUSTRIES INC
NE01-530862    PI2578 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053185 8.86
NE01-530862    PI2579 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053185 98.55
NE01-530862    PI2580 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053185 7.47

VENDOR TOTAL * 114.88
0005250    00   MOTUS GROUP INC
2030 PI2684 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 052975 5,162.21

VENDOR TOTAL * 5,162.21
0002985    00   MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO INC
24373612 PI2581        00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053191 EFT: 460.96

Page 230

Item No. 11.



PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     9
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0002985    00   MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO INC
24373622 PI2582 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053191 EFT: 16.63
C26399912 PI2653 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053246 EFT: 233.88
26399932 PI2713 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053246 EFT: 230.48
25344012 PI2601 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053120 EFT: 24.04
24373622 PI2611 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053191 EFT: 82.39
C25304782 PI2633 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053212 EFT: 413.32
25304792 PI2634 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053212 EFT: 64.00
C26399912 PI2680 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053246 EFT: 98.74
22729822 PI2567 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053161 EFT: 362.60
C24975522 PI2635 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053217 EFT: 688.41
25386962 PI2637 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053225 EFT: 10.70

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 2,686.15
0003095    00   MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC OF OMAHA
0754112-IN PI2596        00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.50-35  PO NUM 052924 106.74
0754112-IN PI2597        00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.50-35  PO NUM 052924 439.31

VENDOR TOTAL * 546.05
0003057    00   NEBR DEPT OF ENVIRONMENT AND ENERGY
2020/JURGENS J PI2608 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-62  PO NUM 053178 125.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 125.00
0005251    00   NEBRASKA SIGN & COVER IT
2340 PI2737 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-61  PO NUM 053266 200.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 200.00
9999999    00   NICOLA, JANET L
000050239 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 80.89

VENDOR TOTAL * 80.89
0001473    00   NMC INC
CUI766820 PI2731 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052888 765.05
CUI764553 PI2600 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-65  PO NUM 053114 768.00
CUI761465 PI2605 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053144 1,765.15
CUI761842 PI2606 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053144 895.87

VENDOR TOTAL * 4,194.07
0004151    00   NORTH AMERICAN ELECTRIC RELIABILITY
25418 PI2588        00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 051832 EFT: 5,660.77

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 5,660.77
0003136    00   NORTHERN NATURAL GAS CO *FNB WIRE*
1035 FEB 2020 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-807.50-02 479,912.12

VENDOR TOTAL * 479,912.12
9999999    00   NP DODGE CO RELOCATION
000051141 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 5.82

VENDOR TOTAL * 5.82
0002937    00   O'KEEFE ELEVATOR CO INC

Natural gas purchase
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0002937    00   O'KEEFE ELEVATOR CO INC
00506572 PI2658 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.60-65  PO NUM 052166 197.05
00506572 PI2659 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-65  PO NUM 052166 1,116.63

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,313.68
0001020    00   O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC
0397-300838    PI2656 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 052085 132.06
0397-300959    PI2657 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-48  PO NUM 052085 120.59

VENDOR TOTAL * 252.65
0002888    00   OFFICENET
935576-0 PI2677 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.50-40  PO NUM 053187 111.32
935713-0 PI2678 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-920.50-40  PO NUM 053189 30.71
935947-0 PI2734 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053231 522.16

VENDOR TOTAL * 664.19
0002946    00   OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT
7281943133 0220PI2592 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-71  PO NUM 052424 EFT: 33.33
0128000051 0220PI2591 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.60-61  PO NUM 052176 EFT: 137.56

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 170.89
0004671    00   ONE CALL CONCEPTS INC
0020131 PI2693 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.60-61  PO NUM 052199 123.72

VENDOR TOTAL * 123.72
0001268    00   P & H ELECTRIC INC
121735 PI2708 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053179 813.16

VENDOR TOTAL * 813.16
0004634    00   PARR, CHAD
1164 PI2738 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.50-35  PO NUM 053267 114.86
1164 PI2739 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.60-61  PO NUM 053267 400.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 514.86
9999999    00   PEDERSEN, HUGH
000002899 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 61.71

VENDOR TOTAL * 61.71
0003827    00   PEST PRO'S INC
MNCP BLD 021920PI2662 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.60-61  PO NUM 052414 42.80
ASH PD 022420  PI2664 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052429 48.15
CMBT TUR 022420PI2665 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052429 53.50
PWR PLT 022420 PI2666 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052429 85.60
UTIL BLD 022420PI2667 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-35  PO NUM 052429 69.55
SUB STA 022420 PI2660 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-61  PO NUM 052198 190.35
WTR PLT 022420 PI2661 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052243 69.55
WWTP 022420    PI2663 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052422 110.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 669.50
0004800    00   PINNACLE BANK - VISA
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0004800    00   PINNACLE BANK - VISA
022620/JAN R   PI2681 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.60-62  PO NUM 053250 520.96

VENDOR TOTAL * 520.96
0003566    00   POLYDYNE INC
1434398 PI2712 00 03/11/2020   055-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053241 EFT: 9,896.67

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 9,896.67
0002834    00   POWER SPECIALTIES INC
150015 PI2598 00 03/11/2020   057-8001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053074 EFT: 12,987.12
150039 PI2676 00 03/11/2020   057-8001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053074 EFT: 639.25

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 13,626.37
0004696    00   PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC
58384 PI2675 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053039 56,630.51
58581 PI2602 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.50-35  PO NUM 053121 262.04

VENDOR TOTAL * 56,892.55
0005249    00   PRIME RIGGING LLC
15390 PI2593 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 052816 23,625.00
15390 PI2594 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-76  PO NUM 052816 27,253.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 50,878.00
0004413    00   RADWELL INTERNATIONAL INC
31234573 PI2398 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-59  PO NUM 052595 784.00-
31261533 PI2604 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-59  PO NUM 053137 1,995.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,211.00
9999999    00   REIKOFSKI, TIFFANY
000070887 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 157.52

VENDOR TOTAL * 157.52
9999999    00   ROTTINGHAUS, ZACHARY J
000077279 UT 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-143.00-00  MANUAL CHECK 125.96

VENDOR TOTAL * 125.96
0000663    00   SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS INC
82297576 PI2698 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-61  PO NUM 053099 1,109.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,109.00
0005230    00   SAMPLE BROTHERS INC
220413901 PI2647 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 052115 562.88

VENDOR TOTAL * 562.88
0004639    00   SAPP BROS INC
22980684 PI2613 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-30  PO NUM 053210 2,421.35

VENDOR TOTAL * 2,421.35
0003036    00   SHAFFER COMMUNICATIONS INC
20-0273 PI2607        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-48  PO NUM 053155 709.14

Switches for core 
switch refresh

For pulverizer 
machine removal
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE    12
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0003036    00   SHAFFER COMMUNICATIONS INC

VENDOR TOTAL * 709.14
0000429    00   SKARSHAUG TESTING LABORATORY INC
242140 PI2721        00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-61  PO NUM 052102 231.85
242140 PI2722        00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.60-79  PO NUM 052102 142.66

VENDOR TOTAL * 374.51
0003923    00   STATE OF NEBRASKA - CELLULAR
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.50-53  Cellular EFT: 73.82
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-919.50-53  Cellular EFT: 51.79
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.50-53  Cellular EFT: 98.35
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-925.50-53  Cellular EFT: 51.79
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-926.50-53  Cellular EFT: 51.79
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-919.50-53  City Cellular/D Simon EFT: 46.44
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-53  Cellular EFT: 156.01
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-53  Engineers Cellular EFT: 191.11
1207298 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-53  Elect Distr Cellular EFT: 332.17
1207298 00 03/11/2020   053-6105-502.50-53  Cellular EFT: 51.79
1207298 00 03/11/2020   053-6205-583.50-53  Cellular EFT: 191.77
1207298 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-53  Cellular EFT: 23.03
1207298 00 03/11/2020   057-8205-870.50-53  Cellular EFT: 264.38

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 1,584.24
0000434    00   STOVER CONTROLS
INV-508406 PI2577 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 053131 1,487.70
INV-508616 PI2682 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-153.00-00  PO NUM 052623 7,590.77
INV-508406 PI2603 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.60-79  PO NUM 053131 15.99

VENDOR TOTAL * 9,094.46
0005183    00   SUPERION LLC - CENTRALSQUARE
269872 PI2589 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.60-77  PO NUM 052023 EFT: 373.22
269872 PI2590 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.60-77  PO# 052023 EFT: 23.82
271199 PI2655 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-62  PO NUM 051314 EFT: 5,120.00
271838 PI2717 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-62  PO NUM 051314 EFT: 1,139.09

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 6,656.13
0002812    00   TENNANT SALES & SERVICE CO
916925032 PI2674        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 052973 25,740.39

VENDOR TOTAL * 25,740.39
0001339    00   TIMME WELDING & SUPPLY LLC
40703 PI2704        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-35  PO NUM 053245 32.61
40703 PI2705        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-48  PO NUM 053245 346.23

VENDOR TOTAL * 378.84
0004520    00   US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS
021720 LATE FEEPI2673 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-62  PO NUM 052875 5.27

VENDOR TOTAL * 5.27
0002907    00   WALNUT RADIO LLC  (KHUB)

Floor sweeper/ 
scrubber 
replacement
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PREPARED 03/05/2020,13:15:19                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE    13
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT ITEM CHECK HAND-ISSUED
   NO NO   NO DATE NO DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0002907    00   WALNUT RADIO LLC  (KHUB)
20020309 PI2694 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-903.60-78  PO NUM 052205 216.00

VENDOR TOTAL * 216.00
0002894    00   WASTE CONNECTIONS OF NE INC
5531025 PI2723 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-932.50-49  PO NUM 052165 241.14
5531025 PI2724 00 03/11/2020   051-5001-940.50-49  PO NUM 052165 417.00
5531025 PI2725 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-49  PO NUM 052165 285.71
5531025 PI2726 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.50-49  PO NUM 052165 1,030.91

VENDOR TOTAL * 1,974.76
0004336    00   WATERLINK INC
25716 PI2586 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 050155 368.49
25716 PI2587 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 050155 3,092.97
27293 PI2669 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052845 2,620.36
27293 PI2670 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052845 2,061.98
27350 PI2671 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052845 1,308.83
27350 PI2672 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052845 1,030.98
27372 PI2728 00 03/11/2020   051-5105-502.50-52  PO NUM 052845 1,160.18

VENDOR TOTAL * 11,643.79
0005136    00   WEISS CONSTRUCTION CO LLC
10445587 #21   PI2689 00 03/11/2020   055-7105-502.60-58  PO NUM 048410 EFT: 680,167.71

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 680,167.71
0000482    00   WESCO RECEIVABLES CORP
434044 PI2648 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 052754 EFT: 1,294.70
434045 PI2652 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 053213 EFT: 53.50
435385 PI2683 00 03/11/2020   051-0000-154.00-00  PO NUM 052627 EFT: 176.55
435386 PI2733 00 03/11/2020   051-5205-580.50-35  PO NUM 053126 EFT: 926.09

VENDOR TOTAL * .00 2,450.84
EFT/EPAY TOTAL *** 1,408,134.04

TOTAL EXPENDITURES **** 937,485.10 1,408,134.04
GRAND TOTAL ******************** 2,345,619.14

WWTP ANAEROBIC LOGOONS AND GAS 
SCRUBBING SYSTEM
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PREPARED 03/06/2020 11:52:58                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L                                       REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 03062020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X      One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . .         Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/06
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
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PREPARED 03/06/2020,11:52:58                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME                                                                                             EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE      VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT                ITEM                                 CHECK         HAND-ISSUED
   NO              NO   NO          DATE         NO               DESCRIPTION                           AMOUNT             AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0005183    00   SUPERION LLC - CENTRALSQUARE
270217         PI2750        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:         27,530.00
270742         PI2751        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:         31,141.00
270757         PI2752        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-62  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:          6,750.00
270832         PI2753        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:          1,920.00

VENDOR TOTAL *                       .00          67,341.00
EFT/EPAY TOTAL ***                                  67,341.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ****                    .00          67,341.00
GRAND TOTAL ********************                                    67,341.00

Page 237

Item No. 11.



Page 238

Item No. 11.



Page 239

Item No. 11.



AJ WITHDRAWAL WITHDRAWAL

GROUP NO VENDOR NAME DATE ACCOUNT NO ITEM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

2272 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 001-1003-415.20-99 CREDIT CARD FEES 356.93

2272 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 001-1003-415.20-99 CREDIT CARD FEES 146.65

2272 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 001-2029-451.20-99 CREDIT CARD FEES 54.31

2272 TSYS MERCHANT SOLUTIONS 03/03/20 001-2042-440.20-99 CREDIT CARD FEES 40.59

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 598.48

CITY OF FREMONT 

ELECTRONIC WITHDRAWAL LIST

FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 3/10/20

M:\Accounts Payable\City\Electronic Withdrawal List\3-10-20
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February legal services
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Hauling to coalition

Server/Hardware/
services for Watchguard 
cameras at Police 
Department
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PREPARED 03/06/2020 11:52:58                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST
PROGRAM: GM339L                                       REPORT PARAMETER SELECTIONS

EAL DESCRIPTION:  EAL: 03062020 ANDERSEND
PAYMENT TYPES
   Checks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   EFTs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   ePayables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Y
VOUCHER SELECTION CRITERIA
   Voucher/discount due date  . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
   All banks  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A
REPORT SEQUENCE OPTIONS:
   Vendor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  X      One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Bank/Vendor  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         One vendor per page? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Fund/Dept/Div/Element/Obj  . . . . . . . . . . .         Validate cash on hand? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . .  N
   Proj/Fund/Dept/Div/Elm/Obj . . . . . . . . . . .
 This report is by:  Vendor
   Process by bank code? (Y,N)  . . . . . . . . . .  Y
   Print reports in vendor name sequence? (Y,N) . .  Y
   Calendar year for 1099 withholding . . . . . . .  2020
   Disbursement year/per  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2020/06
   Payment date . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  03/11/2020
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PREPARED 03/06/2020,11:52:58                           EXPENDITURE APPROVAL LIST                                          PAGE     1
PROGRAM: GM339L                                            AS OF: 03/11/2020   PAYMENT DATE: 03/11/2020
DEPARTMENT OF UTILITIES
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
VEND NO   SEQ#  VENDOR NAME                                                                                             EFT, EPAY OR
 INVOICE      VOUCHER P.O.   BNK CHECK/DUE    ACCOUNT                ITEM                                 CHECK         HAND-ISSUED
   NO              NO   NO          DATE         NO               DESCRIPTION                           AMOUNT             AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

0005183    00   SUPERION LLC - CENTRALSQUARE
270217         PI2750        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:         27,530.00
270742         PI2751        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:         31,141.00
270757         PI2752        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-922.60-62  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:          6,750.00
270832         PI2753        00 03/11/2020   051-5001-950.80-50  PO NUM 053307                               EFT:          1,920.00

VENDOR TOTAL *                       .00          67,341.00
EFT/EPAY TOTAL ***                                  67,341.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ****                    .00          67,341.00
GRAND TOTAL ********************                                    67,341.00
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STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jody Sanders, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
DATE: March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Report of Treasury 
 

Recommendation:   Move to receive Report of the Treasury 

 
 
Background:  This statement reports the bank account balances at the end of the prior 
month, and is available by the first council meeting of each month so it gives the Council 
up-to-the- month timely information regarding cash reserve balances. 
 
More detailed information regarding the CD and CDAR investments are available on the 
City’s website under Government. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  As noted in the report.  The City’s total decreased by $534,000 from 
February, with payments made for the new dump truck, and progress payments on the 
auditorium renovation paid in February.  The Utility total increased by $1,933,000, as 
collections for winter month utility bills continues. 
 
Please note at the bottom of the second page that the City has several CDARs 
investments.  The Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) is a 
program that allows the public to spread money around various banks. The purpose 
of CDARS is to help people who invest in certificate of deposits (CDs) to stay below the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance limits at any given bank.  
These are listed separately, as they are exclusively insured separate and apart from 
FDIC coverage provided at each bank.  These investment amounts are not included in 
the totals on the worksheet. 
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City of Fremont

Report of Treasury - Cash and Investment Bank Balances

February 29, 2020

First National 

Bank - Fremont 

First State 

Bank

Pinnacle Bank 

of Fremont

Cornerstone 

Bank, 

Columbus

NE Land 

National 

Bank, North 

Platte

Nebraska 

Public 

Investment 

Trust

Account Name

Governmental

Checking/Money Market

City Treasurer 8,371,744$       

City Treasurer-M Mkt 1,559,060$       

SID #4 61,270$           

Special Revenue 275,116$        

Infrastructure - Sales Tax 4,314$              

 Insured M MKT ** -Sales Tax 6,554,565$     

Public Safety - Sales Tax 944,646$          

Streets - Sales Tax 227,272$          

Streets - M Mkt 418,442$        

Community Devlopment Agy 228,778$         

Keno 250,320$        

CDBG Clearing 24,058$           

CDBG Program Income 69,446$           

E911 178,642$         

Drug Task 35,464$           

Employee Benefits 2,576,703$     

Total Checking/Money Market 10,528,462$     6,829,680$     3,245,466$     -$              -$               1,176,233$       

CD Investments

General fund 4,500,000$       3,250,000$     200,000$      2,000,000$    

Sales Tax/Infrastructure fund

Sales Tax/Streets fund

Sales Tax/LB840 fund 1,500,000$       1,500,000$     

Street fund 1,000,000$       -$               500,000$        

KENO fund 300,000$        

Trust Fund 100,000$         60,000$          

E911 250,000$        

Special assessment Fund 750,000$        

Employee Benefits 1,000,000$       -$               

Work Comp 750,000$         -$               

Total CD Investments 8,850,000$       -$               6,610,000$     200,000$      2,000,000$    -$                  

Total Governmental deposits 19,378,462$     6,829,680$     9,855,466$     200,000$      2,000,000$    1,176,233$       

Grand total 39,439,841$     

Statement ending balances
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City of Fremont

Report of Treasury - Cash and Investment Bank Balances

February 29, 2020

First National 

Bank - Fremont 

First State 

Bank

Pinnacle Bank 

of Fremont

Cornerstone 

Bank, 

Columbus

NE Land 

National 

Bank, North 

Platte

Nebraska 

Public 

Investment 

Trust

Account Name

Statement ending balances

Proprietary Funds

Checking/Money Market

Combined Utilities Fund 18,972,034$     

Electric Fund 607$                

Comb Util Funds/Construction 9,035,316$       

Electric Funds 2,031,298$       

Water Project Bond Acct 80,560$           

Department of Utilities 677,591$        

Sewer Improvement 3,391$             

Sewer Funds 315,315$          

Gas Fund 759,580$          

Electric Fund 150$             

Total Checking/Money Market 28,091,909$     -$               677,591$        150$             -$               3,106,194$       

CD Investments

Electric 2,750,000$       2,000,000$     5,096,000$     

Water 675,000$         200,000$        

Sewer 250,000$         

Gas 500,000$         

Total CD Investments 4,175,000$       2,000,000$     5,296,000$     -$              -$               -$                  

Total Proprietary deposits 32,266,909$     2,000,000$     5,973,591$     150$             -$               3,106,194$       

Grand total 43,346,844$     

Grand total, all funds 51,645,370$     8,829,680$     15,829,057$   200,150$      2,000,000$    4,282,427$       

Grand total 82,786,684$     

CITY CDARS CERTIFICATES 4,100,000$    3,225,000$       

DU CDARS CERTIFICATES -$                 -$               2,900,000$    -$               2,600,000$       
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, BOARD OF EQUALIZATION & CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

February 25, 2020 - 6:30 PM (Public Comment) 
City Council Chambers 400 East Military, Fremont NE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPM ENT AGENCY AGENDA 

7:00 PM 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER. After the Pledge of Allegiance, the Chair called the meeting of 
the Community Development Agency to order and stated that a copy of the open meeting law is 
posted continually for public inspection located near the entrance door by the agendas. 

ROLL CALL. Roll call showed Members McClain, Ellis, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus 
and Legband present. 8 members present. 

1. Resolution 2020-001 forwarding a proposed redevelopment plan amendment 
(WholeStone Farms Redevelopment Project) to the planning commission for purposes of 
its review, public hearing and recommendation regarding said plan’s conformity with the 
comprehensive plan. Member Kuhns moved, seconded by Member Jacobus to amend the 
Resolution number to 2020-002. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, and Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Kuhns, Seconded by 
Jensen to approve Resolution 2020-002 as amended. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, 
Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

ADJOURNMENT. Member Legband moved, seconded by Member Jensen to adjourn at 7:14 p.m. 
Ayes: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Legband, Ellis, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus. Motion carried. 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

7:00 PM – Following the preceding Meeting 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER. The Chair called the meeting of the Community Development 
Agency to order and stated that a copy of the open meeting law is posted continually for public 
inspection located near the entrance door by the agendas. 

ROLL CALL. Roll call showed Members McClain, Ellis, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus 
and Legband present. 8 members present. 

3.  Hold public hearing and consider complete cost and schedule of Assessments for 
Business Improvement District #1. The Chair opened the public hearing. The Chair closed 
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the public hearing after receiving comments from the public. Motion by Jensen, seconded 
by Legband to receive redline request spreadsheet and two additional requests. Voting 
Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Legband to approve the exemptions in the blue 
section marked red with the exception of 309-311 E. 8th. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, 
Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband. Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion 
made by Jacobus to deny request for property 405-413 N. Main. The motion died due to 
lack of a second. Motion made by Kuhns, seconded by Legband to approve the 50% 
exemption request for property 405-413 N. Main. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, 
Yerger, Jensen, Legband Voting Nay: Jacobus Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion 
made by Yerger to deny the exemption request for 141 E. Military motion dies due to lack 
of a second. Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Jensen to approve 50% exemption 
for property 141 E. Military. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, 
Jacobus, Legband. Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion made by Jacobus, seconded 
by Kuhns to approve 50% exemption for property 124 E. 6th. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, 
Bechtel, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband. Voting Nay: Yerger. Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. 
Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Yerger to deny exemption request for 309-311 E. 
8th St. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband 
Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion made by Legband, seconded by Jacobus to 
approve the exemptions in the yellow section marked red. Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, 
Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband. Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion 
made by Jacobus, seconded by Legband to deny exemption for property 338 N. Main. 
Voting Yea: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband. Abstention: 
Ellis. Motion carried. Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Jensen to approve 50% 
exemption for property 310 E. Military. Voting Yea: McClain, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, 
Jacobus, Legband Voting Nay: Kuhns Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. Motion made by 
Jacobus, seconded by Yerger to deny exemption request for property 330 N. Main. Voting 
Yea: McClain, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Kuhns Voting Nay: Legband Abstention: 
Ellis. Motion carried. Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Legband to approve 25% 
exemption for 120 N. D St. Voting Yea: McClain, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, 
Legband Kuhns Abstention: Ellis. Motion carried. 

4. Resolution 2020-001 levying a special tax and assessment in the amount of $271.95 
against Lot 13, Block 4, Northside (owner: Atlantica, LLC) to pay the costs of weed and 
debris removal and assessment. Motion made by Legband, seconded by McClain to 
approve Resolution 2020-001. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT. Member Jensen moved, seconded by Member McClain to adjourn at 8:10 p.m. 
Ayes: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Legband, Ellis, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus. Motion carried. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 PM – Following the preceding Meeting 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER. The Mayor called the meeting of the City Council to order and 
stated that a copy of the open meeting law is posted continually for public inspection located near 
the entrance door by the agendas. 
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ROLL CALL. Roll call showed Members McClain, Ellis, Kuhns, Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus 
and Legband present. 8 members present. 

MAYOR COMMENTS 
(There will be no discussion from the Council or the public regarding comments made by the 
Mayor. Should anyone have questions regarding the comments, please contact the Mayor after the 
meeting) 

4. Motion to adopt current agenda for February 25, 2020 Regular Meeting. Motion made by 
Yerger, Seconded by McClain. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: 

5. Request to postpone annual report from Library Board. Motion made by Yerger, Seconded 
by Kuhns to postpone annual report from Library Board to second meeting in April. Voting 
Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

6. Resolution 2020-038 to enter agreement with Nebraska State Patrol to subscribe to 
MACH mobile mapping product. Motion made by Jensen, Seconded by Legband to 
approve Resolution 2020-038. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

7. Motion to approve a subdivision agreement with Mesner Development for the Hidden 
Brook Subdivision. Motion made by Yerger, seconded by Kuhns to amend section 4a5 of 
the agreement to include cul-de-sac. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Legband, Seconded by Jensen 
to approve subdivision agreement with Mesner Development for the Hidden Brook 
Subdivision as amended. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, 
Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

8. Ordinance 5527 to annex WholeStone Farms property. Mayor Getzschman opened the 
public hearing. Mayor Getzschman closed the public hearing after receiving comments. 
Motion made by Legband, Seconded by Jensen to introduce and hold first reading of 
Ordinance 5527. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, 
Jacobus. Motion carried. City Clerk provided first reading. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Council Member McClain moved, seconded by Council Member Legband to 
approve Consent Agenda items 11, 14-16, 18, and 20-21. Voting Yea: McClain, Ellis, Kuhns, 
Bechtel, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus, Legband. Motion carried. 

9. Motion to approve February 12, 2020 through February 25, 2020 claims and authorize 
checks to be drawn on the proper accounts. Motion made by Jacobus, Seconded by 
Legband to approve February 12, 2020 through February 25, 2020 claims. Voting Yea: 
Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
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10. Receive fiscal year-end financial statements. Motion made by Jacobus, Seconded by 
Legband to receive fiscal year-end financial statements. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, 
McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

11. Dispense with and approve February 11, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes, and 
February 18, 2020 Emergency City Council Meeting Minutes. 

  
12. Resolution 2020-041 approving non Class C liquor license renewals. Motion made by 

Yerger, Seconded by Legband to approve Resolution 2020-041. Voting Yea: Yerger, 
McClain, Jensen, Legband, Kuhns Voting Abstaining: Ellis, Bechtel, Jacobus. Motion 
carried. 
 

13. Resolution 2020-042 authorizing and awarding the bid to R&D Construction for all labor, 
materials and construction of an awning at the entrance of the Fremont Friendship Center. 

 Motion made by Jensen, Seconded by Yerger to approve Resolution 2020-042. Voting 
Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

14. Move to approve the recommendation of the Mayor to re-appoint Sheri Kment to the 
Library Board. 

  
15. Resolution 2020-043 of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to enter into an 

Interlocal Agreement with Colfax County Nebraska to join 911 systems in to a co-hosted 
system. 

  
16. Resolution 2020-045 to terminate the City’s League Association of Risk Management 

(LARM) Pool membership for liability and non-Utility property insurance coverage.  
  
17. Resolution 2020-044 to contract for professional services to provide the City assistance in 

marketing its property and liability coverage for its 2020-2021 renewal. Motion made by 
Kuhns, Seconded by Jacobus to approve Resolution 2020-044. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, 
McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

18. Resolution 2020-046 consenting to the vacation of a portion of Park Street from Cathy 
street to Judy Drive, and communicating the same to the Dodge County Board of 
Supervisors.  

 
19. Resolution 2020-047 to approve St. Patrick’s Church request for the use of and street 

closures for its 49th Annual St. Patrick’s Festival on Sunday, June 7, 2020, from 11:00 
A.M. to 7:00 P.M. for their annual parish festival. Motion made by Yerger, seconded by 
Jensen to receive updated map and Resolution. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, 
Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Yerger, 
seconded by Jacobus to amend the resolution as received. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, 
McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by 
Jacobus, Seconded by Legband to approve Resolution 2020-047 as amended. Voting 
Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

20. Resolution 2020-048 to authorize signing of the Year-End Certification of the City Street 
Superintendent for the calendar year of 2019 for State of Nebraska street incentive 
payments. 
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21. Resolution 2020-049 of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to designate 
Mark Vyhlidal as the Fremont Street Superintendent for the calendar year of 2020 for 
State of Nebraska street incentive payments.  

  
22. Mayor Getzschman item – Resolution 2020-054 accepting and awarding the proposal of 

GovConnection Inc. for add on licenses, VMware maintenance agreement and server 
infrastructure to lifecycle existing servers. Motion made by Kuhns, Seconded by Yerger to 
approve Resolution 2020-054. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: Requires individual associated action 

23. Ordinance 5518 repealing and replacing Chapter 3, Article 7 Section 3-701 of the Fremont 
Municipal Code titled Municipal Library; operation and funding (first reading).  

a. Council Member Yerger Item – Ordinance 5518 repealing and replacing Chapter 3, 
Article 7, - Library including Sections 3-701 to 3-707 

 Motion made by Yerger, seconded by Jacobus to Introduce and hold first reading of 
Ordinance 5518 with Board Amendments. Voting Yea: Ellis, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus. 
Voting Nay: McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Legband. Motion failed. Motion made by Legband, 
seconded by Kuhns to introduce and hold first reading of Ordinance 5518. Voting Yea: 
McClain, Kuhns, Bechtel, Legband, Getzschman. Voting Nay: Ellis, Yerger, Jensen, 
Jacobus. Motion carried. City Clerk provided first reading. 

24. Resolution 2020-050 for Implementation of City Council Policy for Prayer before Council 
Meetings. Motion made by Jacobus, Seconded by Yerger to approve Resolution 2020-
050. Voting Yea: Yerger, Bechtel, Jacobus Voting Nay: Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, 
Kuhns. Motion failed. 
 

25. Ordinance 5521 for a Change of Zone from UR, Urban Residential to SC, Suburban 
Commercial property generally located on the west side of N. Clarkson St. between the 
hospital access road and 30th Streets (final reading). Motion made by Jensen, Seconded 
by Legband to hold final reading of Ordinance 5521. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, 
Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. City Clerk provided final 
reading. Mayor Getzschman called for a final vote on the Ordinance. Voting Yea: Yerger, 
Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Ordinance 5521 passed. 
 

26. Ordinance 5523 to amend Section 11-920 of the City of Fremont UDC to amend the 
definitions of Front Yard, Side Yard, Street Side Yard and Rear Yard (final reading). 
Motion made by Yerger, seconded by Jacobus to receive updated Ordinance language. 
Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus Voting Nay: 
Legband. Motion carried. Motion made by Jacobus, seconded by Yerger to amend the 
Ordinance to include the amended language. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, 
Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Yerger, seconded by 
Jacobus to hold final reading of Ordinance 5523 as amended. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, 
McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. City Clerk provided 
final reading. Mayor Getzschman called for a final vote on the Ordinance. Voting Yea: 
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Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
Ordinance 5523 is passed. 

  

NEW BUSINESS: Requires individual associated action 

27. Resolution 2020-051 authorizing levying of assessments for Business Improvement 
District #1. Motion made by Legband, Seconded by Jensen, to receive the updated 
schedule of assessments. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, 
Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Legband, seconded by Kuhns to amend 
and set the levy of the assessment at .001612. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, Jensen, 
Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. Motion made by Jensen, Seconded by 
Legband to approve Resolution 2020-051 as amended. Voting Yea: Yerger, Ellis, McClain, 
Jensen, Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

28. Resolution 2020-052 approving a Local Option Economic Development Loan for 
WholeStone Farms II, LLC, authorizing staff to negotiate a loan agreement, and 
authorizing the Mayor to sign the appropriate loan transactions. Motion made by Legband, 
Seconded by Kuhns to approve Resolution 2020-052. Voting Yea: Ellis, McClain, Jensen, 
Legband, Bechtel, Kuhns Voting Nay: Yerger, Jacobus. Motion carried. 
 

ADJOURNMENT. Motion made by Legband, seconded by Bechtel to adjourn. Ayes: McClain, 
Kuhns, Bechtel, Legband, Getzschman. Nays: Ellis, Yerger, Jensen, Jacobus. Motion carried. 

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED AS THE OFFICIAL COPY OF THE FREMONT, NEBRASKA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION & REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 25, 2020. 

 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk         Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
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STAFF REPORT  
 
 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
 
FROM: Todd Bernt, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  March 10, 2020  
 
SUBJECT: Purchase Fire Station Alerting System 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  This is to replace our current Zetron fire station alerting system 
(FSA) that is approximately 20 years old. Our current system is not National Fire 
Protection Association (NFPA) compliant and does not work like it once did. Had 
technicians working on the system which cannot find the problems and the 
solutions to the problems are short term.  
 
The new system would be NFPA compliant and provide automated dispatching. 
The system is IP based and would be connected the city’s network. There will be 
redundancy built into the system so if one part of the system down, the fire 
station will still get the alert from dispatch through a different path. 
 
The fire station alerting system is tied in with the dispatch center. When dispatch 
receives a 911 call, dispatchers collect all important information from the caller. 
The dispatcher inputs that information in to the CAD system and then alerts the 
fire department. The fire department personnel are alerted through tones and 
voice stating address and other important information related to the emergency.  
 
The new FSA system will help reduce response times, alleviate stress to 
dispatchers by providing automated dispatching, and uses heart-friendly alerting 
tones, and red LED lights to minimize first responder health issues.  
 
On December 2, 2019, started advertising the Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
the new fire station alerting system on the city website. Proposals from 
companies responding to the RFP are to be submitted by January 17, 2020.  
 
The week of December 2, thirteen (13) e-mails with the RFP attached were sent 
to representatives of eight different fire station alerting system companies. 
Between December 2 and 4, received e-mail responses from four companies 
acknowledging receipt of the proposal or stating they would review our RFP and 
submit a proposal or look forward to submitting a proposal. The four companies 
were D & D Communications, Omaha, Nebraska; Firehouse Alerting, Maryland; 
Westnet, Inc., California; and Com Tech Communications, California. 
 

Recommendation: Move to approve resolution. 
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Received questions from two other companies about the RFP. In the RFP, it 
states if companies had questions or needed clarifications, they were to submit 
questions before or on December 20, 2019. Those questions were answered and 
provided through an addendum posted on the city’s website. The addendum 
were also e-mailed to the companies that provided the questions. The two 
companies receiving questions from were Racom, IA and Bryx, New York.  
 
On December 23, received a phone call from D & D Communications in Omaha 
stating that they are declining to submit a proposal. D & D Communications is the 
dealer for Locution Fire Station Alerting located in Colorado. Stated the company 
is busy and would be unable install a system at this time. Stated if the project 
was much larger such as a ten fire station install project they may have submitted 
a proposal. This project being a small single fire station project stated they don’t 
have the time.  
 
On January 13, received a phone call from Platte Valley Communications, 
Kearney, Ne, dealer for the Zetron Company, asking about the proposal and the 
closing date. Stated he was notified the previous week of January 6 from the 
Zetron Company of the RFP and the company wanted him to submit a proposal. 
Stated that with the short notice from the Zetron Company that they would be 
unable to submit a proposal. Zetron Company was notified by e-mail of the RFP 
on December 2, 2019. Platte Valley Communications has not completed a Zetron 
fire station alerting system project in the 5 years. 
 
Over the course of the advertising and answering questions, I received 
responses from seven out of the eight companies. The only company not to 
respond was Motorola. 
 
The fire department received only one proposal from Racom, headquarters 
located in Marshalltown, Iowa and is the dealer for US Digital Designs of Tempe, 
Arizona.  
 
The submitted proposal was reviewed by Communications Director Shelly 
Holzerland, IT Director Nick Brand, and myself. On February 6, we met with 
Racom and US Digital reps to review and get clarifications on their proposal. The 
equipment proposed will accommodate the fire department and dispatch center 
now and as we change and grow in the future. Equipment for the new system will 
be installed at both the dispatch center and fire station. 
 
Area fire departments that currently use this system: Omaha Fire Department 
(NE), Lincoln Fire Department (NE), and Council Bluffs Fire Department (IA). 
Bellevue Fire Department (NE) and Papillion Fire Department (NE) will be using 
this system in the near future. 
    
Also needing approval is the service agreement with Racom/US Digital Design 
Phoenix G2. This service agreement goes in effect after the warranty period has 
expired, 18 months from the time the parts were shipped. The Service 
Agreement includes: 

1)  Software maintenance 
2)  Repair of detective or malfunctioning Hardware 
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3)  Technical support 
4)  Remote access 
5)  Emergency support 
6)  Updates for all system software 
7)  29 App licenses  

 
Included is training for IT personnel, dispatchers, and fire department. 
 
Total cost includes two years’ service agreement: $177,229.76 
After the two years annual maintenance, this will be renewed annually. 
 
The service agreement was reviewed the by city attorney. 
 
Fiscal Impact: This has been approved through the 2019-2020 Capital 
Improvement Plan of $268,000  
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Bid Tabulation 

1) Racom (Headquarters) Dealer/Installer 
    201 W. State Street 
    Marshalltown, IA 50158 
 
US Digital Solutions, Tempe, AZ is the manufacture of the system. 
 
Included is an 18 month warranty: 

Covered under the warranty    
1) Software maintenance 
2)  Repair of detective or malfunctioning Hardware 
3)  Technical support 
4)  Remote access 
5)  Emergency support 
6)  Updates for all system software 
7)  App licenses  

 
Staff recommends the purchasing a two year service agreement. Service agreement will 
then be purchased annually after that. Service agreement includes all that is listed 
above under warranty. 
 
Total Cost: $177,229.76 includes two year service agreement.  
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-057 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, to accept the 
proposal of Racom and US Digital Designs Phoenix G2 in the amount of 
$177,229.76  for a new fire station alerting system and enter into a service 
agreement that goes into effect after the warranty period has expired. 
 
WHEREAS,    The fire department current fire station alerting system is 20 years old 
                       and is not compliance with current National Fire Protection Association  
                       standards; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Fremont sought proposals for new fire station alerting system; 

and, 
 
WHEREAS,  One proposal were received and evaluated by City Staff; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Racom and US Digital Designs Phoenix G2 provided a proposal meeting 

the specifications in the Request for Proposals (RFP); and,  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:  That the proposal of Racom and US Digital 

Designs Phoenix G2 with the cost of a $177,229.76 be accepted as the 

best and only proposal; and, the Mayor and City Council approve the 

proposal and authorize staff to enter into a service agreement with 

Racom and US Digital Designs Phoenix G2.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH, 2020 

 

        ________________________  
        Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk  
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STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:                 Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM:           Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 

DATE:             March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT:      Deed of Reconveyance completing CDBG Loan payments(s): Frink; 505 E. 2nd 
Street 

 

 

Recommendation:  Authorize the Mayor to sign Deed(s) of Reconveyance    

 
 

 
Background:  The borrower(s) have met the requirements of the CDBG loan, and the loan(s) 
have been paid and/or forgiven.  
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DEED OF RECONVEYANCE 

 
City of Fremont 

400 East Military Avenue 

Fremont, NE 68025-5141 

 
The indebtedness secured by the Deed of Trust executed by Wade P. Frink and Carol J. Frink, husband and wife, as 

Trustor(s) to Michael T. Brogan as Trustee, for the benefit of the City of Fremont as beneficiary dated August 18, 

2016, and recorded on August 22, 2016, in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Dodge County, Nebraska recorded 

at Document #: 201603958, has been paid, and the Beneficiary has requested in writing that this Deed of 

Reconveyance be executed an delivered as confirmed by its endorsement below. In consideration of such payment 

and in accordance with the request of the Beneficiary, the Trustee reconveys to the person or persons entitled 

thereto all the right, title, interest and claim acquired by the Trustee pursuant to the Deed of Trust in the 

following: 

 

Lot 4, Block 207, of Barnard, Kittle, Smith & Turner’s, an Addition to the City of Fremont, Dodge County, 

Nebraska 

 

Dated:   By:  

                                                                                                 Michael T. Brogan, Trustee          

STATE OF NEBRASKA       ) 

                                             ) ss.     

COUNTY OF MADISON    ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on                                   by Michael T. Brogan, as Trustee. 

 
Witness my hand and seal:                                                                                                                                  

Notary Public 
 

REQUEST FOR RECONVEYANCE 

 

The Beneficiary requests the Trustee to reconvey the real estate described above to the person or persons entitled 

thereto. 

                                                                  
By:  

                                                                                                        Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

                                                                                                        City of Fremont, Beneficiary 

STATE OF NEBRASKA       ) 

                                             ) ss.     

COUNTY OF DODGE         ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on                                   by Scott Getzschman, Mayor, on behalf 

of the City of Fremont as Beneficiary. 

 
Witness my hand and seal:                                                                                                                                  

Notary Public 
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STAFF REPORT  
 

TO:  City of Fremont Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Utilities and Infrastructure Board 
  Jeff Shanahan, LDW Power Plant Superintendent  
 
DATE:  March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Lon D. Wright Power Plant Rail Track Extension  
 
Recommendation: Recommend Contract for Rail Track Extension at Lon D. Wright Power Plant 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In 2019, Union Pacific Railroad informed LDW staff that they were transitioning from 123 unit car 
train sets to 150 unit car train sets. The power plant currently has room to store and maneuver 123 
cars. During the meeting with Union Pacific, we discussed possible solutions and budget 
constraints. 
 
LDW staff and City Engineering staff met to discuss the possibility of expanding the existing rail 
ladder track and decided that it would be feasible. LDW staff developed a budget recommendation 
and included it in the 2019-2020 fiscal year capital improvement plan that was approved.  
 
The City of Fremont hired HDR Engineering to provide a specification and drawings for the rail 
track extension. Bids were received on Monday February 17, 2020 at 10:00 am in the City Council 
Chambers.  
 
The City received six (6) sealed bids. The bids are summarized in the table below. 
 

Railworks 
Track 

System 

R&S Track 
Maintenance 

Paragon Capital RR Musselman & 
Hall 

KRW 
Construction 

$635,288.00 $832,679.45 $988,968.54 $876,584.44 $977,225.92 $686,352.00 

 
Base on HDR Engineering evaluation and recommendation and discussion with LDW staff at the 
February 25, 2020 UIB meeting. The Utilities and Infrastructure board voted 4 to 0 with one member 
absent to recommend the City of Fremont Mayor and City Council authorize the City of Fremont, 
Department of Utilities Staff to sign a contract and issue a purchase order to Railworks Track 
System for $635,288.00 for the construction of the LDW Rail Track Extension  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
2019-2020 $635,288.00 this item was budgeted and included in the Capital Improvement Plan 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-058 

 
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, authorizing a 
contract for the LDW Power Plant Rail Track Extension. 
 
WHEREAS,  In 2019, Union Pacific Railroad informed LDW staff that they were   

   transitioning from 123 unit car train sets to 150 unit car train sets.   
   The power plant currently has room to store and maneuver 123 cars.  
   During the meeting with Union Pacific, we discussed possible   
   solutions and budget constraints. 

  
WHEREAS,  LDW staff and City Engineering staff met to discuss the possibility of  

   expanding the existing rail ladder track and decided that it would be  
   feasible. LDW staff developed a budget recommendation and   
   included it in the 2019-2020 fiscal year capital improvement plan that  
   was approved.  

 
WHEREAS,  The City of Fremont hired HDR Engineering to provide a specification  

   and drawings for the rail track extension. Bids were received on   
   Monday February 17, 2020 at 10:00 am in the City Council   
   Chambers.  

 
WHEREAS,  Base on HDR Engineering evaluation and recommendation and discussion 

with LDW staff at the February 25, 2020 UIB meeting. The Utilities and 
Infrastructure board voted 4 to 0 with one member absent to recommend 
the City of Fremont Mayor and City Council authorize the City of Fremont, 
Department of Utilities Staff to sign a contract and issue a purchase order 
to Railworks Track System for $635,288.00 for the construction of the LDW 
Rail Track Extension  

  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,   that the Mayor and City Council accept the 

recommendation of the Utilities and Infrastructure Board and authorize the 
City of Fremont, Department of Utilities Staff to sign a contract and issue a 
purchase order to Railworks Track System for $635,288.00 for the 
construction of the LDW Rail Track Extension. 

. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH, 2020 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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  400 East Military Avenue ♦ Fremont, NE 68025-5141 
 

 

 

  
 Public Works & Engineering Department ♦ Phone:  402.727.2638  ♦ Fax: 402.727.2659 

 

 
BID TABULATION 

 

PROJECT: 2020 Pavement Rehab; P-185-20 

LOCATION: Fremont, Nebraska 

BID DATE: Thursday, February 20, 2020 

TIME:  2:00 p.m. 

 

BIDDER BID 
Anticipated  

Start Date 

Bond /   

Certified 

Check 

CR- Menn Concrete, LLC $158,592.25 03/16/2020 

 

 

R & D Construction, LLC $169,900.00 05/04/2020 

 

 

Yong Construction, LLC $199,924.00 04/15/2020 

 

 

Sawyer Construction Co $220,234.00 TBD 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

  
 

 

 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE =  $220,000.00   
 

Page 301

Item No. 17.



P-185-20 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-059 
 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska accepting and 

awarding the bid to C-R Menn Concrete, LCC. for the 2020 Pavement Rehab 

project.  The project will perform street rehabilitation improvements throughout 

the City of Fremont, Nebraska. 

 

WHEREAS, Sealed bids were publically opened, read and tabulated in the Council 

Chambers on the 20th day of February 2020 at the hour of 2:00 pm; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Public Works Director and the Civil Engineer reviewed the bids 

received and recommended that the bid by C-R Menn Concrete, LLC. be 

accepted as the lowest bidder for the 2020 Pavement Rehab project.  The 

proposal submitted is for $158,592.25. 

 

WHEREAS, The amount funded in the 2019-2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is 

$220,000.00.  The project is an annual street rehabilitation work.  There 

will be additional rehab location(s) to be performed by C-R Menn 

Concrete, LLC.   

 

WHEREAS, The supplementary work under the scope for the 2020 Pavement Rehab 

project is beyond its original proposal submitted.  Recommend that the 

amount be approved for $220,000.00 as funded under the CIP. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:   

That the Mayor and City Council accept the recommendation of the Public Works 

Director to approve the award of the 2020 Pavement Rehab in the amount of 

$220,000.00 to C-R Menn Concrete, LLC. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH, 2020 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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P-185-20 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: David Goedeken, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
DATE: March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Pavement Rehab project 
 
 

Recommendation: Approval to Award Contract to CR-MENN CONCRETE, LLC. 

 
 

Background:  

 

On February 20, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., bids were accepted and opened for the 2020 Pavement 

Rehab project.  There were five (5) interested contractors and four (4) bid proposals were 

received.  The project consists of improvements to the City’s transportation roads.  These 

improvements include the rehabilitation of streets, drainage improvements, curb ramps, 

grading, adjusting manholes, seeding and erosion control throughout selected locations in 

the City of Fremont, Nebraska. 

 

This item was approved by the Utilities and Infrastructure Board on February 11th by a 5:0 

vote. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

 

CR-MENN CONCRETE, LLC. Of Fremont, Nebraska submitted the lowest bid amount of 

$158,592.25 with the funds coming out of the Street Fund.  This project is funded in the 

2019-2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The amount budgeted is $220,000.00.  Because 

this being rehab work, staff recommends authorizing the contractor to do additional work 

beyond the original contract amount to meet the limits of the budgeted amount. 
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STAFF REPORT  
 
 

TO:  Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM:  Troy Schaben, Assistant City Administrator - Utilities  
 
DATE:  March 10, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Natural Gas Asset Management  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  BP has been Fremont’s Natural Gas Asset Manager since 2016. Fremont 
recently requested proposals from potential managers and reviewed those proposals at 
the end of January 2020. BP submitted the best proposal, which was nearly identical to 
the existing contract, but adjusted the monthly credit paid to the City of Fremont from 
$4,200 per month to $8,500 per month. Staff recommends selecting BP as Fremont’s 
Natural Gas Asset Manager. The UIB approved this item at the Feb 24, 2020 meeting with 
a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: Additional $4,300 in revenue per month. 
 
 

Recommendation: Award Contract for Natural Gas Asset Management to BP 
Canada Energy Marketing Corp. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-060 
 
 
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, awarding 
the Contract for Natural Gas Asset Management to BP Canada Energy 
Marketing Corp.  
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Fremont received proposals for a Natural Gas Asset 

Manager; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the proposals and selected the BP proposal for the 

City of Fremont  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Fremont, accept and award the contract for Natural Gas Asset 
manager to BP Canada Energy Marketing Corp. and authorize staff to 
sign the agreement. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH, 2020.   
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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STAFF REPORT  
 

TO:  City of Fremont Mayor and City Council 

 
FROM:  Dean Kavan, Stores Supervisor  
 
DATE:  March 10, 2020 

 
SUBJECT: Purchase of vehicles and equipment  
 
Recommendation:  Approve resolution for purchase of vehicles and equipment. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Gas, Water and Warehouse departments have budgeted funds for vehicles and 
equipment.   
 
Staff recommends purchasing a 2020 Chevrolet 1500 4WD crew cab work truck through 
the State of Nebraska purchasing contract #15224 from Sid Dillon’s.  The 2020 Chevrolet 
1500 4WD crew cab work truck is $33,767.06. 
 
  Sid Dillon Ford $31,558.00   
  Tax                           $2,209.06 
  Total   $33,767.06 
 
Staff recommends purchasing a 2020 Ford F-350 SRW 4WD supercab truck through the 
State of Nebraska purchasing contract #15040 from Sid Dillon’s.  The 2020 F-350 SRW 
4WD supercab truck is $48,471.00. 
 
  Sid Dillon Ford $48,471.00   
  Tax                           $3,392.97 
  Total   $51,863.97 
 
Staff recommends purchasing a Ditch Witch Mini Skid Steer SK1050 through the 
NJPA/Sourcewell contract #78238 from Charles Machine Works.  The cost of the 
equipment and attachments are $75,321.54. 
 
Ditch Witch SK1050 and attachments $75,321.54 
Freight                                       00$822.62 
Tax                                          $5,330.09 
Total                           $81,474.25 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
FY 2019-2020 Gas Capital Budget Expenditure of $33,767.06. 
FY 2019-2020 Water Capital Budget Expenditure of $51,863.97. 
FY 2019-2020 Warehouse Capital Budget Expenditure of $81,474.25. 
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**********

SK1050 $33,997.70

44" BUCKET/TEETH $782.17

SK4TR TRENCHER $5,422.76

SK5BC BACKFILLER $3,464.49

SK5GF GRAPPLE FORK $2,361.23

SK5B6 6-WAY BFB $3,066.42

BRADCOE SK BACKHOE $9,391.64

SK5PR POWER RAKE $6,990.33

FELLING FT12 TRAILER $9,844.80

EQUIPMENT TOTAL $75,321.54

**********

1 MSS Mini Skid Steer

1 SK1050B SK1050 Mini Skid Steer
With the following configuration:

Decals English

Rubber Tracks Wide Tracks 42 in

Control Valve 1 Lever

Auxiliary Hydraulics Single Auxiliary

AccessoriesLights

Hydraulic Oil Standard

Color Standard

Sold-to Party Address

CITY OF FREMONT - DEPT OF UTILITIES
SOURCEWELL MEMBER 78238
400 EAST MILITARY
FREMONT NE  68025

Charles Machine Works
1959 W. Fir Avenue
P.O.Box 66
Perry, OK 73077-0066
Phone No : 800-654-6481
Fax    No : 580 336 0617
Email : global@ditchwitch.com

Qty Part Number Description

 Quotation Details

 Confidentiality Notice:

This quote may contain confidential information. The information is intended only for the individual or entity named. If you are not the intended recipient,

please immediately notify us at 800-654-6481 to arrange for return of the document.

Quotation

Global Account Price Quote
Quote Valid until : 03/30/2020

TAXES ARE AN ESTIMATE AT TIME OF QUOTATION-ACTUAL TAX WILL BE CALCULATED AT TIME OF INVOICING.  IF TAXES ARE

QUOTED AND THIS IS A TAX EXEMPT TRANSACTION, PLEASE PROVIDE TAX EXEMPT CERTIFICATE OR LEASING DETAILS WITH

YOUR PURCHASE ORDER.

FOR MODEL SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION, VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT WWW.DITCHWITCH.COM

Information 

Quotation No. 20154725

Document Date 01/31/2020

Customer No. 509530

Dealership DITCH WITCH UNDERCON
OMAHA

PO __________________________ 

Created by Todd Miller

Page     1   of 3  
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1 300-5564 BUCKET, 44"

6 300-7090 BOLT-ON TOOTH ADAPTER

6 300-7091 DUAL PURPOSE TOOTH

1 SK4TRB SK4TR Trencher
With the following configuration:

Hydraulic Drive Motor Medium 11.9 CID

Equipment Model SK Models

1 190-1284 SK ADAPTER/1TR4 HOSE KIT

1 190-1168 AUGER EXTENSION KIT

1 140-1111 RELUBRICABLE - ROLLER BOOM ASS'Y (36")

1 100-180 MECHANICAL CLEANER CONVER KIT

1 300-4653 CLEANER BAR

1 141-134 CLEANER SHOE (6")

1 137-221 35K 2P DURA 68P 6.6

1 021-151 SK5BC BACKFILLER-CENTER

1 021-1038 SK5GF - BRUSH GRAPPLE

1 021-161 SK5B6 - 6-WAY BACKFILL BLADE

Sold-to Party Address

CITY OF FREMONT - DEPT OF UTILITIES
SOURCEWELL MEMBER 78238
400 EAST MILITARY
FREMONT NE  68025

Charles Machine Works
1959 W. Fir Avenue
P.O.Box 66
Perry, OK 73077-0066
Phone No : 800-654-6481
Fax    No : 580 336 0617
Email : global@ditchwitch.com

Qty Part Number Description

 Quotation Details

 Confidentiality Notice:

This quote may contain confidential information. The information is intended only for the individual or entity named. If you are not the intended recipient,

please immediately notify us at 800-654-6481 to arrange for return of the document.

Quotation

Global Account Price Quote
Quote Valid until : 03/30/2020

TAXES ARE AN ESTIMATE AT TIME OF QUOTATION-ACTUAL TAX WILL BE CALCULATED AT TIME OF INVOICING.  IF TAXES ARE

QUOTED AND THIS IS A TAX EXEMPT TRANSACTION, PLEASE PROVIDE TAX EXEMPT CERTIFICATE OR LEASING DETAILS WITH

YOUR PURCHASE ORDER.

FOR MODEL SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION, VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT WWW.DITCHWITCH.COM

Information 

Quotation No. 20154725

Document Date 01/31/2020

Customer No. 509530

Dealership DITCH WITCH UNDERCON
OMAHA

PO __________________________ 

Created by Todd Miller

Page     2   of 3  
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1 NON CMW PART BRADCO SK BACKHOE

1 SK5PR 4' Power Rake

1 NON DW TRAILER FELLING FT-12 CUE TRAILER
Global Account Pricing           75,321.54 

Total Freight                       822.62 

Total Tax                         5,330.09 

-------------------------------------

Total Amount $   81,474.25 

Sold-to Party Address

CITY OF FREMONT - DEPT OF UTILITIES
SOURCEWELL MEMBER 78238
400 EAST MILITARY
FREMONT NE  68025

Charles Machine Works
1959 W. Fir Avenue
P.O.Box 66
Perry, OK 73077-0066
Phone No : 800-654-6481
Fax    No : 580 336 0617
Email : global@ditchwitch.com

Qty Part Number Description

 Quotation Details

 Confidentiality Notice:

This quote may contain confidential information. The information is intended only for the individual or entity named. If you are not the intended recipient,

please immediately notify us at 800-654-6481 to arrange for return of the document.

Quotation

Global Account Price Quote
Quote Valid until : 03/30/2020

TAXES ARE AN ESTIMATE AT TIME OF QUOTATION-ACTUAL TAX WILL BE CALCULATED AT TIME OF INVOICING.  IF TAXES ARE

QUOTED AND THIS IS A TAX EXEMPT TRANSACTION, PLEASE PROVIDE TAX EXEMPT CERTIFICATE OR LEASING DETAILS WITH

YOUR PURCHASE ORDER.

FOR MODEL SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION, VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT WWW.DITCHWITCH.COM

Information 

Quotation No. 20154725

Document Date 01/31/2020

Customer No. 509530

Dealership DITCH WITCH UNDERCON
OMAHA

PO __________________________ 

Created by Todd Miller
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-061 

  

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fremont, Nebraska, authorizing the 
Fremont Department of Utilities Staff to purchase vehicles and equipment.  

  

WHEREAS,     The Fremont Department of Utilities plans and budgets for equipment; and 
  

WHEREAS,  Staff has determined that the best value is to purchase a 2020 Chevrolet 
1500 4WD crew cab work truck through the State of Nebraska purchasing 
contract #15224 for $33,767.06 from Sid Dillon’s; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Staff has determined that the best value is to purchase a 2020 Ford F-350 

SRW 4WD supercab truck through the State of Nebraska purchasing contract 

#15040 for $51,863.97 from Sid Dillon’s; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Staff has determined that the best value is to purchase a Ditch Witch Mini Skid 

Steer SK1050 through the NJPA/Sourcewell contract #78238 for $81,474.25 

from Charles Machine Works; and 
 
WHEREAS,  At the February 25, 2020 UIB meeting these items were discussed.  The 

Utilities and Infrastructure board voted 4 to 0 with one member absent to 
recommend the City of Fremont Mayor and City Council authorize; and 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council accept the 

recommendation of the Utility & Infrastructure Board to authorize the 

Department of Utility staff to purchase; a 2020 Chevrolet 1500 4WD crew 

cab work truck through the State of Nebraska purchasing contract #15224 

for $33,767.06 from Sid Dillon’s; a 2020 Ford F-350 SRW 4WD supercab 

truck through the State of Nebraska purchasing contract #15040 for 

$51,863.97 from Sid Dillon’s; a Ditch Witch Mini Skid Steer SK1050 through 

the NJPA/Sourcewell contract #78238 for $81,474.25 from Charles Machine 

Works. 
  

  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF MARCH, 2020 

 

______________________________   

                                                                             Scott Getzschman, Mayor 
  

ATTEST:  
  

  

_________________________  

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk  
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STAFF REPORT  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  City Attorney 

DATE:  March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT: City Ordinance Chapter 3, Article 7, Section 3-701 
 
Recommendation: Hold second reading on Ordinance 5518 
 
BACKGROUND: At the October 29, 2019 City Council meeting, it was discovered that City 
Chapter 3, Article 7, Section 3-701 contains a sentence that should have been removed when the 
ordinance was amended in 2010, making the Library Board an advisory board. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None.   
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ORDINANCE NO.  5518 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA, REPEALING AND 
REPLACING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 7, SECTION 3-701 OF THE FREMNT MUNICIPAL 
CODE AND ALL OTHER ORDINANCES OR PART OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH 
THIS ORDINANCE, PROVIDING WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, 
NEBRASKA, THAT: 
 

SECTION I. Chapter 3, Article 7, Section 3-701 – Municipal Library; operation and funding. 

The City owns and manages the City Library, Reading Room, Art Gallery, and Museum 
through the Library Board. The City Council, for the purpose of defraying the cost of the 
management, purchases, improvements, and maintenance of the Library may each year 
levy a tax not exceeding the maximum limit prescribed by State law, on the actual valuation 
of all real estate and personal property within the City that is subject to taxation. The 
revenue from the said tax shall be known as the Library Fund and shall include all gifts, 
grants, deeds of conveyance, bequests, or other valuable income-producing personal 
property and real estate from any source for the purpose of endowing the City Library. The 
Library Fund shall at all times be in the custody of the Director of Finance. The Board shall 
have the power and authority to appoint the librarian and to hire such other employees as 
they may deem necessary and may pass such other rules and regulations for the operation 
of the Library, Reading Room, Art Gallery, and Museum as may be proper for their efficient 
operation. 

SECTION II.  REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.  That and any other 
ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION III.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force 
from and after its passage, approval, and publication according to law.  This ordinance shall 
be published in pamphlet form on January 29, 2020 and distributed as a City Ordinance. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
 
             
       Scott Getzschman, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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STAFF REPORT  
 
 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Jennifer L. Dam, AICP 

DATE: March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT:     Annexation of WholeStone Farms 
 

 
Recommendation:  Hold second reading of Ordinance 5527 

 
Background:  
 
Heather Carver, on behalf of WholeStone Farms, is requesting annexation of their 
property into the City. 
 
The property is contiguous to the city limits. 
 
The property has been located in a County Industrial District, which prevented 
involuntary annexation in the past. WholeStone is asking Dodge County to be 
released from the County Industrial District. Dodge County is expected to release the 
areas from the industrial district at their February 26, 2020 meeting. 
 
The parcels are within an area that has been designated as blighted and substandard, 
and for which a redevelopment plan has been approved. 
 
An amendment to the redevelopment plan is anticipated.  This will allow WholeStone 
to upgrade and expand production at the facility. 
 
Having the WholeStone Farms property in the city limits will have the long term impact 
of increasing the City’s tax base. 
 
This request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and State Statutes.  
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Vicinity Map 
 

 

Generalized Area of Annexation 
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ORDINANCE NO. 5527 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, NEBRASKA, ANNEXING BY VOLUNTARY 
PETITION PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS PARCELS OF LAND LOCATED IN 
SECTIONS 23, 25 AND 25, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M., 
DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA AND EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS TO INCLUDE 
SAID REAL ESTATE; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, a voluntary petition for annexation was filed with the offices of the Department of 
Planning, City of Fremont (City); and  

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the subject property is contiguous with the corporate 
limits, and is urban or suburban in character and not rural in character; and  

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is able to provide certain essential services, such as 
utilities, police and fire protection, for the subject property so that the inhabitants of said territory 
shall receive substantially the same services as other inhabitants of the City; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed annexation was held by the Planning Commission 
on February 18, 2020, at which time the Commission unanimously recommended in favor of the 
proposed annexation; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed annexation on February 25, 
2020; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in compliance with pertinent annexation 
requirements of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 16-117; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FREMONT, 
NEBRASKA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION I: ANNEXATION.  That the following described real estate, contiguous and adjacent 
to the City of Fremont, Nebraska, urban or suburban in character and not rural in character, 
receiving material benefits and advantages from annexation to said City, to-wit for annexation 
into the City of Fremont’s corporate limits be and the same is hereby included within the 
boundaries and territory of the City of Fremont, Nebraska and shall be included within the 
corporate limits of said City and become a part of said City for all purposes whatsoever, and the 
inhabitants of such addition shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges and be subject to all 
the laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of said City. 
 

See Exhibit A attached below 
 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  All ordinances made in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed.  

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 
this Ordinance, or application hereof, is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any 
Court, such portion or application shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or application 
hereof.  

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
its passage, approval, and publication as required by law.  
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PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 

 

 

    

  Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Tyler Ficken, City Clerk 
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EXHIBIT “A” TO PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Parcel 1 

 

LOTS 1 THRU 8, INCLUSIVE, BLOCK 5, ROAD-RAIL SUBDIVISION IN DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA, TOGETHER 

WITH PART OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD ADJACENT THERETO ON THE SOUTH, ALL MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE SE CORNER OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 

26, T17N, R8E OF THE 6TH P.M ., DODGE COUNTY; 

THENCE N89°57'18"W (ASSUMED BEARING) 48.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE N00°09'43"E 33.00 FEET ON A LINE 48.00 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL 

WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26 TO THE SE CORNER OF SAID LOT 

8 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING N00°09'43"E 537.00 FEET ON THE EAST LINES OF 

SAID LOTS 8 AND 1; THENCE N19°40'50"W 94.27 FEET ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO THE NE 

CORNER THEREOF; THENCE N89°52'04"W 1211.05 FEET ON THE NORTH LINES OF SAID LOTS 1, 2, 3 AND 

4 TO THE NW CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; THENCE S00°08'48"W 627.58 FEET ON THE WEST LINES OF SAID 

LOTS 4 AND 5 TO THE SW CORNER OF SAID LOT 5; THENCE S89°57'18"E 96.90 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE 

OF SAID LOT 5; THENCE S00°02'42"W 33.00 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD; 

THENCE S71°08'03"E 102.31 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE S89°57'18"E 

873.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE N84°24'02"E 162.83 FEET; 

THENCE N00°09'43"E 17.00 FEET ON THE CENTER LINE OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE 

S89°57'18"E 7.00 FEET ON THE CENTER LINE OF VACATED CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE N00°09'43"E 33.00 

FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 8; THENCE S89°57'18"E 7.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 

8 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 19.502 ACRES MORE OR LESS 

Parcel 2 

PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 23, TOGETHER WITH PART OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 

OF SECTION 26, ALL IN T17N, R8E OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA ALL MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE SW CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 23; THENCE N89°51'48"E (ASSUMED BEARING) 40.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 

THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 23 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

EAST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE; THENCE N00°31'55"E 860.12 FEET ON A LINE 40.00 FEET EAST OF AND 

PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 23 TO THE SOUTH LINE 

OF FACTORY STREET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON THE SOUTH LINE OF FACTORY STREET ON A 5544.75 

FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, CHORD BEARING N49°58'07"W, CHORD DISTANCE 62.10 FEET, AN 

ARC DISTANCE OF 62.10 FEET; THENCE N39°26'21"E 115.75 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE 

RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-

OF-WAY ON A6675.80 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, CHORD BEARING S47°17'10"E, CHORD 

DISTANCE 637.62 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 637.86 FEET; THENCE S44°31'19"E 85.35 FEET ON THE 

SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE S44°29'49"E 808.55 FEET ON THE 

SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE WEST LINE OF HAMILTON STREET; THENCE 
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N89°52'04"W 833.22 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF STUDLEY ROAD; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON THE 

NORTH LINE OF STUDLEY ROAD AND THE EAST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE ON A 117.00 FOOT RADIUS 

CURVE TO THE RIGHT, CHORD BEARING N44°51'46"W, CHORD DISTANCE 165.49 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 183.82 FEET TO A POINT 40.00 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 

OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE N00°08'48"E 475.49 FEET ON A LINE 40.00 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL 

WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26 AND ON THE EAST LINE OF 

PLATTE AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 27.086 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF PARCEL 2 PREVIOUSLY ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF FREMONT, 

NEBRASKA AND LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THAT PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 23, T17N, R8E OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, 

NEBRASKA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE SW CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 

OF SAID SECTION 23; THENCE S89°51'48"E (ASSUMED BEARING) 40.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 

SAID SE 1/4 TO THE EAST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE; THENCE N00°31'55"E 295.40 FEET ON A LINE 40.00 

FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SE 1/4 AND ON THE EAST LINE OF PLATTE 

AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF FREMONT CITY 

LIMITS; THENCE CONTINUING N00°31'55"E 564.72 FEET ON A LINE 40.00 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL 

WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SE 1/4 AND ON THE EAST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 

FACTORY STREET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON THE SOUTH LINE OF FACTORY STREET ON A 5544.75 

FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, CHORD BEARING N49°58'07"W, CHORD DISTANCE 62.10 FEET, AN 

ARC DISTANCE OF 62.10 FEET; THENCE N39°26'21"E 115.75 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE 

RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-

OF-WAY ON A 6675.80 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, CHORD BEARING S47°17'10"E, CHORD 

DISTANCE 637.62 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 637.86 FEET; THENCE S44°31'19"E 85.35 FEET ON THE 

SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE S44°29'49"E 283.85 FEET ON THE 

SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE FREMONT CITY LIMITS; 

THENCE N89°51'48"W 758.51 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE FREMONT CITY LIMITS TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. CONTAINING 6.492 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

Parcel 3 
PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 23 TOGETHER WITH PART OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 

1/4 OF SECTION 26, ALL IN 17N, R8E OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA, ALL MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE NE CORNER OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NE 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE N89°45'02"W (ASSUMED BEARING) 33.00 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE 

OF SAID NW 1/4 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF PLATTE 

AVENUE; THENCE S00°08'48"W 566.94 FEET ON A LINE 33.00 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 

EAST LINE OF SAID NW 1/4 AND ON THE WEST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF A 

BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD SIDE TRACK; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ON THE NORTH LINE OF 

SAID BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD SIDE TRACK ON A 504.39 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, 

CHORD BEARING S41°48'56"W, CHORD DISTANCE 241.42 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 243.79 FEET TO 

THE EAST LINE OF SAID BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD MAIN TRACK; THENCE N02°41'05"W 891.89 

FEET ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD MAIN TRACK TO A POINT 142.00 

FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 23; THENCE 

S89°25'05"E 189.52 FEET ON A LINE 142.00 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF 

SAID SW 1/4 TO THE WEST LINE OF PLATTE AVENUE; THENCE S00°31'55"W 142.00 FEET ON A LINE 40.00 
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FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID SW 1/4 AND ON THE WEST LINE OF PLATTE 

AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SW 1/4; THENCE S89°45'02"E 7.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 

SAID SW 1/4 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 3.321 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

Parcel 4 
TAX LOTS 4 AND 81 LOCATED IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 25, T17N, R8E OF THE 6TH 

P.M., DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA, TOGETHER WITH PART OF VACATED CLOVERLY STREET ADJACENT 

THERETO ON THE SOUTH, ALL MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE 

SW CORNER OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25; THENCE S89°23'45"E (ASSUMED 

BEARING) 33.00 FEET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25; THENCE 

N00°09'43"E 33.00 FEET ON A LINE 33.00 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE NW 

1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25 TO THE NORTH LINE CLOVERLY ROAD AND THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING N00°09'43"E 547.33 FEET ON A LINE 33.00 FEET EAST OF AND 

PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25 TO THE WESTERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN AND UNION PACIFIC RAILROADS; THENCE 

S44°16'46"E 949.87 FEET ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO & NORTHWESTERN 

AND UNION PACIFIC RAILROADS TO THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 

ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD ON A 1388.22 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, CHORD 

BEARING N80°57'48"W, CHORD DISTANCE 407.15 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 408.62 FEET; THENCE 

N89°23'45"W 205.81 FEET ON A LINE 33.00 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF 

THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25 AND ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD; 

THENCE N00°09'43"E 66.00 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLEVERLY ROAD; THENCE N89°23'45"W 57.00 

FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVER LY ROAD TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 4.322 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS. 

Parcel 5 

 
PART OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 25, T17N, R8E OF THE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, 

NEBRASKA, TOGETHER WITH PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25, ALL MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, COMMENCING AT THE NW CORNER OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 25; THENCE S00°09'43"W (ASSUMED BEARING) 137.88 FEET, MORE OR LESS, ON THE WEST 

LINE OF SAID NW 1/4 TO THE CENTER LINE OF THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD; THENCE S44°16'46"E 

706.80 FEET ON THE CENTER LINE OF SAID UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD; THENCE S45°43'14"W 196.00 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING S45°43'14"W 29.38 FEET; THENCE 

S44°16'46"E 518.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON A 771.11FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, 

CHORD BEARING S41°05'56"E, CHORD DISTANCE 85.57 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 85.61 FEET; THENCE 

S37°55'06"E 183.90 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON THE 

NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD ON A 1388.22 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, CHORD BEARING 

S67°17'24"E, CHORD DISTANCE 52.40 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 52.40 FEET; THENCE N37°55'06"W 

234.21 FEET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON A 776.99 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, CHORD 

BEARING N41°05'54"W, CHORD DISTANCE 86.23 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 86.28 FEET; THENCE 

N44°16'46"W 490.35 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 0.527 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

Parcel 6 
PART OF NW 1/4OFTHE NW 1/4OFSECTION 25, T17N, R8EOFTHE 6TH P.M., DODGE COUNTY, NEBRASKA, 

TOGETHER WITH PART OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25, TOGETHER WITH PART OF 
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THE SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25, ALL MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, 

COMMENCING AT SE CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE NE¼ OF SAID SECTION 25; THENCE S00°20'14"W 

(ASSUMED BEARING) 213.87 FEET ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 25 

TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD; THENCE N44°16'46"W 306.95 FEET ON THE 

SOUTH LINE OF THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 

NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE CONTINUING N44°16'46"W 1964.14 FEET ON THE SOUTH 

LINE OF THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD TO THE EAST LINE OF A RAILROAD SPUR TRACK RIGHT-OF-WAY; 

THENCE S00°33'14"W 310.28 FEET ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID SPUR TRACK RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THE 

NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD 

ON A 1388.22 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT, CHORD BEARING S51°03'54"E, CHORD DISTANCE 

328.50 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 328.82 FEET; THENCE S44°16'46"E 1238.35 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE 

OF CLOVERLY ROAD; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON THE NORTH LINE OF CLOVERLY ROAD ON A 180.00 

FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, CHORD BEARING S89°16'46"E, CHORD DISTANCE 254.56 FEET, AN 

ARC DISTANCE OF 282.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 7.696 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
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STAFF REPORT  

 

 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

 

FROM: Todd Bernt, Fire Chief 

 

DATE:  March 10, 2020  

 

SUBJECT: Fire Department Annual Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  City code provides for an annual report to the city council from the fire 

department. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  None 

Recommendation: Move to receive and file the report 
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Fremont Fire Department 

2019 Annual Report                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                     

 

 

                                                               Structure Fire March 18, 2019                                   Courtesy Photo 
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FREMONT FIRE DEPARTMENT 

2019 ANNUAL REPORT 

Todd Bernt, Fire Chief 
415 East 16th Street 
Fremont, NE 68025 

 
 

Photo courtesy Nebraska National Guard  
 

Governor Pete Rickets and First Lady Susanne Shore present an award to Fire Chief, Todd Bernt, for 
the Fremont Fire Department’s efforts performed during the March Floods of 2019. The award was 

presented at the Governor’s Flood Heroes Ceremony December 17, 2019. 
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FREMONT FIRE DEPARTMENT 

ANNUAL REPORT 
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Check us out on the City’s web page at: 
http://www.fremontne.gov/fire 
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Section 1  
                                                                  

                                                                              Structure Fire March 6, 2019 

 

Department 
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Message from Chief Bernt 

                                                          Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

MISSION 
STATEMENT 

 
The Mission of the 

Fremont Fire 

Department is to 

protect Life and 

Property by 

providing: 

 

* Fire and Safety 

    Education 

* Fire Prevention 

* Prompt response to 

Fire, Medical and other 

related Emergencies 

 
With professionally 
trained personnel in an 
efficient and cost 
effective manner. 

On behalf of the members of the Fremont Fire Department, I’m proud to 
present the 2019 Annual Report. This report is a testament to your fire 
department member’s professionalism and dedication to our community. 
In 2019, we responded to a total of 3,010 emergencies; 2,778 medical and 
232 fire. The fire department saw an 11.6% increase in emergency calls 
from 2018. 
 
The Floods of 2019 tested the fire department as with all first responders 
across the state. On March 14, while attempting to rescue individuals 
from a home along the Elkhorn River, in some of the worst conditions, 
two airboats capsized putting seven responders in deep, swift moving 
water. Three of these responders are Fremont Firefighters. The only 
rescue available was from the Nebraska National Guard Blackhawk 
helicopter. We were lucky for no loss of life. 
 
Our 2,778 Emergency Medical Services (EMS) responses account for 
approximately 92% of all our fire and EMS responses. We had a total of 
3,008 patient contacts with the average patient age being 58.66 years old. 
This is a 13% increase in patient contacts. 
 
Of the 232 fire emergencies, 32 were extinguishable fires and 10 were fires 
out on our arrival but investigated. Equipment failure, cooking materials, 
and electrical were the leading causes of fires. Eleven fires had causes that 
were unknown/undetermined. The fire losses for 2019 totaled $952,500.  
 
Documented training hours for the department totaled 4,343 hours. Topics 
included EMS training, fire ground tactics, rope rescue, grain bin rescue, 
and pre-planning to name a few. The Department worked with the 
Nebraska State Fire Marshal Training Division to get personnel certified in 
the Firefighter II certification category. Metropolitan Community College 
(MCC) continued to provide continuing education in EMS and technical 
rescue for all personnel. 

The accomplishments of the Fremont Fire Department are only possible 

through the ongoing dedication of each firefighter’s commitment to our 

community. None of which would be possible without the support of the 

Mayor, City Council, City Administrator, and the citizens of Fremont. 
         

Sincerely, 

 
Todd Bernt       

Fire Chief 
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COMMAND STAFF 

 

 

  

                                                     Fire Chief Todd Bernt 
                                                                           Paramedic 
                                                                    27 years of service 

A-SHIFT                       
 

                                                                                              

                                                   
 
 
 
 
                                                               Captain Jamie Meyer           Lieutenant Brian Monaghan                Levi Alley 
                                                                        Paramedic                                    Paramedic                      Firefighter/Paramedic 
                                                                  26 years of service                      9 years of service  9 years of service 

 
  

 
                         Terry Luthy                              Jesse Vincent                          Alex Iniguez 
                                                                 Firefighter/Paramedic          Firefighter/Paramedic          Firefighter/Paramedic 
                                                                    7 years of service                    6 years of service                   2 years of service 
 

                                                                                                                                        

                                                             
 

                                                         
                                                  
                                                                                                                                          
                                                                      
                                                                        Jason Meyer                               Tanner Bies                         James Bazer 
                                                                Firefighter/EMT                          Firefighter/EMT                   Firefighter/EMT 
                                                                   2 years of service                       1 year of service                   <1 year of service 
                                                                                                                                 Pictures courtesy of Rader Photography 
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B-SHIFT 
 

 

 

 

                                                   Captain Pat Tawney            Lieutenant Zach Klein                 Alan Atkinson 
                                                                    Paramedic                                Paramedic                    Firefighter/Intermediate 
                                                                27 years of service                 13 years of service                   28 years of service 
                                                             

 

 

 

 

 

                                                     Dave Wordekemper                   Nick Morris                              Wyatt Swartz 
                                                             Firefighter/Paramedic        Firefighter/Paramedic                    Firefighter/EMT 
                                                                24 years of service                15 years of service                        15 years of service 
            

 

 

                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                          

 

 

                                                          Rich Osterloh                            Blake Wagner                     Jason Shreck 
                                                                  Firefighter/EMT                 Firefighter/Paramedic       Firefighter/Paramedic 
                                                                  13 years of service                    3 years of service                  1 year of service 
                                                                         

                                                         

Pictures courtesy of Rader Photography 
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C-SHIFT   

 

 

 

 

                                                    
                                                     Captain Tom Christensen        Lieutenant Todd Coffey                Mike Schuler 
                                                                            Paramedic                                 Paramedic                           Firefighter/EMT 
                                                                       24 years of service                    27 years of service                  13 years of service 

                                                

 

 

 

 

 

                                                              
                                                               Tyler Thomas                            Darek Schuller                        Rick Schutt 
                                                                      Firefighter/Paramedic                Firefighter/EMT              Firefighter/Paramedic   
                                                                        13 years of service                    7 years of service                   7 years of service  

                                                

 

  

                                                                            Peter Kafonek                     Christian McKenzie                       Zach Toole        
                                                                      Firefighter/Paramedic                Firefighter/EMT                       Firefighter/EMT 
                                                                         3 years of service                        1 year of service                     <1 year of service 
 
 

Pictures courtesy of Rader Photography 
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FREMONT’S FIRE DEPARTMENT HISTORY 

Established in the late 1860’s, the Fremont Fire Department was the third fire department in the state 
of Nebraska. Several fire companies made up the early Fire Department: 
 

 Frontier Fire Company, November 1868  

                    Fremont Engine Company, February 1872  

 Red Jacket Engine Company, December 1874 

J.C. Cleland Hose Company, 1883 Mechanic 

Hose Company, May 1886 

G.W.E. Dorsey Hose Company, May 1886 

W.G. Mercer Hose Company, February 1890 

 
These were all volunteer companies, which, in 1890, boasted a membership of 182. A Board of Directors 
for the Volunteer Fire Department was formed in 1891. The Board was made up of 16 members (two 
from each of the seven companies, plus a President and Vice President). This Board was the governing 
body of all the volunteer firefighters. 

 
In 1888 the Fremont City Hall was built at the 
corner of 4th Street and Park Avenue. This 
building also contained the fire station. A bell 
tower was erected in this building to call 
citizens with teams of horses to pull the fire 
wagons and hose carts. When the bell 
sounded, the first person to get to the station 
and hook their team of horses to a piece of fire 
equipment got paid for their services. In 1900 
the city was split into six wards, with one 
hose reel cart placed in each ward.  
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The City of Fremont purchased a Wilcox 
Hose and Chemical Truck in 1911. This 
was the first motor driven fire truck in the 
state of Nebraska. A man was hired for 
$65.00 a month to run and take care of the 
truck. He became the first paid employee 
of the Fremont Fire Department. 
Additional motorized trucks were 
purchased in 1915, 1919, and 1922. The 
position of a paid Fire Chief was created in 
January 1929, and was held by Harry D. 
Struve until September 1932. Since 1929 
Fremont has had eleven career Fire Chiefs, 
one (Carl Hansen) died in the line of duty 
in 1969. 
 

In July 1937, the seven volunteer fire companies 
were reduced to four. The volunteer fire 
department remained divided into companies 
until about 1990 when “companies” were dropped 
and all members began meeting together under 
the heading of Fremont Volunteer Fire 
Department. 
 
The current fire station, at 415 East 16th Street, was 
built in 1968 for $240,000.00. It houses three 

pumpers (two front line trucks and one reserve truck), one aerial, one water rescue/command center 
unit, EMS quick response pickup, and three ambulances/rescue squads. We also have two paramedic 
bicycles and a boat that we keep at this location. 
 
Today’s Fremont Fire Department consists of 27 career firefighters, who work three shifts of nine 
firefighters each. Shifts are 24 hours long, with 48 hours off.  
 

Our department’s fire protection area covers 
approximately eight square miles. Through our 
Mutual Aid agreements, our rescue squad and 
fire response does not stop at the city limits. It 
extends into the rural communities and 
surrounding areas, and our Advanced Life 
Support Service allows us to intercept critical 
patients when requested with area fire 
departments. It’s interesting to note that it was in 
the late 1960’s and early 1970’s, members of the 
department became the first Emergency Medical 

Technicians (EMT’s). The last thirty years have seen tremendous change in our rescue squad service.  
Defibrillators were introduced to the department in December 1989 and were a controversial 
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acquisition at the time. The next year, members of this department saved their first life as a direct 
result of using a defibrillator. In 1993 the City approved the department’s request to become an 
Advanced Life Support (ALS) service. In 1995, we obtained our paramedic license.  

 

Presently, additional services the Fremont 

Fire Department provides is water rescue, ice 

rescue, trench rescue, high/low angle, 

confined space rescue, and hazardous 

materials response at the operations level. 

We’re always looking at building on the 

foundation that was built by the early 

founders of the Fremont Fire Department. 

 

We’re proud of our history. It’s reflected in a 
sense of tradition and “family” our firefighters 
have towards their job and one another. The 
most outstanding part of the fire service is the 

heart of each firefighter. The best equipment means nothing without the commitment and dedication 
of our firefighters. We are determined to provide our community with the best possible service, now 
and in the future. 
 
 
 
 
 

                             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This photograph of Fremont’s City Hall was published in the Fremont Tribune for the City’s 150th 

“Birthday”. The three large open doors indicate the area of the building that housed the fire department. 
The building was located at 4th and Park Avenue. 
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Section 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Structure Fire September 10, 2019  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Structure Fire December 12, 2019                                                            

 
 

 
 

Fire Response 
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Fire Reponses 
 
The department responded to 232 fire related calls. August was the most active month with 27 fire 
calls. Total fire losses for the year totaled $952,500. 
 

There were no firefighter or civilian fire related fatalities in 2019. There were seven civilian injuries and 
one firefighter injury related to fire emergencies in 2019.  
 

The in-town, EMS and fire emergencies, average response time is 4 minutes 22 seconds.  The out of 
town, EMS and fire emergencies, average response time is 8 minutes 51 seconds. Response time is 
measured from the time the call is received at the fire station, to the time department personnel arrived 
on the scene.  
 

Total fire billing amount for calls collected in 2019 was $17,496.40. The current fire billing rates are: 
Engine $500.00 per hour, Aerial/Ladder Truck $750.00 per hour, Utility Truck $200.00 per hour, 
Command Vehicle $100.00 per hour, Heavy Rescue $250.00 per hour, and Mileage $8.00 per mile per 
vehicle. Equipment Cost: Jaws of Life $250.00, Power Saw $75.00, Vehicle Stabilization Struts $75.00, 
Hydraulic Jacks/Chisels $75.00, Air Bags $50.00, Cribbing Blocks $10.00, Hand Tools/Shovels $10.00, 
Ventilation Fan $50.00 and Damaged Equipment fair market value. 
 

 
                                     Structure Fire March 12, 2019 
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(32 fires requiring extinguishment)                                                                            

Structure Fires, 20

Cooking Fires Contained, 7

Vehicle Fires, 8

Outside Equipment, 19

Hazardous Materials, 22

Dumpster/Trash, 4
Fire Alarms Activations, 88

Electrical , 8

Grass Fire, 1

Chimney Fires, 1

Road Freight Fires, 2

Smoke Odor Investigation, 
15

Unauthorized Burning, 12

Emergency Medical Services (EMS), 2523

Motor Vehicle Accidents, 202

Water Rescue Operations, 6

High Angle Rescue, 1

Grain Bin Rescue, 1

Stalled Elevator Rescue, 3

Dispatched & Cancelled Enroute, 67

2019 Types of Alarms

Flammable Liquids, 1

Smoking Materials, 4

Arson, 1

Operator Error, 1

Rekindle, 1

Improper disposal of 
hot ashes, 2

Combustibles to close 
to heat source, 1

Equipment Failure, 7

Electrical, 3

Unknown/Undetermined, 11

CAUSES OF FIRES 
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                                                                      Structure Fire August 22, 2019  
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Structure Fire August 6, 2019 
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FRFD-Fremont Rural Fire Department District 

OUT-out of city limits and out of Fremont Rural Fire Department District 
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Section 3 
 
 

                                                                            ‘Magnificent Seven’                                       Courtesy Photo 
Left to Right: Fremont Firefighter Rich Osterloh, Matthew Baker, Fremont Firefighter Richard Schutt, 
Wayne Kreifels, Fremont Firefighter Nick Morris, Logan Kahler, and Chris Lichtenberg 
 

Emergency Medical Services 
(EMS) 
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EMS SERVICE 
 

The Fremont Fire Department’s rescue squads responded to 2,778 medical emergencies which 
included 202 motor vehicle accidents (MVA) and 35 Advance Life Support (ALS) intercepts with 
area fire departments. The fire department had 3,008 patient contacts. Of the 3,008 patients, 756 
were Advanced Life Support (ALS), 1,334 Basic Life Support (BLS) and 918 refused care/transport. 
The department responded to 42 incidents where the responding units were cancelled enroute. The 
average patient age was 58.66 years old. December was the busiest month with 277 EMS calls.  
 
Advanced Life Support (ALS) has been a service provided to the city by the fire department since 
1995. It enables department paramedics to administer certain medications, as well as IV’s and 
advanced airway techniques. Of the 3,008 patient’s contacts, approximately 25% received 
Advanced Life Support (ALS) service. 
 
In 2019, the fire department was challenged in the area of technical rescue. During the March 
Flooding, the fire department had six operational periods with over 150 individuals rescued from 
their homes in and around Fremont. In April, they responded to a High Angle Rescue that had one 
fatality and one rescued. In September, they responded to a grain bin rescue for a recovery. 
 

There was one firefighter who was injured on an EMS related emergency in 2019.  
 

         Grain Bin Rescue September 23, 2019 
 

The EMS service provided by the fire department generates revenue through user fees, which are 

determined by the level of service provided. The Department’s current rates are: BLS (Basic Life 

Support) $671.00; ALS1 (Advanced Life Support – Level 1) $805.00; and ALS2 (Advanced Life 

Support – Level 2) $1,008.00. A $15.26 per mile one way fee is added to all transport runs. When 

transporting is not necessary, but ALS assistance is given to a patient at the scene there is a $242.00 

fee. When personnel is requested to “intercept” with an ambulance from another community, a 

contract has been put in place to receive $175.00 of what is collected by the transporting squad (the 

transporting agency bills the patient). The ambulance standby charges are $40 per hour per 

personnel and $20 per hour for equipment. For the year (January - December 2019) a total of 

$611,980.97 in squad user fees were collected by the City. 
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Medical Emergencies Types 

 
 

 
Average Patient Age: 58.66 years old 

 

Difficulty Breathing, 193
Diabetic, 45

Cardiac, 130

Trauma/Lacerations/Burns,  646

Pregnancy, 5

General Illness, 186

Altered Mental Status, 79

Strokes, 50Environmental 
Emergencies, 15

Overdoses, 38

Falls, 529

Seizures, 102

Pain Non-Trauma,   
127

Allergic Reactions, 6

Assault, 46

Psychiatric, 35

Syncope/Fainting, 114

Person Down, 69

Well Person Check, 26

Medical 
Alarm, 32

Choking, 17

Carbon Monoxide, 2 Other Medical, 207
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Section 4 

 

Propane Emergency Training July 2019 

 

Department Training 
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Department Training 

In 2019, department personnel received roughly 4,403.9 hours of training. The training involved 
various areas dealing with pumper/aerial driver operations, firefighter safety, street drills, auto 
extrication, building construction, confined space, high angle/low angle rope rescue, emergency 
medical services (EMS), hazardous materials response, fire ground strategy & tactics, and ice/swift 
water rescue. In the course of the regularly scheduled training, the department occasionally has the 
opportunity to train in acquired structures. The training the department receives in these buildings is 
invaluable and the department thanks the citizens for thinking of them when the structures become 
available.  The department conducts yearly training to maintain their EMT licenses with the State of 
Nebraska and the National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians including Advanced Cardiac 
Life Support (ACLS) and Pediatric Advance Life Support (PALS). 

 
 

Fire Department Training Hours 
4,403.90 Total Hours 

Emergency Medical 
Services (EMS), 924.9

Rope Rescue, 628.5

Pumper Driver Operator, 
202

Emergency Management, 10.5

Hazardous Materials, 146

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 
(SCBA), 20.5

Firefighter Safety, 43.5

Street Drills, 16

Fire Ground Strategy & 
Tactics, 329

Physical Fitness, 506.25

Ice/Swift Water Rescue, 43

Pre-Planning, 219.25

Auto Extrication, 8

Firefighter II, 556.5

Fire Officer/Supervisory, 218

Propane Emergencies, 48

Grain Bin Rescue, 250

Confined Space Rescue, 204
Aviation 

Rescue, 30
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Confined Space Rescue Training  
March 2019 
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High Angle Rope Rescue Training 
April 2019 
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Propane Emergency Training 
July 2019 
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Grain Bin Rescue Training 
September 2019 
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Calls backs are used when additional staffing is needed to staff the fire station due to multiple 

emergencies happening at the same time or to provide staffing at an EMS and/or fire 

emergency when needed. In 2019, there were 194 call backs, and there were 18 times when both 

off-duty shifts were called back. 

 
Aerial Training Downtown, May 2019 
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Section 5 

 
Firefighter/EMT Wyatt Swartz showing firefighting equipment and talking about fire safety with 

Milliken Park 1st Graders  
April 2019 

 
  

Public Relations Activities 
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Members of the Fremont Fire Department actively work to inform and educate the public by 
participating in community events, as well as initiating its own programs. A few of the activities 
include an annual open house, presentations to service organizations, fire drills and puppet shows at 
the elementary schools, Junior Fire Marshal program, ‘Change Your Clock Change Your Battery’ 
campaign, and fire extinguisher classes for area businesses. 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Firefighter/Paramedic, Alex Iniguez, and  
Firefighter/EMT, Tanner Bies, show EMS equipment 
to the Fremont High School Health Science Class. 
February 2019 
                 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
Fire Extinguisher Class with Lincoln 
Premium Poultry Staff, December 2019. 
Firefighter/Paramedic, Blake Wagner, with 
a Premium Poultry Employee. 
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Fire Department Open House, October 6, 2019. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1 Used by permission 
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Figure 3 used by permission 
Figure 2used by permission 
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The Junior Fire Marshal Program is for all Fremont kindergarten through fourth grade students. The 

students are given a ‘Home Safety Checklist’ to take home. With the help of parents/guardians, 

together they go through their home looking for fire hazards and correcting the problem for a fire 

safe home. Both the student and parent/guardian sign, return the checklist back to school, and then 

the checklists are picked up by the fire department. The school with the highest percentage of ‘Home 

Safety Checklist’ returned, are awarded the traveling ‘Junior Fire Marshal Program’ trophy for the 

year. The 2019 school with the highest returns was Clarmar School with 83%, other schools returns 

are Grant 36%, Trinity 38%, Milliken Park 14%, Howard 26%, Bergan Elementary 28%, Linden 24%, 

Bell Field 13%, and Washington 4%. 

The fire department works with State Fire Marshal Office members, accompanying them on inspections 

of various local businesses. In 2019, department personnel logged roughly 219 hours working on pre-

plans of local businesses. This allows personnel to be better prepared in the event of an emergency at 

that location. 

The department offers a presentation called “What to Expect When the Squad Arrives”. This program 
is available to anyone, but is designed specifically toward senior citizens. Its goal is to try to minimize 
the anxieties a medical emergency can create by answering questions and showing procedures in a 
more relaxed environment. Personnel also offers tips on what to do, or what not to do, while waiting 
for the squad to arrive – whether you are alone or with someone. 
  
Fremont Firefighters conduct fire extinguisher education classes for employees of local businesses 

and welcomes the opportunity to speak to groups of any age or background at any time. 

Every spring and fall, the fire department takes part in the National ‘CHANGE YOUR CLOCK 
CHANGE YOUR BATTERY’ campaign. Through the campaign, department personnel are able to get 
9 Volt batteries free of charge through Energizer. Through advertising, the department checks and 
changes smoke detector batteries for senior citizens and disabled individuals.  

 
Fremont Professional Firefighters Association Local 1015 participated in Operation Warm which is a 
firefighters coats for kids program. The mission of the program is to invest in the community by 
providing financial relief for struggling families, protecting at-risk children by promoting health, 
confidence, and future success while strengthening the American workforce and break the cycle of 
poverty. Local 1015 partnered with sponsors to purchase 25 brand-new USA made coats for a number 
of students attending Linden Elementary School. The children were all sized ahead of the coat 
distribution assuring a proper fit for the winter.  
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More than 15 members of the Fremont Professional Firefighters Association Local 1015 volunteered 
their time to raise over $7,000 for muscular dystrophy during the annual ‘Fill the Boot’ campaign over 
the Labor Day weekend at the corner of 23rd and Bell Streets. Muscular dystrophy, ALS and related 
diseases severely limit the strength and mobility of children and adults. 
 
Among all Nebraska IAFF locals, Fremont IAFF members had the highest average per member with 
$291 per member. 
 
The Muscular Dystrophy Associations (MDA) spirited ‘Fill the Boot’ campaign is an honoured 
tradition in which thousands of dedicated fire fighters in hometowns across America hit the streets or 
storefronts asking pedestrians, motorists, customers and other passers-by to make a donation to 
MDA. 
 
The International Association of FireFighters (IAFF) partnered with the MDA in 1954 and has raised 
more than 558 million dollars to help kids and adults with muscle-debilitating diseases live the life 
they’ve always imagined and experience the world without any limits.  
 
The International Association of FireFighters (IAFF) Historical Society entry for John C. Fremont’s 
Days won ‘Best Historical Entry’. 
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FAQs 

What is a Key Lock Box and where can I obtain one? 

A Key Lock Box System is a high security, rapid entry option containing appropriate keys, access cards 

or other small items necessary to allow the Fire Department to gain entry to a building or alarmed 

portion in the event of an emergency without property damage due to forcible entry. Key Lock Boxes 

are ideal for commercial and industrial businesses protected by automatic alarm system or automatic 

suppression system or such building that are secured in a manner that restricts access during an 

emergency; for multifamily residential buildings that have restricted access through locked doors and 

have a common corridor for access to the living units; public school buildings, nursing, adult day care, 

and long-term care and assisted living facilities, child day-care facilities, nursery and preschools and 

private schools, churches, and community centers. In Fremont, the fire chief designates the type of key 

lock box system to be implemented within the city so contact the Fire Department at 402- 727-2688 for 

more information. 

 
Do you install or inspect child car seats? 

No, we don’t. However, members of the Dodge County Sheriff’s Office are certified to install and inspect 

car seats. You may reach them at 402-727-2700 to make an appointment. They are located in the Dodge 

County Courthouse (435 N Park in Fremont).Three Rivers District Health Department also provides 

this service. They can be reached at 402-727-5396 and are located at 2400 North Lincoln Avenue in 

Fremont. 

 
Why do firefighters cut holes in the roof and break windows of a building on fire? 

This is called “VENTILATION”. There are two basic reasons for ventilating a structure. The first is, 

removal of dangerous gases, heat, and dark smoke that accumulate in a burning building reducing 

visibility and greatly impeding rescue and firefighting efforts. Second, ventilation allows firefighters to 

relieve the structure of superheated gases and smoke which spread fire and contribute to dangerous 

situations like flashover and back draft explosions. 

 
What should I do with HOT fireplace ash? 

DO NOT remove hot ashes from the fireplace immediately. Wait up to 2-3 days and let the ashes cool 

completely in the fireplace until there are no remaining hot embers before removing them. Place cool 

ash in a metal container and store outside away from the home and all combustibles. 

 
What is your response area? 

Our fire response area is within the Fremont City limits. EMS (Emergency Medical Service) is provided 

east to the Washington County line, west approximately seven miles, north two miles, and south to the 

Platte River. Upon request from neighboring agencies, in accordance with mutual aid agreements, those 

lines can be crossed. 
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STAFF REPORT 

TO: FREMONT CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: Scott Getzschman, Mayor 

DATE: March 10, 2020 

SUBJECT: Emergency Dike Expenses 

Recommendation: Move to approve additional expense of 

Background: The City Council approved up to $100,000 for an emergency levee repair 
at the Rod & Gun Club on February 18 at an Emergency Council meeting. The actual 
expense was $188,618 to be shared (by Dodge County 25%, Lower Platte North NRD 
12.5%, the Rod and Gun club 12.5% and City 50%). 

On February 26, the partners (Dodge County, Lower Platte North NRD, Rod & Gun 
Club, and the City) met to discuss spending additional money to close the remaining open 
breach. Closing the gap would prevent Platte River water from flowing into the Rod & 
Gun Club Lake #8. The estimated cost for the work was $100,000. The partners agreed to 
share the cost in the same percentage as the first expense. The City's estimated share was 
$44,309. 

The actual cost of the work was $255,930 plus materials (Rip-Rap) supplied by the City 
of Fremont. 

Here is the split between the partners: 

Dodge County - 72,154.50 
LPNRD - $36,077.25 
Rod & Gun - $36,077.25 
City- $111,621.00 
Total - $255,930.00 

Fiscal Impact: $17,312.00 which includes credit for Rip-Rap
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